SOCIAL  [ENERE
@l MEDIA &
m— FRIENDLY @ PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council

Ballard House

Plymouth PLI 3B)

Please ask for Amelia Boulter,
Democratic Advisor

T 01752 305155

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk

Published I5 January 2019

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday 23 January 2019
2.00 pm
Warspite Room, Council House

Members:
Councillor Mrs Aspinall, Chair

Councillor Mrs Bowyer, Vice Chair
Councillors Corvid, Hendy, James, Laing, Loveridge, Dr Mahony and Parker-Delaz-Ajete.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

The meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting. By entering the Warspite
Room, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the
recording for the webcast.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic
process please follow this link - Get Involved

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive


https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

l. Apologies
To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Councillors.
2, Declarations of Interest

Councillors will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on the
agenda.

3. Minutes (Pages | - 6)
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 November 2018.
4, Chair's Urgent Business

To receive reports on business which in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought
forward for urgent consideration.

5. Report from Independent Chair, Plymouth Safeguarding (Pages 7 - 10)
Adults Board (PSAB):

6. Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and (Pages |1 - 16)
Integrated Care System (ICS) Update

7. Progress Update on CQC Action Plan (Pages 17 - 94)

8. Missed Hospital Appointments (Pages 95 - 100)

9. Integrated Finance Monitoring Report (Pages 101 - 116)

10. Integrated Performance Scorecard (Pages 117 - 126)

Il. WorkProgramme (Pages 127 - 130)

12. Tracking Resolutions (Pages 131 - 132)



40.

41.

42.

43.

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Wednesday 21 November 2018
PRESENT:

Councillor Mrs Aspinall, in the Chair.

Councillor Mrs Bowyer, Vice Chair.

Councillors Corvid, Hendy, James, Laing, Loveridge, Dr Mahony and Parker-Delaz-
Ajete.

Also in attendance: Councillor lan Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Sdult
Social Care), Nathan Findlay (Chief Operating Officer for Peninsula Dental Social
Enterprise), Rob Nelder (Public Health Consultant, Plymouth City Council), Elaine
Knight (Dental Clinical Lead, Livewell SW), Amanda Fisk (Director at NHS
England), Tessa Fielding (Dental Contracts Manager at NHS England), Graham
Adlard (Local Dental Network Chair), Monica Raynor (Dental Nurse, Out of
Hours Service and Dental Helpline), Carole Burgoyne MBE (Strategic Director for
People), Craig McArdle (Director for Integrated Commissioning), Kevin Baber
(Chief Operating Officer, University Hospital Plymouth Trust); David McAuley
(Deputy Director of Operations, Livewell SW), Gill Martin (Professional Lead,
Livewell SW) and Amelia Boulter (Democratic Advisor).

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.30 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the Panel will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so
they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm
whether these minutes have been amended.

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Laing declared a personal interest she is employed by the Multi Academy
Trust which Scott College is a part of.

Minutes

Agreed the minutes of the meeting 25 October 2018.

Chair's Urgent Business

There were no items of Chair’s Urgent Business.

Dental Access

Nathan Findlay (Chief Operating Officer for Peninsula Dental Social Enterprise), Rob
Nelder (Public Health Consultant, Plymouth City Council), Elaine Knight (Dental

Clinical Lead, Livewell SW), Amanda Fisk (Director at NHS England), Tessa Fielding
(Dental Contracts Manager at NHS England), Graham Adlard (Local Dental Network

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 21 November 2018



Page 2

Chair) and Monica Raynor (Dental Nurse, Out of Hours Service and Dental
Helpline) were present for this item. It was highlighted that -

(@)

(b)

(d)

(e)

NHS England has the responsibility for commissioning dental
services across the entire pathway which includes high-street
dentists, urgent, community and hospital services;

new contracts introduced for general dental practitioner by
Government in 2006 had impacted the way NHS dentistry was
now made available;

high-street dentists set themselves up as a business enterprise and
then offer their services back to the NHS. High-street dentists
are a business unit and constantly balancing how to stay afloat;

they were focusing on how to integrate the dental pathways
across primary and secondary care models and the clinical lead
advisory group ensures the maximum amount of dentistry for
patients;

there were currently 2,500 children and 10,000 adults waiting to
be seen by an NHS Dentist. This figure was monitored on a
monthly basis.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that -

(f)

(8
(h)

()

()

(k)

if you can find your way to the dentist you will receive treatment.
They target efforts around commissioning to meet health needs
but cannot means test people for treatment;

there was a shortage of dentists across Plymouth in every area;

they were undertaking a piece of work between PCC and the
NHS to review the waiting list and to look at where in the city
residents live to ensure services are targeted appropriately;

that one of the strands within the Child Poverty Action looks at
oral health and as a result a document has been produced on how
to access dental services in Plymouth. This was available to access
on the Plymouth Online Directory (POD);

the Dental Access Centre had seen an increase in demand and on
average receive between 75 to 80 calls per day. They will see
around 22 people a day in the clinic as commissioned by the NHS
leaving around 60 people a day unable to have their pain dealt
with;

they were looking at how they can prioritise a families y because
they have children and an important issue for them to look at;

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 21 November 2018



44.

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

Page 3

that over 700 children have their teeth extracted under general
anaesthetic and nearly of all of those cases were preventable. A
number of projects were in place to address this such as
supervised tooth brushing scheme, life education mobile
classroom and dental champion training;

discussions were taking place to create a new practice in the city
centre to relieve the pressure within the system;

the school dentist was no longer a national requirement but this
service was retained for the special schools;

retention was a major problem and recruitment from abroad was
getting more difficult in terms of visas. Rural areas were finding it
more difficult to recruit.

The Committee agreed -

l. To explore whether Plymouth City Council can support recruitment
campaigns to attract Dentists to the area.

2. That all Councillors attend training to become Dental Champions.

3. To be updated on progress of the potential set-up of a new practice in the
city centre to ease pressure within the system.

4. To explore and discuss with Health Education England the potential for the
Peninsula Dental School to increase the number of students.

5. That a link to the Plymouth on Line Directory is sent to Committee

Members.

CQC - Local System Review Action Plan and Update

Carole Burgoyne MBE (Strategic Director for People), Craig McArdle (Director for
Integrated Commissioning), Kevin Baber (Chief Operating Officer, University
Hospital Plymouth Trust) and Councillor lan Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and
Adult Social Care) were present for this item and referred to the report within the

agenda.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that -

(@)

(b)

they were not aware of what was paid to domiciliary care
workers in Devon but generally they were paid more because of
travel time. They had increased the visit time from |5 minutes to
30 minutes and recently made the decision to take the
Enablement Services back in-house;

they think the CQC will challenge them on their performance
data. They were fairly confident with the plan and have put in

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 21 November 2018



45.

(c)

Page 4

extra measures to address the issues to get them back on track
with ED. They may be challenges around primary care but the
CQC recognise that this was a long term plan;

the Crisis Café has limited opening hours and initially small
number going through the unit. They were currently reviewing
this service with Colebrook and were looking to scale this service
up in terms of patient flow.

The Committee noted the current progress on the CQC Local System Review
Action Plan and to receive a further update in March 2019.

Workforce Development Strategy Plan

Councillor lan Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care), David
McAuley (Deputy Director of Operations, Livewell SW), Gill Martin (Professional
Lead, Livewell SW), Carole Burgoyne MBE (Strategic Director for People) and Craig
McArdle (Director for Integrated Commissioning) were present for this item and
referred to the report included in the agenda.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that -

(2)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

they do not put an apprentice into a temporary role and at
Livewell SW always look to keep apprentices once they have
completed their apprenticeship;

the career pathway over time would break down the
stereotypes around the current stigma and gender around the
caring profession. The Proud to Care Network was undertaking
good work in promoting and advocating caring as a career;

through the Future Workforce Team they have good links with
PLUSS and mutually beneficial for them to work together to get
people into great employment opportunities;

agency spend on Doctors was £4.7m, to address this they have a
dedicated team working closely with medical directors to look at
how to address this national shortage as well as looking at ways
to attract people to this part of the world;

staff wellbeing was really important and have undertaken work
to ensure they were offering good wellbeing to employees.

The Committee agreed to -

l. Note the progress in developing the workforce plan for Plymouth and
support the content and approach described within the plan.

2. Further update in March 2019.

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 21 November 2018



46.

47.

48.

49.

Page 5

3. Receive an update on STP and ICS at the January meeting.
4. Encourage Councillors on this Committee to become Proud to Care
Ambassadors.

Integrated Commissioning Scorecard

The Chair advised that this item together with the integrated finance monitoring
report had been included on the agenda for information. As no issues had been
identified for consideration prior to the meeting, no Cabinet Members or officers
had been invited to attend.

Integrated Finance Monitoring Report

The Chair advised that this item together with the integrated commissioning
scorecard report had been included on the agenda for information. As no issues had
been identified for consideration prior to the meeting, no Cabinet Members or
officers had been invited to attend.

Work Programme

The Committee noted the work programme.

Tracking Resolutions

The Committee noted the tracking resolutions.

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 21 November 2018



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda Iltem 5

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Report from Independent Chair, Plymouth Safeguarding Adults
Board (PSAB)

Commiittee: Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date: 23 January 2019

Cabinet Member: Councillor Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

CMT Member: Carole Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People)

Author: Jane Elliott Tonci¢ (PCC Strategic Safeguarding Lead & PSAB
Manager)

Contact details Tel: 01752 308829
email: jane.elliott.toncic@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:  This report is to provide the committee with an overview of the work
of the PSAB and its intentions going forward.

Corporate Plan: The purpose of the PSAB links most directly with the priorities of a Caring
Council, in particular to keep children, young people and adults protected, and for people to feel safe
in Plymouth. The PSAB’s statement: “Committed to ensuring improvements in the safeguarding of
adults at risk of abuse, neglect or exploitation by Assurance, Challenge, Support and Learning.”

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land
N/A

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:
N/A

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: N/A

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 8

Alternative options considered and rejected: N/A

Published work / information: PSAB Annual report 2017-18:
http://web.plymouth.sov.uk/psab annual report 2017-18.pdf

Background papers: N/A

Sign off: N/A

Has the Cabinet Member agreed the contents of the report! No, but Cllr. Tuffin is aware of its
submission.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE


http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/psab_annual_report_2017-18.pdf

Page 9

Introduction:

In terms of adult safeguarding, the Care Act 2014 requires that each local authority must, among
other things, set up a Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB). The main objective of a SAB is to assure itself
that local safeguarding arrangements and partners act to help and protect adults in its area who meet
certain criteria. The SAB has a strategic role, oversees and leads adult safeguarding across the locality,
and is interested in a range of matters that contribute to the prevention of abuse and neglect.
A SAB has three core duties:
e it must publish a strategic plan for each financial year that sets how it will meet its main
objectives and what the members will do to achieve this.
e it must publish an annual report detailing what the SAB has done during the year to
achieve its main objective and implement its strategic plan, and what each member has
done to implement the strategy.
e it must conduct any Safeguarding Adults Review in accordance with the legislation.

As the lead agency with responsibility for coordinating adult safeguarding arrangements, the local
authority, along with their relevant partners must collaborate and work together as set out in the co-
operation duties in the Care Act and, in doing so, must, where appropriate, also consider the wishes
and feelings of the adult on whose behalf they are working. The following organisations must be
represented on the Board:

e the local authority which set it up;

e the Clinical Commissioning Group(s) in the local authority’s area; and

e the relevant police constabulary
In addition, SABs assure themselves that they have the involvement of all partners necessary to
effectively carry out its duties. Accordingly, local partners include University Hospitals Plymouth NHS
Trust, Livewell Southwest which delivers community health and social care services, housing
providers, CQC, and probation services.

Priorities:

Under its Strategic Plan 2016-19, PSAB agreed its priorities as:

¢ Risk Management & Self Neglect; we have established a policy and practice guidance for all
frontline staff, and continued to develop and evaluate the Creative Solutions Forum for the
City. This flagship approach continues to receive high levels of interest regionally and
nationally, recognition that Plymouth has taken an alternative and innovative view of how to
manage complex risk fluidly, and supports workers and agencies to achieve positive change in
an individual’s circumstances.

e Mental Health; we have sought assurance from commissioners and providers that safeguarding
principles are embedded and actively promoted throughout the mental health system, and
that learning from Serious Case Reviews & Safeguarding Adult Reviews are embedded in
operational practice

e Engagement & Participation; we have commissioned Healthwatch to undertake an engagement
project with groups across the City, and mechanisms to channel opinion and suggestions into
the priorities and work of the Board are in progress.

e Quality assurance: we have established a multi-agency Quality Assurance and Performance sub
group to analyse information from the local and national data sets, and evaluate trends and
patterns for which the SAB seeks assurance and/or action plans from relevant agencies.

e Learning & Development Strategy: we have agreed a competency framework for Board
partners and related agencies and organisations

e SAB management arrangements:

o we have developed a joint communication strategy with PSCB, and will be revising our
web pages and looking at opportunities to use social media

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 10

o we have undertaken a review of function, format and funding, and are revising board
meeting structures and member engagement.

Safeguarding Adults Reviews:
The full reports of the published reviews to date are available via the hyperlinks:

Serious Case Review (SCR) ‘V’ published June 2017:
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/serious_case_review v_2017.pdf

This review was commissioned prior to the Care Act implementation in 2015 and accordingly
remained an SCR. The progress of recommendations is monitored by the SAR sub-group, and those
particularly for housing providers are being progressed via a task & finish group led by our housing
Board partner. Further work is currently being undertaken to assure the Board, and a board partner
is overseeing progress against the recommendations.

Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) ‘Ruth Mitchell’ published November 2017:
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/safeguarding_adult review_ruth_mitchell.pdf

Again a board member is providing oversight of the work of the multi-agency concerned with the
action plan to meet the recommendations set out in the report. Of particular focus is work to
improving awareness, systems and actions related to risk management and self-neglect. Our
community health and social care provider has included this area in mandatory training to ensure all
staff have the appropriate information to recognise the risk of self-neglect and how to raise concerns.

Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) ‘DP’:

This review is underway into the circumstances surrounding an individual who had been convicted of a
murder which occurred at New Year 2015. It is unusual in that the subject is the perpetrator of a serious
crime, but the learning is expected to be valuable at a number of levels across agencies.

Future priorities and plans:
Following the review of PSAB we are in the process of implementing its recommendations, including
e development of the Board’s assurance role in regard to the Making Safeguarding Personal
agenda
e adoption of a Constitution and aligned Memorandum of Understanding
e revision of the Strategic Plan into a higher level public-facing strategy, supported by a business
plan with priorities of Partnership, Engagement, Learning and Assurance.
e development of a peer review process to provide more in depth learning outcomes, identified
by a particular theme or element from Safeguarding Adult Reviews
e development of the joint PSAB and PSCB’s protocol to consolidate links with other
partnership boards i.e. Health and Wellbeing, Safer Plymouth.
e reviewing membership of and contributions to the Board and its sub groups

In addition the Board will continue to focus on ensuring rigour in the SAR process and the reviews
undertaken, while seeking assurance regarding the subsequent embedding of related learning across
its network. Further work is planned for the engagement and participation of City residents,
particularly those who have experienced the safeguarding process, with the intention that their views
will inform practice, policy and service provision.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE


http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/serious_case_review_v_2017.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/safeguarding_adult_review_ruth_mitchell.pdf

Page 11 Agenda Item 6

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and
Integrated Care System (ICS) Update

Commiittee: Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date: 23 January 2019

Cabinet Member: Councillor Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

CMT Member: Carole Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People)

Author: Dr Sonja Manton, Director of Strategy (NEW Devon CCG/
South Devon & Torbay CCG)

Contact details Tel: 01803 396 378
email: sonja.manton@nhs.net

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

Members of the committee have been previously briefed on STP updates and the development of an
Integrated Care System in Devon. The purpose of this paper is to provide an update on latest
developments.

Corporate Plan

Not Applicable

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 12

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

The Committee are asked to note the contents of the report.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Published work / information:

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/

Background papers:

Sign off:

Fin Leg Mon HR Assets IT
Off

Strat
Proc

Orriginating SMT Member

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? N/A

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/

Page 13

Members of the committee have been previously briefed on STP updates and the development of an
Integrated Care System in Devon. The purpose of this paper is to provide an update on latest
developments.

I. National Developments

Across the country, since 2017 areas have been progressing the plans for their integrated care
systems with support from regulators as part of a national programme of development (so-called
Wave | and 2 ICSs), sharing their learning and experiences.

Becoming a recognised Integrated Care System means that locally partners and systems are able to
work together and with regulators in different ways, taking on more responsibilities for determining
how resources are used with more influence and flexibility in the way that these are deployed. NHSE
has identified the core capabilities that systems need to be able to demonstrate to by recognised as
ICSs which include and working with areas to assess their levels of maturity against these. These
capabilities include demonstrating that for the local population, systems partners have effective
leadership and relationships; demonstrate ability to deliver good outcomes and performance; strong
financial management; and able to redesign care and implement new ways of meeting needs in line
with strategic ambitions.

On 10t January 2019 The NHS Long Term Plan was published, which sets out national ambitions for
the next 10 years. This can be found here https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk and a summary is
attached as an appendix to this briefing note. Each system is required to submit its 5-year plan by
Autumn 2019.

2. STP Updates

Partners in the Devon STP have made good progress on a number of important developments in
recent months. The most notable are as follows:

Creating a new Digital Strategy

Our system Collaborative Board has emphasised that developing electronic records that “feel like
one system” is a priority if we are to achieve our goal of functioning as an Integrated Care System.

The STP priorities list being “digitally enabled” as one of the design criteria by which all future service
developments must be produced. As such, there has never been a better opportunity for us to use
technology and information not just to enable change, but to lead our community in building a
modern NHS that delivers higher quality, safer care to the people of Devon.

Our new Digital Strategy sets out the overall direction for IM&T and digital services for health and
care within Devon.

Collaborating on workforce

Devon STP partners have also signed up to a system-wide Workforce Strategy. It sets out five key
areas of priority:

i.  Right person, right skills, right place, right time. Priorities moving forward include:
developing system-wide portfolio careers; undertaking a system approach to international
recruitment for nurses and medics; and, alongside a national recruitment campaign for key
workers, a regular cycle of career fairs in Devon.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE


https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/

Page 14

ii. Growing Devon’s future workforce. Priorities moving forward include: further developing
‘Proud to Care’; creating a structured system approach to work experience in health and
social care; creating a system wide attraction, recruitment and retention strategy; and
establishing holistic workforce data for proactive system workforce planning.

iii.  Effective use of a flexible workforce. Priorities moving forward include: establishing a single
shared Devon temporary workers bank and creating a competitive pay framework; and
creating a Devon recruitment bureau with single streamlined business processes to reduce
recruitment time.

iv.  Growing Devon’s strategic partnerships with local and national education providers.
Priorities moving forward include: developing close working partnership with Local Enterprise
partnerships; building experiential learning through creation of case studies as a mechanism of
identifying best practice and enable rapid improvement.

v.  The health and social care sector is the best place to work in Devon. Priorities moving
forward include: continuing to develop the new Devon system leadership programme,
working with the Leadership Academy as pilot site; creating a ‘Devon Offer’ with consistent
Terms and Conditions with flexible benefit packages; and establishing flexible shift working to
support 7 day working.

Partners have also joined forces to support our European staff, as a result of Brexit, and have agreed
a new approach to the international recruitment of key staff.

3. Developing the Integrated Care System in Devon

Following the report to all three health and wellbeing boards in Devon on the emerging priorities and
design and development of our integrated care system in September/ October 2018, we have been
progressing work to explore how our ICS should operate to deliver the system plan on a page and
most importantly improve outcomes for our population.

We have been supported nationally through participation in the Aspiring ICS programme, which was
tailored locally to focus on specific areas of development including: developing population health
management approaches to care redesign, financial planning and exploring effective system
governance. Part of this developmental work has included exploratory conversations with all three
health and wellbeing boards and scrutiny committees in December 2018 about their roles in the
emerging ICS.

In Devon, system partners have continually emphasised the importance of democratic accountability
in the development of our ICS and the inclusion of wider determinants of health in our plans and
aspirations for our populations; an ambition that goes further than the approaches taken in many
other parts of the country.

Over the next 6 months we need to:

i.  Develop a local 5-year plan in response to the national NHS Long Term Plan that shows how
we will work together across NHS and Local Authorities that shows how we work together
to improve outcomes for our population and makes our ambitions and strategy happen.
System leaders have agreed that a key priority in Devon will be to address inequalities by
ensuring resources are deployed in line with strategic ambitions, population needs and
outcomes.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 15

ii.  Design the most effective ways of working together both locally in local communities and
places as well as across the wider Devon system, with the right system governance that allows
for transparent and responsive decisions and implementation of the plan

iii.  Engage with stakeholders and local communities in developing our thinking in both what we
want to deliver (the plan) and how we will work together (system working) to deliver it

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17 Agenda Item 7

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Progress Update on CQC Action Plan

Commiittee: Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date: 23 January 2019

Cabinet Member: Councillor Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

CMT Member: Carole Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People)

Author: Julie Morgan, Head of Audit, Assurance and Effectiveness

Contact details Kevin Baber, Chief Operating Officer
email: kevinbaber@nhs.net

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the action being taken by University Hospitals
Plymouth NHS Trust in response to the 2018 Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection report
and Section 29A Warning Notices for Pharmacy and Diagnostic Imaging.

Corporate Plan

This report supports the City vision, values, objectives and outcomes described in the Caring
Plymouth section of the Corporate Plan.

This report supports the following Strategic Outcome in the Plymouth Plan : People in Plymouth live
in happy, healthy, safe and aspiring communities, where social, economic and environmental
conditions and services enable choices that add quality years to life and reduce the gap in health and
wellbeing between communities.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

None for Plymouth City Council - This report has been produced by University Hospitals Plymouth
NHS Trust; any financial and resource implications will be relevant to the Trust rather than to the
Council.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Failure to comply with the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014
results in the provision of services to patients that fails to meet essential standards of quality and
safety. This may result in the issuing of a warning notice, imposition of a condition of registration,

Page 18

suspension or cancellation of registration, or under criminal law, a caution or prosecution.

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

No

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

It is recommended that the Committee takes assurance from the progress that we have made whilst

recognising that the outcome of the current re-inspection by the CQC is awaited.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Not applicable.

Published work / information:
Not applicable.

Background papers:

Not applicable.

Sign off:
Approved by: Greg Dix, Chief Nurse and Kevin Baber, Chief Operating Officer University Hospitals Plymouth
NHS Trust.
Fin Leg Mon HR Assets IT Strat
Off Proc

Orriginating SMT Member Not Applicable

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? Not Applicable

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE




2.0

2.1

22

23

24

2.5

2.6

Page 19

Introduction

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust was inspected by the CQC in April — May 2018. In
addition to the Inspection Report which contained a number of Requirement Notices, the
Trust received two Warning Notices, one for Pharmacy and one for Diagnostic Imaging. The

Trust was required to make the significant improvements identified in the Warning Notices by
26th October 2018.

An Action Plan was developed in response to the report and the Warning Notices with
delivery of this plan subject to a process of internal and external monitoring and reporting.
Progress is being overseen by a CQC Post Inspection Project Group which meets monthly
and has a forward plan of work. Ongoing assurance is also reported internally to Safety and
Quality Committee at each meeting and externally to the CQC, NEW Devon Clinical
Commissioning Group and to NHS Improvement; this will continue until completion or re-
inspection.

Any concerns with lack of delivery of actions or lack of desired impact of the actions will be
escalated to Trust Management Executive and Trust Board as required.

Woarning Notices

Woarning Notice (Pharmacy): The Warning Notice states that “Significant improvement is
required to ensure that systems and processes for safely managing medicines are operating correctly
both within the pharmacy services and across the Trust, and are effectively governed so that people
are given the medicines they need, when they need them and in a safe way*.

Good progress has been made in supporting a positive cultural shift and with the recruitment
to current vacancies. Ongoing work remains to ensure that all systems are robust and
sustainable. The current concern relates to pace of change which is being adversely impacted
by the lack of capacity at a senior Pharmacy leadership level. Steps are currently being taken
to address this.

Warning Notice (Diagnostic Imaging): The Warning Notice states that “Significant
improvement is required to ensure that patients suspected of having cancer have timely access to
initial assessment, test results and diagnosis in diagnostic imaging”.

Good progress has been made with delivery of the action plan although improving the culture
and wellbeing of staff will take time.

The one area that has been a long standing challenge for Diagnostic Imaging has been in
progressing the e-referral system implementation to reduce risks to patient safety, particularly
around unnecessary exposure, and incorrect referrals. One of the key issues has been to find
a way forward for the management of Emergency Department (ED) requests. Progress is now
being made with a four week pilot in Ultrasound and MRI which commenced in ED on 26
November. This will be extended to CT on 9 January, and if that is successful, to Plain Film.
Initial feedback has been positive.

A summary of our assessment of our progress in addressing the Warning Notices is appended
at Annex |. Please note that the RAG rated assessment is purely subjective and designed to
give an indicator of progress in delivery of the actions.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



27

3.0

3.1

Page 20

It is also important to note that our progress is currently being reviewed by the CQC. This
process commenced on || December 2018 and we are expecting a draft report in February.
The action plans for these two services will be refreshed on receipt of the inspection report.

CQC Quality Report

An Action Plan has been developed in response to the Quality Report which addresses the
‘Must Do’ and the ‘Should Do’ areas for improvement. A copy of the Performance Report is
appended at Annex 2. 43% of the actions have now been completed. The following is a
summary of the content:

Urgent and Emergency (pages 3-14): All actions are progressing in accordance with
agreed timescales. The most significant issue relates to the redesign of the Emergency
Department for which the Trust has been awarded £30m for a strategic rebuild.

Medical Care (pages 4 - 21): All actions are progressing. The most significant issues relate
to nurse staffing, scrutiny of mortality data and training.

Surgery (pages 22 - 29): All actions are progressing in accordance with agreed timescales.
The most significant issues relate to waiting times for treatment and training. Whilst ‘Project
Persist’ continues with the aim to ensure that all available theatre time is optimised to an 85%
opportunity, this continues to be compromised by the non-elective admissions to the hospital
which is contributing to the cancellation of elective procedures.

Maternity (pages 30 - 36): A number of actions are now complete. There has been minor
slippage with some actions but these are being addressed. The most significant issues relate to
training and competency, document control and medicines management.

Outpatients (pages 37 - 39): All actions are progressing in accordance with agreed
timescales. The most significant issue relates to mandatory training — this needs to be
addressed by service lines so has been merged into the Trustwide actions for training.

Trustwide (pages 40 — 60): Most actions are progressing in accordance with agreed
timescales. The most significant issue relates to achievement of operational standards for
which ongoing pressures, staffing issues and endoscopy remain the key challenges. One of the
action timelines that has slipped relates to the management of equipment. This is a concern
given that this was an issue that was highlighted in the last CQC report.

Use of Resources (pages 61 — 64): All actions are progressing in accordance with agreed
timescales. The most significant issues relate to readmissions and non-elective pre-procedure
bed days which are both ongoing workstreams.

Mandatory Training (page 51): There are nine separate ‘Must Do’ Requirement Notices
or ‘Should Do’ recommendations related to mandatory training. Whilst initial actions had
originally been identified, on reflection, a piece of work has now been initiated by the Quality
Managers to develop a unified and pragmatic way forward to address these. This has
commenced with identifying the causes of non attendance at training, their individual
repercussions and the controls in place at that point in the chain of events. A number of
further actions have been identified together with a confidence rating which has helped to
identify the likely success this will give against different staff groups. The revised actions are in
the process of development and agreement and will be reflected in future updates on delivery
of the action plan.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 21

4.0 Conclusion

4.1 Progress in delivery of the CQC action plan will continue to be monitored internally and
reported externally.

42  The outcome of the current re-inspection by the CQC of how we have addressed the
Warning Notices for Pharmacy and Diagnostic Imaging is awaited. The Action Plan will be
reviewed in light of the report once received.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 22

Annex |

Pharmacy Summary of Progress

- Pharmacy CQC - Areas for Improvement m

Must Do's

Address and resolve the issue of unrecognised or unaddressed risks in the pharmacy
teams connected with patient safety, staff pressures, performance, and governance

failings.
- Completed Gap Analysis against the Royal Pharmaceutical Society's Professional

1 Standards (RPS) for Hospital Pharmacy. Detailed action plan now needs to be O
formulated.

- In the short term, an action plan has been formulated based on the detail of the
Warning Notice.
- Risk Register has been reviewed and is subject to ongoing review at Pharmacy Board.

Address and resolve the cultural, wellbeing, staffing, resource, and workload issues
within the pharmacy service and as they affect both the service and the wider trust.
- Implemented a series of leadership and team development days planned to support

staff.

5 - Recruited to current vacancies as identified in establishment review with the ~
exception of the Medication Safety Officer and Formulary Pharmacist posts. -
- Cardiology Pharmacist is not in the current establishment and will form part of the
stakeholder review and business development process.

- Plan to conduct a workforce review in line with the planned pharmacy integration
with Livewell.

Urgently produce standard operating procedures to ensure patients leave the hospital
with critical medicines, and attend or are made aware of any critical follow-up
appointments.

3 -Standard Operating Procedure for return of critical medicines to Pharmacy o
implemented; any that are returned are escalated back to the ward.

- Improved TTA monitoring process on the wards has been trialled successfully on two
wards. An implementation plan is now being agreed.

Ensure effective governance within the pharmacy service to provide a high quality and
safe service.

- Revised governance framework has been agreed.

4 - The focus is now on improving ‘quality management systems’ (QMS) meetings ~
relating to internal pharmacy processes and on reviewing the reports submitted to -
Pharmacy Board related to quality and safety.

- Controlled Drug and Antimicrobial Surveillance audits re-established following
recruitment and on-boarding of new pharmacists.

Should Do's
Improve documentation of when liquid medicines are opened to ensure they are not
administered when they have expired.

1 - Medicines Management Policy is on the agenda for January Medicines Utilisation and Q@

Assurance Committee.
- Review of Audit programme underway as informed by RPS Standards Gap Analysis.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE

60%

55%

55%

60%

55%



Page 23

Diagnostic Imaging Summary of Progress

- Imaging CQC - Areas for Improvement %

Must Do's

Replace equipment which is beyond its 'end of life'. Develop and act upon the imaging
equipment replacement programme

- Equipment was prioritised for the replacment programme by the Imaging Equipment
Project Manager and the Care Group Manager on 02/01/19. The Trustwide prioritisation
will take place later this month with the capital programme finalised Feb/March.

The prioritisation was assessed on the basis of age, risk to failure and impact of failure.

90%

Improve the management of risk

- All risks have been reviewed and updated and the Risk Register and action plans will ®
be reviewed by the Imaging Governance Lead and escalated as appropriate. The

Imaging Governance Committee will report to the Imaging Board.

Substantially improve waiting times including the 7 & 10 day targets for 2ww and the 6
week diagnostic target

- Performance against the 6 week target for diagnostics continues to improve. Scanning
performance has stayed on trajectory and the reporting backlog has reduced

3 significantly. Performance against the cancer standards (7 day scanning and 2 day Q0 80%

85%

reporting) is inconsistent. An intensive support project with the booking team is due
to commence on 9January.
- Performance will continue to be monitored through the weekly modality
performance meeting.
Ensure all patients of child bearing age have appropriate pregnancy checks recorded
4 - Standard Operating Procedure was reviewed but did not need to be changed. O 60%
- Compliance was audited and found to be inconsistent. Further work has been done
on education and communication with a re-audit planned in January.
Ensure leaders have the capacity to lead
- The Service Line have addressed some of these issues in the managerial team and in
the booking department. In addition there is a proposal to address capacity to lead —
5 . . . ) 60%
across the radiographer workforce. This has been circulated and generally well
received, however, no additional investment has been committed to support the
workforce.
Support and improve the culture & wellbeing of staff
- Reinstated HR Leadership Meetings fortnightly with Clinical Leads.
- Implemented Communication Boards.
- Regular senior management walkabouts.
- Implemented 'SCORE' safety culture survey in Interventional Radiology.
- Musculoskeletal risks are on the Risk Register and are being adequately managed.
6 - The Service Line have identified some concerns relating to the leadership in one () 55%
department and have met with the staff to discuss those concerns.
- Further 'Your Voice' sessions are planned in February 2019.
- Responsibility for the management of the rota, which has been the cause of some
concern from staff will transfer to the Service Line Office with effect from February
2019.
- First formal meeting of Imaging Board 18 January 2019.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 24

. Status
Imaging CQC - Areas for Improvement \
| 1lan"19

Progress the e-referral system implementation to reduce the risk to patient safety
7 |- Went live with e-requesting of Ultrasound and MRI on 26 November 2018. CTtogo [ 55%
live on 9 January 2019 with Plain film to follow.

Should Do's
L Achieve compliance with Mandatory Training standards
- Current compliance level 90% (target 95%). D 90%
5 Complete all staff appraisals and job plans
- Current compliance level 98% (target 95%). D 98%

Improve privacy and dignity for patients
- All actions requiring completion before the end of December have been completed. | 75%

Ensure that targets are achievable, realistic and encourage the service to improve
- CT complete. Performance meeting standards.
4 - Ultrasound - undertaking some data quality work before publishing performance. ) 70%
- MRI will need to set different standards for some examinations to reflect the
complexity of the service
Improve compliance with audits e.g. hip fracture & trauma

5 - Trauma audit action plan reviewed. Main recommendation addressed.
- Hip fracture service to be re-audited early 2019. () 65%
Key:
® 3%
O s51-79%
@) <50%

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 25

NHS|

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

CQC Action Plan Monitoring

December 2018

. .
& Quality Care %

Al °\J
3
A

=
o
(;/

6/
R N

Putting Patients First
Innovate & Respecting Others Inspired
Collaborate [ERALEEEAG People
Being Positive
2 8
Z

<
&

99 (D'*‘\I\'
-’% Healthy , o
Organisation
&~
m
A | eading with excellence, caring with compassion




Page 26

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to update the Care Quality Commission (CQC), Clinical
Commissioning Group and NHS Improvement with the progress that we are making in
delivering the action plan designed to address the Warning and Requirement Notices arising
from the CQC’s inspection of University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust in April — May 2018.

The open actions in the action plan have been transferred into this action plan monitoring
report which encompasses the outstanding actions (arranged by theme/core service) and
performance data that will allow us to monitor the impact of the actions that we are taking.

Where relevant, ongoing monitoring of compliance with the closed actions is derived
through the performance indicators included within this report. The report will be presented
to, and monitored by, the Safety and Quality Committee.

Update December 2018

Please note that due to the re-inspection of Pharmacy and Diagnostic Imaging that
commenced on 11 December 2018, there is no update for these two services this month.
The action plans for these two services will be refreshed on receipt of the inspection report.

The table below gives an indication of progress with our actions. Further detail of the
completed actions can be found in Annex 1.

Actions are marked as completed based on the updates provided by the action leads but are
only marked as closed on receipt and review of appropriate evidence.

Action Status Number of Actions Percentage of total

45 23
40 20
In Progress 114 57
Total: 199 100

Next Update

The next planned update will be submitted by 31 January 2019.

Page 2 of 70



Page 27

Urgent and Emergency

MUST DO: Urgently progress the redesign of the emergency department to ensure there is adequate space to care for
patients safely and that patient needs are met.

MUST DO: Ensure the privacy and dignity of patients is always maintained.

SHOULD DO: Consider how patients arriving by ambulance can be protected from the weather while being transferred
to the department.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.1 1.HM Treasury approval of capital monies required for the
1.10 | progression of the written Strategic Outline Case. Stuart Windsor | 31/03/2023

1.19 | 2. Full project management to deliver strategic plan. Project Board
to be developed.

Update on actions

Clinical lead Dr C Bosanko, project lead Cath Atkins. Minutes of meetings and latest designs can be accessed via Peter
Caton, site services for audit purposes. Three design options were presented to Project Board 14.11.18 with instruction
from deputy CEO to deliver a 4th option for consideration pending submission. UHP awarded £30m for strategic rebuild
announced w/c 3rd December. Next project board 12/12/18 .

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Provide sufficient equipment to monitor patients at all times.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.2 | 1. Project plan and manage the expansion of the resus capacity into Stuart Windsor
majors once minors has been relocated to provide a step down for Estates. 1.24/12/18 for
monitored area. paeds expansion.

2. Purcha.se or ar.range short.term Iqan via Medical Equ.ment L|br?ry lain Yearling for | 2. Complete and
of essential mobile observation equipment for those patients held in

i closed.
the central area when crowded. equipment

Update on actions

e Paediatric expansion and reconfiguration commenced initially in car park / ambulance bay w/c 15 October. Due for
completion Christmas Eve. Reconfiguration of footprint in progress and new ambulance entrance complete.

e Ortho outpatient in fracture clinic destination still to be confirmed with Service Line but in preparation, Estates and
lead for minors, Charge Nurse Booth have scoped the necessary works for relocating minors; likely timescale mid
January 2019.

e Uplift in ENP staffing proposed as part of business planning 2019/20 to provide ENP cover 24/7 once relocated.

e Resus expansion dependant on the move of minors to fracture clinic; designs in progress with project team but not
yet finalised.

e Matron has confirmed that there is sufficient medical equipment for observation; it is the nursing staff support for
the undertaking of the hourly safety rounds (SHINE tool) that can be insufficient. Point 2 therefore closed.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 3 of 70



Page 28

MUST DO: Ensure patients are observed, or at least have the means to call for assistance, when waiting outside X-ray.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.3 | 1. Install fixed alarm call bells in the waiting area outside ED imaging
department.

2. Collaborate with Imaging to write a Standard Operating Procedure
(SOP) detailing roles and responsibilities between ED and ED Imaging for
observing and monitoring patients.

3. Scope ability to revise the department's fundamentals of care or
Matrons audit to enable differentiation of auditing observations for
patients who are allocated cubicles and patients not allocated
cubicles/bays in Majors area.

lain Yearling 31/12/2018

Update on actions

e  Fixed call bells not feasible for installation and difficult for patient use therefore not progressed.

e Matron will undertake a joint SOP with the lead radiographer and Imaging Matron that will eradicate patients being
left alone in the corridor outside of x ray for all those majors patients by 31/12/18.

e  SHINE tool to be used for all majors patients regardless of physical location (point 3) and audited via fundamentals of
care remains outstanding pending Meridian programme for electronic audit.

e Paper copies available until Meridian system updated — led by Cath McWhinnie.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure all equipment is serviced as required, and put in place appropriate monitoring systems to provide
oversight of equipment servicing.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.4 | Department Action: Revise department fundamentals of care audit to

monitor equipment service dates: equipment in daily use and lain Yearling 31/12/2018
equipment not in daily use.

Update on actions

ED have just had a compliance visit from MEMS - pending report.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure patients have regular observations completed and documented, with easy to recognise trigger points
for increased regularity of observations.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.5 | Introduction and pilot of NEWS 2 started on 1/8/18.
Process and intervention changes to be made as part of a continuous lain Yearling
PDSA project; with Service Improvement support.

Quality Improvement
work will be ongoing.

Update on actions

Page 4 of 70



Page 29

e NEWS 2 pilot complete in ED and is now being rolled out across the Trust, currently in MAU; this is being led by the
Matron for Harm Free Care.

e A3 (paper) 3rd December roll out to ED and subsequently MAU.

e  Matron to provide evidence of success and demonstrate the use of the SHINE tool (safety brief).as above paper
copies until Meridian updated

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure the data reported in relation to time to initial assessment is an accurate record from arrival at the
emergency department, not using the ambulance service’s observations.

SHOULD DO: Review the front loaded initial care (FLIC) model to ensure it provides appropriate timely decision-making
and treatments.

SHOULD DO: Consider how patients arriving by ambulance can be protected from the weather while being transferred
to the department.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.7 Continue with process change as part of a recurrent PDSA This is part of a

1.19 | improvement cycle relating to the FLIC initiative; with Service L Quality Improvement
& Improvement support. David Wise programme so is

1.22 therefore ongoing

Update on actions

e  FLIC continues to be activated when staffing allows and the department is not crowded.
e  FLIC performance improving. As reported at 29 November, we recorded our best ever performance:
=  FLIC-d for ten days in a row.
= Days lost due to staffing much lower in November than October.
= 41 patients FLIC-d last Saturday — a record.
=  We exceeded our 35 pts / day target six times this month.
= 9 other days we’ve exceeded 30 pts / day.

= On Tuesday 87% patients FLIC-d within 30 mins — a record and average time to FLIC 19 mins - a record.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Urgently review nursing and medical staffing numbers to ensure there are always sufficient numbers on duty
to keep patients safe.

MUST DO: Ensure the privacy and dignity of patients is always maintained.

MUST DO: Put in place appropriate escalation processes that ensure a timely response to supporting the emergency
department to keep patients safe and improve patient flow.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.8, | 1.Undertake a staffing review as part of an external review -

1.10 completed'. . o . Anne Hicks/ lain
& 2.Take action on recommendations made within the external review. . 30/04/2019

1.11 | 3. Paediatric area to be incorporated in to the level 12 paediatric Yearling

nurse rostering practice - completed.

4.Agree and sign off the escalation policy across the Trust.

Page 5 of 70



Page 30

Update on actions

e Two Consultants successfully appointed further to interview on 28 November.

e No applicant for paed post so this will be re-advertised January 2019; currently have 2 days per week of ST7 support
from paediatric unit

e Mid-grade and junior doctors at advert as a continuum with no success.

e Nurse consultant re-advertised; two applicants.

e Band 7 at advert 15/11/18, interview panels 03/01/19.

e Paeds posts appointed plus 6 band 6 posts with phased commencement dates. Full complement expected 31/01/19.

e  Escalation policy agreed by Medical Director for ED to utilise appropriately and for the Trust to respond.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure medicines are always stored securely to prevent unauthorised access.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.9 | 1. Review and improve current process and compliance with storage of 1. Complete
medicines. lain Yearling
2. A secure drug prep area is to be an integral feature of the 2.31/03/2023

department's reconfiguration works.

Update on actions

Current monitoring practice is for Duty band 7 to undertake checks as part of a daily 07:30 inspection. The Matrons' full
audit (Meridian) requires a check on locked medicines cupboards. Review of current Meridian highlights that between
Aug 2017 and Aug 2018, 8 Matrons full audits have been undertaken with 100% compliance.

Locked cage for entonox scoped pending insertion and locks placed on drug cupboard doors.

Plan for new treatment room to have external lock; need to check the requirement for inner cupboards to still be locked:
access by authorised but non-clinical staff needs to be considered, e.g. cleaners. This remains pending on fracture clinic
relocation. Matron to meet with Head of Pharmacy, deadline 31/12/18.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure an external review takes place as soon as possible to identify the risks in the department and then
take the actions recommended to reduce them.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.12 | External review completed. Anne Hicks 30/04/2019
Take actions to address identified risks: in progress.

Update on actions

Page 6 of 70



Page 31

e Redesign of paeds area in progress - see ref 1.1 and 1.2.

e Relocation of minors to fracture clinic pending.

e Expansion of resus pending on above works.

e Recruitment of staffing across all levels both nursing and medical ongoing see ref 1.8.

e  Escalation policy to be enacted when > 18 in majors, no resus capacity, lack of critical staffing > 25 minors or
significant patient safety concerns.
Trustwide full capacity protocol in draft for Exec sign off for Winter

[ ]
Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Ensure the kitchen in the clinical decision unit is secure when unattended to prevent patients gaining
access.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.14 | Reconfigure the Clinical Decision Unit to relocate the kitchen within . .
. . . . lain Yearling Complete
the department; security features to be inherent in design.

Update on actions

10/10/18 - Kitchen complete.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Reconfiguration complete.

SHOULD DO: Repair or replace the flooring in the clinical decision unit toilets/shower rooms to enable effective

cleaning and minimise infection control risks.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.15 | Submit new works request to assess, replace or repair the floor. lain Yearling Complete

Update on actions

Work now complete.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Design agreed and available as evidence from Project Manager Cath Atkins in Estates.

SHOULD DO: Review the security arrangements for the paediatric department to prevent unauthorised entry and exit.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.16 1. Create modular extension to paediatric area; ensuring security
features are inherent in design. Stuart Windsor
2. Engage with the Trust Security Team to review security 31/12/2018
requirements within the current footprint, including secure access, lain Yearling

CCTV monitoring and electrical safety.

Update on actions

Page 7 of 70



Page 32

1. Inprogress.

2. CCTV scoped, quote approved, pending installation with extension.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Ensure children in the paediatric department do not have access to electrical sockets.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.17 | 1. Create modular extension to paediatric area; ensuring safety

features of electrical sockets are inherent in the design, e.g. height of .
. Stuart Windsor
electrical sockets.
_ _ ) 31/12/2018
2. Engage with Trust Estates Team to review the requirement for . .
] . o . lain Yearling
electrical sockets in the existing footprint.

3. Long Term: Progress the redesign of the emergency department.

Update on actions

04/09/2018 Reminder that protective electrical socket inserts were removed as part of an NHS Estates and Facilities alert
issued June 2016. "In certain circumstances, the use of plastic 13A electrical socket inserts (sold as safety accessories), can
overcome the safety features designed into socket outlets".

Modular extension in progress.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Design agreed and available as evidence from Project Manager Cath Atkins in Estates. Residual risk added to risk register.

SHOULD DO: Provide training and/or guidance to reception staff that enables them to recognise ‘red flag’ symptoms.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.18 Undertake a scoping exercise that includes the following hierarchy:
- Ascertain what other Trusts' practice is around this issue.

- Explore the professional scope of practice and patient safety
considerations in relation to providing training and/or guidance to
reception staff tr-mat er.1ables them to recognise ‘red flag’ symptoms. Wendy C?IIey 31/12/2018
- Create appropriate list of 'red flags'. lain Yearling
- Produce Standard Operating Procedure that builds safeguards into
decision making steps commensurate to staff job descriptions and

their professional and legal boundaries.

Action to incorporate the Minor Injury Units.

Update on actions

e Charge Nurse Booth is compiling a list of red flag symptoms. This will bel laminated and placed in reception.
e Team Leader to disseminate to the team — to include in induction pack.

e Team to use Buzzers and Tannoy to escalate when necessary.

e incorporate the Minor Injury Units.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 8 of 70



Page 33

SHOULD DO: Make sure clinical waste bins are emptied before becoming over-full.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.20 | 1. Review the service level agreement with hotel services to ensure
that there is the ability to flex the service provided according to Trust [ wendy Colley Complete
escalation status.

2. Consider including in the Trust Escalation Policy.

Update on actions

We are utilising the facilities from CDU. It is now considered that this does not need inclusion in the Trust Escalation Policy
as it is considered in the SHINE safety form. Monitoring continues as part of the Matrons Audit.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

To be supplied.

SHOULD DO: Review the security arrangements for storing patient records in the clinical decision unit.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.23 | Reset the expected practice and discipline around keeping patient
records:

- in folders at the foot of the patient’s bed, ensuring only essential
nursing records e.g. observations, drug charts and risk assessments lain Yearling Complete
are accessible and kept together.

- medical records are filed complete and locked in a secure dedicate

notes trolley when not in use.

Update on actions

o Dedicated ward clerk for CDU in place for timely filing and security.
e  Staff reminded of the need for safe placing of medical / nursing documents from Ward Manager / Matron.
e Lockable notes trolley in use.

e  Spot monthly audit compliance to commence December 2018 and findings reported to governance pillar for any
necessary actions.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Make sure incident reporting, learning and feedback is given sufficient priority to encourage improved
incident reporting from staff.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.24 | 1. Review the current PA time for the clinical governance lead. Matt Warner 31/01/2019

2. Review the division of labour, roles and responsibilities among the and lain

service line's clinical, management and administrative support teams. Yearling

Page 9 of 70



Page 34

3. Implement PDSA approach related to incident reporting in
conjunction with the Medical Assessment Unit: producing a
standardised format for reporting recurring high volume themes
related to incidents within the Datix reporting system.

4. Scope the feasibility of developing a block review feature within
the Datix system for an agreed type of incident (external incidents)

with support from the Head of Quality Governance.

Update on actions

Project related to secretarial support for administrating governance meetings started overseen by the Service Line
Support Manager and Care Group Quality Manager.

Ref streamlined review, initial discussions have taken place with the Head of Quality Governance; this needs to be
revisited and progressed.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Make sure allergy information is recorded on all relevant paperwork.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.25 | 1. Undertake awareness campaign related to managing and recording
allergy status.

2. Scope the reconfiguring of the Fundamentals of Care auditin EDto | Matt Warner 31/12/2018
include a Multidisciplinary focus. This would aim to include a question | lan Yearling

related to clinical and nursing record keeping with regards to allergy

information.

Update on actions

This is evident in the SHINE tool.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Make sure patients waiting in the department for long periods are not left without access to drinks and
food, where appropriate.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.27 | 1. Review the service level agreement with hotel services, ensuring
there is the ability to flex the service provided according to Trust
escalation status. . .
. L . . lain Yearling Complete
2. Consider including in the Trust Escalation Policy.

3. Revise Fundamentals of Care audit to include whether the patient

has access to fluids and been offered food.

Update on actions

Food is provided by the CDU and the housekeeper discusses who may eat / drink with the Nurse In Charge for breakfast,
lunch and dinner.

Page 10 of 70



Page 35

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Record patients’ pain scores routinely and make sure pain relief is provided promptly when required.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.28 | 1. With support from Service Improvement progress the current PDSA
test change of NEWS2 within the department to recognise the

. . . ) . NEWS2:31/12/2018
frequency of observations required on a patient by patient basis

depending on clinical presentation. lain Yearling .
Redesign:

2. Long Term: Progress the redesign of the emergency department to
& & & gency dep 31/03/2023

eliminate the need to place patients in the central corridor during
crowding.

Update on actions

NEWS?2 live in ED.
See 1.1 re redesign of ED.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Ensure staff working in resuscitation as part of a team wear the correct tabards to help with role
identification.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.31 | Internal professional standard to be written outlining the requirement
to wear the correct labelled tabards to help with role identification Matt Warner Complete
during Trauma care.

Update on actions

An Internal professional standard is not considered necessary. Staff have been reminded of the need to wear the correct
attire for their role and it is the responsibility of the resus lead to ensure that the team members are correctly identified.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

To be determined.

SHOULD DO: Review how patients can be better supported to manage and support their own healthcare.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.32 | 1. Engage with Patient Experience Manager to review the range of
discharge information provided. Anne Hicks
. . . - . . 31/01/2019
2. Review how to ensure easy access to promotional materials within lain Yearling

the department, e.g. leaflets, electronic adverts.

Update on actions

Page 11 of 70



Page 36

Lead for Minors Nigel Booth has met the Patient Experience Manager. Weekly visits from patient advocate to department.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Consider providing nursing staff the skills required to undertake mental capacity assessments.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.33 | 1. Preferred action is to increase uptake in medical staff trained to
undertake mental capacity assessments. .

. . . Anne Hicks
2. Matron and Head of Nursing to scope the feasibility of nursing staff 31/12/2018

Ed Cox
of an appropriate seniority to support completion of mental capacity

assessments: factoring in professional scope of practice.

Update on actions

Trust to pursue option 1.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Escalated to Care Group Manager and wider Care Group as an action Trustwide 20.11.18

SHOULD DO: Provide patients requiring the toilet with appropriate facilities without undue delay.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.34 | 1. Increase in establishment across all disciplines approved. Recruit to
establishment (see action 1.8).

2. Reinvigorate intentional rounding format lain Yearling Complete
3. Long Term: progress the redesign of the emergency department to

improve access to toilet facilities and eliminate delays (see action 1.1).

Update on actions

Patients who are in the corridor are often dressed and therefore are assisted to the toilet outside x ray. For those who
require assistance the FLIC cubicle or another will be used with a commode.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Keep patients in the corridor up-to-date with their care and treatment plans.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.35 | 1. Engage with the Patient Experience Manager to review a range of
options: consider seeking patient feedback on solutions.

2. Review intentional round template: include update on patient's
awareness of their care plan.

lain Yearling 31/12/2018

Update on actions

Page 12 of 70



Page 37

Lead for Minors has met with Patient Experience Manager. Matron to meet in December.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Communicate current estimated waiting times to patients arriving at the department.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.36 | Obtain a quote for a wall mounted screen in waiting areas (Main,
minors and paediatric areas) to display wait times, this must be able Jayde Fletcher 31/12/2018

to be an automated system.

Update on actions

Feasibility to be scoped.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Look to make the environment more suitable for patients with dementia.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.37 | 1. Replenish dementia resources (dementia box). 1. lain Yearling
2. Design in dementia friendly features as part of the department's
interim reconfiguration in majors and minors areas: consideration to 2. Stuart
be given to dementia friendly colours, materials, sighage and a Windsor 2.31/03/2019
centrally located multiface clock.

1. Complete

Update on actions

Dementia box replenished 30/9/18. Matron attends the design meetings and will ensure that dementia friendly colours
etc are used.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Improve minutes and action tracking for team meetings.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.39 | 1. Adopt the Medical Care Group's branded suite of meetings'

templates and meetings' standard operating procedure (part of
governance tool kit); Terms of Reference for the meeting to be
it Wendy Colley Complete
written.

2. Provide commensurate administrative support to the meetings;

training on meetings administration to be provided if required.

Update on actions

Page 13 of 70



Page 38

Project related to secretarial support for administrating governance meetings started overseen by the Service Line
Support Manager and Care Group Quality Manager.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Agenda and minutes submitted as evidence

SHOULD DO: Identify ways of obtaining feedback from the public to develop and improve services.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.41 | Supported by the Trust Patient Experience Manager write a local
patient engagement strategy outlining approaches for seeking lain Yearling 31/12/2018
feedback from patients attending the department.

Update on actions

New Patient Experience Manager in post w/c 8 October 2018; will engage with him to complete this action.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 14 of 70



Page 39

Medical Care

MUST DO: Ensure nursing staffing levels meet the nursing establishment on the endoscopy unit to enable planned
investigations can be carried out and not to hamper service improvement projects.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.1 | Establishment review to be undertaken in the context of demand and
capacity planning: including future workforce requirements to meet the | Ed Cox Complete
predicted growth in screening and diagnostic services.

Update on actions

Review process is in progress. In consultation with finance regarding funding models. The review will look at different
models of care and a review of the service to see where efficiencies can be made and how we could potentially
reconfigure and develop the service to meet the challenging service demands. A five year plan is being factored in.
Training posts have been agreed for succession planning. Results of demand and capacity are now available which will
drive the volume of staff needed and inform business planning.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Endoscopy capacity plan and Business plan summary.

MUST DO: Ensure that all patients are assessed for venous thromboembolism (VTE) as soon as possible after admission,
or by the first consultant review and that this is re-assessed within 24 hours in line with national guidance.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.2 | Scope IT solution using SALUS whiteboard with use of an icon tracking

Dr lan Higginson | Complete
completion of VTE risk assessment. g8 P

Update on actions

IT solution scoped but it was subsequently agreed that Salus would no longer be pursued as a solution given the planned
implementation of e-Prescribing. This will have a VTE risk assessment feature inherent in it to ensure that this is
completed and the present idea is to trigger a reassessment when a patient moves ward.

In the meantime the VTE team use the daily report on non-compliance with VTE risk assessment to look at where the
worst performing areas are so that they can focus attention on them. There is also monthly monitoring via the Care Group
performance reviews with service lines.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

The table below presents September 2018 data for VTE risk assessment as reported in the National Return. This shows
that the target was exceeded based on current data collection methodology.
[VTE Risk Assessment As Reported in National Return |

= = = = = = = = = = = =

3 = = k. = = 5 = = = = = =
MNo of Admissiions Risk Assessed 8705 8698 7668 8459 T86T 8149 8304 avarv 8746 8645 8368 8135 50945
MNo of Elgible S.dmi ns 2186 179 8156 2900 8471 2449 8537 SO0E6 0442 2960 8719 2466 52 T30
[Percentage Rk Assessea |94 8% |54.8% |94.0% |95.0% |96.3% |96.a% |97.3% |97 12 | 96.7% | 96.5% [96.0% | 96.1% | 566 |
Target 5% D5% 5% B5% 5% 5% 5% 5% D5% 5% D5% 5% 5%

S8 0%

S7.0%

Se.0%

55,0
94.0%
S3.0%

szow

S1.0%

S0.0%

Page 15 of 70



Page 40

MUST DO: Review processes for effective systems to scrutinise morbidity and mortality (M&M) data. Standardise the
format of minutes of M&M meetings to ensure effective sharing of information with those who were unable to attend.
Review and improve the format M&M data was presented to ensure it is transparent, and can allow for challenge.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.3 | 1.Process of quarterly service line reporting into Care Group
performance meeting (started May 2018). Service lines will submit a
written summary report covering mortality screening compliance,
arrangements for conducting mortality screening, scrutiny of HSMR and
SHMI; subject judgement reviews, and how the outputs of screening
feed into Service Line governance meetings.

2. Revise Service Line meetings' toolkit to ensure scrutiny of Dr lan Higginson | 31/12/2018
HSMR/SHMI and screening compliance is undertaken and recorded in
the relevant forum; be that embedded in a clinical governance meeting
or standalone M&M meeting. Engage with clinical governance leads in
design and format, as part of the Medical Care Group's 2018/19
governance plan of which reinvigorating and revamping the clinical

governance leads meeting forum is inherent.

Update on actions

1. A second test of change is planned to be conducted by the end of February 2019 — unlikely to achieve quarterly
reviews.

2. Toolkit revision outstanding. Quality Manager’s engagement with clinical governance leads completed related to
identifying essential criteria to be covered in M&M meetings. Standardised guidance for recording locally within service
lines is being drafted.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Medical Care Group Mortality Review Report. Meeting minutes for Risk and Assurance Meeting.

SHOULD DO: Review arrangements for the safe administering of intravenous fluids for patients receiving
haemodialysis.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.10 | 1. Dialysis machines on Mayflower ward to be upgraded to online
priming which allows fluid to be given as part of the dialysis
programme, when required.

2. Staff to receive training as part of the upgrade. Hilary Cramp 31/01/2019
3. Standard Operating Procedure to be written for staff to follow in
the rare event that intravenous fluids are required in an emergency
situation; supported by a patient group directive (PGD).

Update on actions

1. Completed: There is now a different way of lining and priming the machines with an extra attachment to the dialysis
lines.
2. Staff training completed.

3. The proposed PGD has been drafted and submitted for review by Pharmacy. The senior pharmacist is setting up a
meeting between interested parties to discuss the proposed PGD. Due date for action extended to account for this delay.

Page 16 of 70



Page 41

Assurance that actions have been addressed

1. Signature list of staff training — on line priming.

SHOULD DO: Improve emergency equipment daily checks in line with national guidance. This was highlighted in a
previous CQC inspection and we did not find this had been improved adequately.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.11 | 1. Matron Audit (Meridian) to include the need to escalate omissions
in any aspect of environment safety or equipment checking.

2. Declarations from Matrons outlining the routines in place within
each clinical area within their remit related to daily emergency

. . . Ed Cox 31/12/2018
equipment checks. Standardised proforma to be designed, completed
and submitted to the Care Group management team.

3. Feedback to Care Groups via Nursing & Midwifery Board from

annual audit undertaken by the Resuscitation Team.

Update on actions

1. Meridian audit - draft questions have been developed for Head of Nursing review.

2. Completed: Matrons undertook a spot audit of their inpatient and outpatient areas and presented their findings into
the October Service Line to Care Group performance reviews. Summary report has been written which was reviewed via
the Care Group’s Risk and Assurance meeting in November 2018. The report has been shared for review of
recommendations with the Resuscitation Committee.

3. Annual audit outstanding. Due in February 2019.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Summary report related to spot audit of Emergency Equipment within the Medical Care Group.

SHOULD DO: Ensure substances hazardous to health are stored in line with regulations.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.13 | 1. Conduct awareness campaign related to safe storage of Actichlor
Plus tablets (COSHH).

2. A digilock is to be fitted to an identified cupboard within the sluices
of all inpatient and outpatient clinical areas for Actichlor Plus tablets
to be stored. Ed Cox 31/03/19
3. Review of Matrons environment audit; to revise the dedicated
question related to checking secure storage of disinfectant tablets to
definitively evidence compliance that Actichlor Plus tablets are in a

'locked cupboard'.

Update on actions

1. Awareness campaign run via daily e-mail and vital signs- completed.

2. Following a more detailed review of different areas the ability to place a COSHH cupboard into every sluice raises wider
health and safety considerations. In agreement with the Heads of Nursing for Medicine and Surgery, a revision to action
point 2 has been made. The revised plan is for a digilock to be fitted to an identified cupboard within the sluices of all
inpatient and outpatient clinical areas for Actichlor Plus tablets to be stored. Survey of ward areas to be undertaken to

Page 17 of 70



Page 42

understand volume needed. Due date for action extended to account for this delay.

3. Meridian audit question to be revised; discussions started with the Trust’s Meridian administrator related to building an
audit question.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

1. Evidence of awareness campaign.

SHOULD DO: Monitor, record and audit air pressure levels in positive and negative air pressure rooms in line with
national guidance.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.14 | 1. Install analogue pressure gauges to the 2 Bracken ward negative
pressure isolation rooms A & B and lobby; also the following 10
negative/positive pressure rooms throughout the Terence Lewis
Building.

e L4 Penrose Rm11 & 12

* L6 Torrington Rm 11 & 12

e L6 Torcross Rm 20 & 21

e L7 Clearbrook Rm H

¢ L7 Crownhill Rm K

e L8 Bickleigh Rm H

e L8 Braunton Rm K

2. Estates Team to create a daily check sheet to be used by ward staff

Phil Tarbuck 31/12/2018

to record the room pressures (once the gauges have been installed) in
accordance with guidance.
3. Write an SOP to provide details on how to undertake and record

the daily isolation room pressure checks.

Update on actions

Areas visited during September and discussed with Infection Prevention & Control Team at the September 2018
Ventilation Safety Group meeting. Site visit with contractor undertaken on 03/10/2018 to discuss installation options.
Quote returned on 15/10/18. Cost pressure of approximately £11K + VAT. Access restrictions due to clinical occupation
will move completion date into the first or second quarter of 2019. Action progressing as planned as of 3/12/2018.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Review the suitability of Postbridge ward to accommodate inpatients and overnight.
SHOULD DO: Develop a standard operating procedure to provide guidance for staff about the safe use of escalation
areas including safe staffing levels.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
2.16 | Review the Trust's escalation framework to ensure that a standard Lee Johns 31/01/2019

& operating procedure is an inherent feature that:
2.23

- ensures suitable patients and maximum numbers of patients are
transferred to the designated area.
- provides guidance and a checklist for staff about the safe use of the

designated area including safe staffing levels.

Page 18 of 70



Page 43

Complete risk assessment to determine suitability of Postbridge ward
to accommodate inpatients during periods of operational escalation:
incorporate option appraisal of not using Postbridge.

Update on actions

Agreed via Head of Operations that the Matron for operational site team and Matron for Postbridge to be asked to work
together on undertaking the risk assessment and writing the SOP (risk assessment to be integral to the SOP). To cross
reference with Surgery action Ref 3.12 to include preserving the privacy and dignity of patients. Aim to review and
approve through Emergency Planning Group. Due date extended to account for review and approval stages once final
draft complete. SOP is being drafted.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Improve documentation to easily identify when patients were moved to a different ward and document
the reasons for doing so.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.17 | 1. Scope enhanced utility of an electronic solution (IPMS & SALUS) to
enable 24/7 traceable recording that identifies when patients are
moved to a different ward and document the reasons for doing so. Lee Johns 31/03/2019
2. Based on the identified solution develop a Standard Operating
Procedure

Update on actions

Agreed via Head of Operations that the Matron for operational site team will communicate with the Salus team, review
descriptors already in Salus and the hierarchy of the list of options. A meeting is being arranged between Heads of
Nursing, Site Matron, and the Integration Manager and Solutions Architect.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Ensure nursing care plans are individualised and hold sufficient information to ensure safe and effective
care can be delivered by all staff.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.18 | Nursing and Midwifery Strategic Priorities for 2018-2021 to include a

. . . Bev Allingham 31/03/2019
review and renewal of all nursing care plan documentation.

Update on actions

The latest versions of the risk assessment booklet are being shared. Discharge paperwork and discharge information to
patients is being led as a project under the nursing framework and response to our patients survey, this is progressing.
The rest of the documentation review is delayed due to other competing priorities. Replacement for the Matron of
Clinical Standards post confirmed, start date due in early January 2019.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 19 of 70



Page 44

SHOULD DO: Review clinical guidelines on the trust intranet to ensure they are all current and reflect the most up-to-
date national guidance.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.20 | Service Lines' Clinical Governance Leads to oversee review of clinical
guidelines where the document owner sits within their service and
ensure these are acted upon through their departmental clinical Dr lan Higginson | 31/01/2019
governance structures and submitted to the Audit, Assurance and
Effectiveness team for publication on Trustnet.

Update on actions

The Care Group Director has e-mailed all service line clinical leads requesting that clinical guidelines are brought up to
date or to confirm those to be decommissioned and archived. Updated position presented to attendees at the Care
Group’s Directors, Managers & Matrons meeting. The Care Group Manager is actively chasing via the Service Line
Managers. Further reminders sent during December to relevant services via the quality manager for medicine.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

There are 23 expired clinical guidelines as of 13 December which is an improvement on last month’s position.

SHOULD DO: Improve documentation from treatment escalation plans to ensure these are completed to demonstrate
patients’ choices are considered.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

2.22 | Corporate Level: 1. Implement awareness campaign related to roll out
of version 11 TEP forms (completed).
2. Ensure that all resuscitation training programmes have TEP
education as integral to the curriculum (completed).
3. Undertake monthly audit of TEP via emergency call data collection
(ongoing).
4. Continue ongoing bi-annual hospital audits of TEP forms via
Meridian system undertaken by the Resus and End of Life (EoL) teams . .

. . . Sian Dennison
with results sent to Care Groups for action and further audit as L 31/03/2019

. . Dr lan Higginson

appropriate (audit due by 31/10/2018).
5. Review at End of Life Committee and Resuscitation Committee the
provision of guidance on a percentage achievement related to
accurate completion of TEP forms; and how this will be formally
monitored.
Care Group:
6. Clinical Governance Leads to lead on TEP improvement plan for
their services based on baseline audit results (October 2018 audit).

Update on actions

Trust wide TEP audit completed in October 2018 and presented at the End of Life Committee November 2018. Outcome
of Committee to be communicated to the Care Groups and Service Lines with the next actions to take in order to monitor
the percentage achievement related to accurate completion of TEP forms.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 20 of 70



Page 45

Planned Action

SHOULD DO: Evaluate training needs for training in mental health conditions to enhance staff’s understanding and
ability to care for patients admitted to the acute trust and who suffer from mental health conditions.

2. Actions to be implemented and governed by Care Groups.

Update on actions
Training options are currently being explored.
Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this time.

Ref Action Lead Deadline
2.25 | 1. Scope out the minimum level of mental health training for all 1. Bev
clinical staff through collaboration with Livewell Liaison Psychiatry Allingham
colleagues and by contacting Mark Radford, Director of Nursing NHSI 1.31/12/2018
for any guidance. Draft a minimum standard for UHP to adopt and a 5 Caroline 2.31/03/2019
proposal for how this can be actioned.
Dawe

Page 21 of 70



Page 46

Surgery

MUST DO: Ensure referral to treatment time for incomplete pathways are improved and improve the cancer waiting
times for the percentage of people waiting less than 62 days from urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment.

SHOULD DO: Continue to improve theatre utilisation and reduce the number of theatres cancelled.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.1.2 | The Care Group will continue with Project Persist to ensure that all
3.13 | available Theatre time is optimised to an 85% opportunity and the
Service Line Managers will report to the Care Group Manager around | Jemma Edge 31/03/2019
individual efficiencies within the Service Lines at the Care Group Board

meetings.

Update on actions

The 85% Target continues to be compromised by the non-elective admissions to the hospital which is leading to on the
day cancellations.

Previous Month Cancellations
Surgery - On the day Cancellations
78%
77%
15% 76%6% g 7694 6%
73% 5
70% I
i Sungery
00 00 w.oo [+ <] oo.oo o 00
L B =R == == == =]
OO0 0O 0O O O O O O E s & M 2
NN NN NN NN Tii: | 22 22 5] 1
SS583535355
e e e i e e |
FTA TR D AN T @
O = N N O = = ~n O i THis

Cancelled Operations actions
» New Operations Manager post
»  Oversight of Cardiac cancellations
»  New SOP for starting theatres on time

Specialties position

17/18 Data

Baseline Average YTD
cases per income per ¥YTD Price Volume YTD Total
Service Line list case Varianoce Variance Variance

Project
Workstream

Freedom Specialties

ENT 2.20 £1,470 | -£ 37,938 £ 17,130 (£ 20,808)
General Surgery 2.20 £1,753 £ 9,179 £ 74,920 £ 84,099
Maxille Facial Surgery 2.40 £1,054 £ 45,170 £ 7.169 £ 52,339
Plastic Surgery ~ 2.70 £1,182 -£ 141,174 £ 244,440 £ 103,266
Oesophago-Gastric Surgery 1.30 £2,916 -£ 100,053 £ 151,628 £ 51,57S
Urology 2.00 £1,778 £ 40,717 £ 141,338 _£ 182,054
£ 452,525
Breast Surgery 2.00 £2,140 £ 29,871 -£ 58,852 (£ 28,980)
Colorectal Surgery 1.60 £2,750 -£ 27,833 £ 160,041 £ 132,208
Gynaecology 2.10 £1,501 £ 20,267 £ 33,401 £ 123,668
Ophthalmology 4.50 £782 £ 204,541 -£ 32,474 £ 172,067
Orthodontics 2.80 £620 -£ 921 -£ 5,831 (£ 6,751)
Orthopaedics ‘ 1.80 £3,287 £ 258,104 -£ 154,798 £ 103,306
Restorative Dentistry 2.60 £586 £ 106 -£ 3,515 (£ ) 2)
Vascular Surgery 1.60 £2,528 -£ 118,995 -£ 18,710 [CENINAS )
In Scope Total £ 251,041 £555,887 £1,259,453
. - is = Li
Cardiac Surgery 0.80 £11,451 £ 137,178 -£ 513,007 [CENS b}
Cardiclogy 2.20 £2,136 -£ 266,393 £ 95,820 (£ 170,573)
Dermatology 3.90 £739 -£ 146,838 £ 182,813 £ 35,975
Neurcpathology 2.70 £1,357 £ 11,483 -£ 9,633 £ 1,85
Neurosurgery 0.920 £6,166 -£ 613,856 £ 394,793 (£ 219,063)
PAC 8.30 £659 == 1,925 £ 2,767 = 841
Pain Management 1.40 £2,306 -£ 27,078 £ 14,758 (£ 12,321)
Thoracic Surgery 1.50 £5,752  -£ 65,963 -£ 267,449 [(£11333,313)
Thyroid Surgery 1.30 £2,325 = 8,446 £ 7.325 £ 15,771

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Project performance is monitored via a bi weekly steering group

Operational performance is monitored via Weekly Performance meeting. Exception reporting where opportunity is

Page 22 of 70



Page 47

assessed as significant.
Cancellations are monitored. Ensure all decisions to cancel are escalated to Care Group level.
Distribute data to service lines.

Additional project support added.

SHOULD DO: Ensure cross infection processes are followed in all ward and theatre areas.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.3 | Base line review of current implementation of standards at ward level
to be conducted in Cardiothoracic Theatres and Moorgate ward using
the Infection Prevention and Control Team ward round review. | HoN Surgery Complete
Action plans for improvement to be agreed if these clinical areas are

found to be unsatisfactory.

Update on actions

Cardiothoracic Theatres: Improvements evident in Cardiac Theatres implemented by Senior Sister and Matron. Action
plan in place and to be a regular item on theatre governance agenda until satisfactory completion. Good leadership
demonstrated by Senior Sister and Matron to embed this.

Moorgate: Combined Observation of Care feedback completed and found to be satisfactory.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Combined Observation of Care feedback and Service Line Balanced Scorecard for Moorgate.

SHOULD DO: Ensure products deemed as hazardous to health are locked away and not accessible to patients.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.4 | Baseline review of current storage practice at ward and department
level to be undertaken by the ward or department Manager. HoN Surgery 31/03/2019
Action plans to be developed for non-compliance.

Update on actions

Ward Audit 26/09/2018 Included in Chart Below; Outpatient areas added 07/12/2018

Page 23 of 70



Page 48

Bleach tablets secured COSHH cupboard (Lock to existing cupboard COMMENTS
in sluice in sluice needed?

Ward/Clinic
Stannon YES YES NO
Sharp NO YES NO COSH cuphoard has lock, on audit twice it had been checked and it was locked
Shaugh YES YES NO
Sonehouse NO NO YES
Wolf YES NO YES Currently stored in unlocked cupboard in locked cleaning room
SAU NO NO YES Stored in unlocked high cupboard in sluice
Crownhill NO NO YES Stored in unlocked high cupboard in sluice
Clearbrook NO NO YES
Torrington ICU NO NO YES
Torrington HDU NO SLUICE
Penrose Main Sluice NO NO YES
Penrose Link Sluice NO NO NO Shelving only in sluice
Pencarrow NO NO NO There is already a locked cupboard in pencarrow sluice which contains patient toiletries
Moorgate NO YES NO This is a problem - cupboards are metal - proably better if they lock in COSHH cupboard
Lynher NO NO YES Stored in unlocked high cupboard in sluice
Orthopaedic Outpatients YES YES NO Sluice locked with digi and COSH locked in sluice
ENT Outpatients YES NO NO secured in locked cupboard in sluice
Max Fax YES NO NO Locked COSHH in locked cupboard
Chestnut YES YES NO Secured in locked COSHH in sluice
Main OPD YES YES NO Secured in locked COSHH in sluice
REI YES NO NO Digi locked room with locked cupboards
Erme NO YES YES COSHH cupboard lock broken - could have lock added to white cupboard in sluice
Fal NO YES YES COSHH in sluice not locked - could have a digi on white cupboard
Postbridge NO YES NO Cupboards not suitable for digi - would need to either use lock on coshh or replace cupboards

Audit now includes Outpatient areas to understand in conjunction with Medicine the total number of digilocks that we
will need to procure to cover the trust.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Improve compliance with 95% of venous thromboembolism (VTE) (blood clot) assessments being carried
out for patients in line with national guidance.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
3.5 | Baseline review of current implementation of standards at ward level to Richard
ichar
be provided by Clinical Nurse Specialist (CNS) for VTE. 31/03/2019
Struthers

Action plans for non-compliance to be drafted where required.

Update on actions

Safety Thermometer Data for September 2018 and October 2018 Included in the charts below demonstrates that
compliance reduced from 90% in September to 82% in October. The unacceptable variability in compliance has been
referred to the trust VTE CNS for specialist advice regarding how to take this forward, it is noted that the data does not
suggest a corresponding issue with VTE prophylaxis prescribing.

September 2018
September 2018 Safety Thermometer No Pts/Risk
Ward Assessed Percentage
Stannon 10 patients 10 risk assessed 100%
Sharp 27 patients 27 risk assessed 100%
Shaugh 33 patients 33 risk assessed 100%
Stonehouse 31 patients 28 risk assessed 90%
Wolf 28 patients 22 risk assessed 79%
SAU 20 patients 17 risk assessed 85%
Crownbhill 24 patients 16 risk assessed 67%

Page 24 of 70



Page 49

Clearbrook 26 patients 18 risk assessed 70%

Torrington CICU | 4 patients 4 risk assessed 100%

Torrington HDU | 4 patients 4 risk assessed 100%

Lynher 29 patients 29 risk assessed 100%

Moorgate 24 patients 18 risk assessed 75%

Penrose 10 patients 10 risk assessed 100%

Pencarrow 10 patients 10 risk assessed 100%

October 2018
Ward Number of Patients VTE Risk Assessment Documented  Percentage Risk Assessed Prophylaxis Prescribed  Prophylaxis Not Prescribed  Prophylaxis Not Applicable
Crownhill 26 26 100% 21 0 2
Moorgate 2 15 63% 3 1 0
Clearbrook 25 20 80% pil 1 3
SAU 25 2 88% pil 2 2
Torrington 7 7 100% 7 0 0
Torrington HDU 6 b 100% 6 0 0
Stannon 18 3 2% 15 0 3
Lynher 30 25 83% 25 5 0
Sharp 29 23 79% 2] 0 2
Penrose 13 8 62% 12 0 0
Wolf 28 28 100% 28 0 0
Stonehouse 31 26 84% 26 2 3
Shaugh 31 2 68% 31 0 0
Pencarrow 6 b 100% 6 0 0
Recovery 1 1 100% 1 0 0

300 17 82% 73 11 15
The document below provides a summary of the data on the Performance Dashboards:
gl
TH]

Copy of VTE (2).xlsx
Overall service lines have shown a pleasing improvement since Spring 2018. Review by the Care Group Director has
identified that Cardiac Surgery requires support to improve and Orthopaedics Surgery require support to improve and
understand the variability in compliance. The medium term solution to address VTE Risk Assessment Compliance is the
implementation of the e-prescribing system.
Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Improve compliance with the WHO checklist in the specialities where the 95% compliance target was not

being achieved.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.6 | Continue reviews of non-compliance in regular reporting to Theatres
Clinical Governance Committee. Plan in progress to move to an Jemma Edge
electronic theatre reporting system to improve data quality.

31/03/2019

Update on actions

Page 25 of 70



Page 50

Chart below details August WHO Compliance Data:
Service Line WHO-GA | WHO-La 'C'Z:::I:::? ;;;f:;/ozo(;rs)
Anaesthetics N/A No Data | N/A
Thoracic Surgery 86% 75% GA90% / LA 80%
Vascular Surgery 88% 100% GA91%
Cardiac Surgery 93% No Data Compliant
Colorectal 98% 100% Compliant
Critical Care N/A N/A Compliant
Restorative Dentistry 100% 100% N/A
Max Fax 100% No Data Compliant
Orthodontics 100% No Data | N/A
Dermatology N/A N/A N/A
ENT/Audiology 99% 100% Compliant
General Surgery 97% 100% Compliant
Upper GI 94% 100% GA 93%
HPB N/A Compliant
Majpr Trauma Centre N/A N/A N/A
Neurosurgery 94% 100% LA 94%
Opthalmology 100% 98% Compliant
Chronic Pain Services N/A N/A N/A
Plastic Surgery 94% 96% Compliant
Theatres Central N/A N/A N/A
Orthopaedics 96% 100% Compliant
Fracture Clinic N/A N/A N/A
Rheumatology N/A N/A N/A
Urology 98% 100% LA 75%
Analysis ongoing to understand variability in compliance.
Monitor progress via Clinical Governance framework.
SHOULD DO: Continue to improve staffing levels and ensure they match the acuity of patients on all wards.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.7 | Corporate Establishment review in progress. The Surgical Care Group
will interrogate leavers exit interview data and monitor via Clinical HoN Surgery 31/03/2019
Governance Meetings.

Update on actions

Conducted Establishment review as part of Trust Process. Executive Directors implemented a 14 point action plan for the
short to medium term time line to improve staffing. Establishment reviews nearing completion. Winter recruitment plan

is in process. Work continues to raise awareness of the need for exit interviews with Theatres confirming that a process

Page 26 of 70



Page 51

has been implemented. Band 6 review and 14 Point Plan in progress.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Monitor compliance with the 14 point programme.

SHOULD DO: Improve appraisal levels so that they achieve the trust’s target.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.8 | Review and monitor delivery of all service line action plans.

Care Group to review all trajectories with Cluster Managers during the
Monthly HR Performance Review Meetings and monthly Clinical

) ) o Jemma Edge 31/03/2019
Governance Performance Review meetings. Individual performance
addressed via 1-1 meetings and outcomes escalated at Service Line

Clinical governance meetings.

Update on actions

Care Group Manager meeting with Cluster Managers to identify if there are any other means of supporting this
improvement work.

Service Line Staff Count "In Date" % Total Staff due to be appraised
216 Cardiothoracic & Vascular Surgery Summary 147 85.47% 172
216 Colorectal Surgery Summary 44 88.00% 50
216 Critical Care Summary 170 87.18% 195
216 Dental & Max Fax Summary 37 100.00% 37
216 Dermatology Summary 23 92.00% 25
216 ENT & Audiology Summary 47 90.38% 52
216 General and Upper Gl Surgery Summary 68 86.08% 79
216 Neurosurgery Summary 37 86.05% 43
216 Ophthalmology Summary 62 91.18% 68
216 Pain Senices Summary 11 78.57% 14
216 Plastic Surgery Summary 43 89.58% 48
216 Surgery SL Man Costs Summary 15 71.43% 21
216 Theatres Central Summary 398 85.96% 463
216 Trauma & Orthopaedics and Rheumatology Summary 157 86.74% 181
216 Urology Summary 21 84.00% 25
216 Oesophago-Gastric Surgery Summary 4 80.00% 5
Grand Total 4561 87.61% 5206

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Heat map assessment process completed; need to ensure individual action plans are in place.

SHOULD DO: Ensure all areas used in times of escalation protect patient’s dignity and meet their needs.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.12 | Review operating procedures for converting temporary areas to

inpatient areas, including baseline assessments for prospective areas. | Head of 31/01/2019
Ensure staff are inducted into the area and are aware of mechanisms Operations

for escalation.

Update on actions

This is a Corporate Issue and feeds into the work on discharge and patient flow. The Winter plan needs to consider
assessment of fitness for patients prior to use. Ensure SOP in place for opening of escalation areas. SOP in progress for
Postbridge.

Page 27 of 70



Page 52

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Improve the number of risks on the risk register actioned within the agreed timescales.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.14 | The current process of review via monthly Care Group Governance

meetings and feedback to Service Line Managers to continue. Process
Jemma Edge 31/03/2019

to be actively managed with Service Line Managers to improve

compliance.

Update on actions

Progress Chart below:

Month % Action Plans
Outstanding

(Data obtained from
monthly Risk Management
Performance Report)

May 2018 40%
June 2018 33%
July 2018 40%
August 2018 43%
September 2018 44%
October 2018 44%

No percentage improvement despite prompts to individuals and support. All Action owners identified and escalated to
relevant Service Line Managers and Service Line Cluster Managers to manage. Risk and Incident Manager updating
dashboards so this information is readily available without needing to open each individual risk.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Standardise the format of minutes of mortality and morbidity meetings to ensure effective sharing of
information.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
3.15 | Link in with the Mortality Review Group work to standardise HSMR and Richard 31/03/2019
SHMI triggers to prompt a review of mortality trends. Information will be Struthers

available to the Service Lines via service line dashboards. The group have
agreed a set of principles when reviewing the data that will require a
response from the Care Group / Service Line if.

1. The Service Line Lower Confidence Limits show us as an outlier compared
with similar services. This is consistent with the Service Line dashboards.

2. 5 consecutive data points are showing a negative trend.

Page 28 of 70




Page 53

3. NHSI alert received in relation to any patient group.

Individual service line review at governance meetings to feed up to the Care
Group Board and Governance Leads meetings to facilitate shared learning.
Also feeding back to the Morbidity and Mortality Review Group to facilitate
trust wide learning when relevant.

M&M key findings will be added as an agenda item to the Governance Leads
minuted monthly meeting with the Care Group Director which will ensure

that the key learnings are shared.

Update on actions

Governance Leads Meeting - Agreed learning which should be shared with other Service Lines or Trust Wide from
Morbidity and Mortality Meetings would be a standard item on the Governance Leads Meeting Agenda to retain some
flexibility for Service Lines to record the Morbidity and Mortality meetings in their preferred format. 03/10/2018 Updated
template for Governance Leads Meeting Agenda approved at Care Group Governance Meeting. General Surgery Mortality
Review at Governance Leads meeting 20/11/2018.

Further discussion with the Service Line Governance Leads on 20/11/2018 focussing on the current HSMR figures. It is
clear that there are some data quality issues which the Performance Information Team are aware of and may in part be
attributable to the use of Salus. Performance Information are enlisting NHSI support in addressing this. In particular
Cardiac Surgery and Intensive Care are subject to national audit which suggest that they perform well while having HSMR
levels >200.

Service Line Leads have raised concerns around the current process including screening before referral to ensure that the
case is attributed to the correct Service and timeliness of requesting notes. These will be raised by the Care Group
Director with the Head of Quality Governance.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 29 of 70



Page 54

Maternity

MUST DO: Ensure all staff in maternity have in date mandatory training, including emergency procedures and
safeguarding.

MUST DO (Outpatients): Make sure all staff within the outpatient departments have undertaken mandatory training
updates in line with trust policy.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.1 1. 'Making Every Conversation Count' training to be included and

Mat | documented.

5.1

2. Additional training sessions to be put in place for Evacuation of .
Ali Cowls 30/11/2018

Richard Maguire

op pool training. Train additional B7 coordinators 'train the trainers' to

ease burden on the room and be able to train more staff.
3. Split the data into midwifery, clinical and admin personnel for

accuracy of interpretation and understanding any problems.

Update on actions

e Livewell to assist with “making every conversation count” training.

e  Mandatory pool training — currently at 85% compliant. Need band 7 coordinators who can also formally assess the
competencies of the staff. There is a process for all new staff joining the unit and the mitigation is that there is always
someone trained in evacuation on duty.

e Undertake training at start of each rotation to CDS for midwives.

e Mandatory training can now be separated out for midwives and Medics.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Review the systems and processes to ensure all equipment has been maintained, checked and cleaned ready
for clinical use, including equipment for use in emergencies.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.3.2 | 1. Revise Maintenance Checklist.
2. Formalise and Monitor handover between band 2 staff. 222'::};; Complete

3. Implement Audit programme of cleaning and present and monitor
through Clinical Effectiveness Committee.

Update on actions

1. Matrons for inpatients have updated checklist.

2. Historically handovers were only undertaken between Maternity Care Assistants but they are now involved in the main
handover so that the shift coordinator is aware of any equipment issues. Handover sheet revised. New spreadsheet will
be signed to evidence the conversation has occurred.

3. Separate Matron’s Maternity audit created — HCA room checks, equipment checklist, grab boxes. 6 monthly audit to be
presented at CEC as a standard agenda item.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 30 of 70



Page 55

MUST DO: Review the systems and processes for the safe management of medicines, including replenishment and
storage, both within the hospital and in community.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.4 | 1. Review Homebirth team medicine storage.

2. Add safe storage of medicines to homebirth team induction. Sheralyn Neasham 30/11/2018
3. Implement process for checking of drugs in enhanced observation / Charlotte Wilton
room.

Update on actions

e Induction process for midwives attending Home birth.

e Lead for Homebirth Team to empty and replenish the Homebirth boxes. Photograph how box should be stocked and
design new checklist to reflect the requirement.

e Enhanced Observation room cabinet has been added to the CD checking book. Twice daily check to be conducted.
This will form part of the Matrons audit.

e Stationary cupboard and equipment cupboards are being altered on CDS. All medical equipment will be stored
separately from the stationary. Ongoing work to move equipment and stationary.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure the process for approval to work under Patient Group Directions are consistent with trust policy and

national guidance.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.5 | Circulate PGD Trust policy to all staff ensuring that all staff sign stating
they will adhere to Trust policy.

A PGD midwifery specific package will be developed and added to .
o . . Ceri Staples Complete
mandatory training with a test demonstrating knowledge and
competence.

PGD discussion during PROMPt training.

Update on actions

e Band 7 Midwife (CS) leading on PGDs in department.
e  Emails have been sent to all midwives with the PGD policy attached.

e  Pharmacy hold the signature bank of the number of midwives who have completed E-learning and signed for
competency. Plan for individual signature bank for each drug on PGD list.

e PGD competency can be added to CEC agenda to assure actions are being addressed.
e Lesson plan to evidence PGD discussion/inclusion during MMT week.

e PGD E-learning now approved and in place for completion end December 2018.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

e New education package for midwives via E-learning.
e  PROMPT lesson plan.

e Communication to midwives re: PGDs and signature bank for pharmacy.

Page 31 of 70



Page 56

MUST DO: Consistently achieve internal targets for the use and completion of the WHO safety checklist.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.6 | Complete audit of WHO safety checklists.

All failed forms to go to the Theatre lead for investigation; accurate fails
are sent to the Patient Safety Trust Lead and to all those involved in the
theatre teams for response. Gill Nicholson 31/10/2018
Cluster Manager to discuss with GN regarding keeping target at
optimum level and will meet with GN on a monthly basis to review

problem areas.

Update on actions

e 92% compliance. Email sent to the theatre team involved when WHO checklist is recorded as “failed” for feedback as
to why. This will provide an audit trail.

e WHO checklist failure audits from Maternity theatres to be tabled every 6 months at CEC.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure patient information is protected in clinical areas and records are amalgamated and stored securely
following discharge from the service.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.7 | 1. Clear backlog of notes - complete.

2. Communicate the importance of completing paperwork in a timely
way to Midwifery teams.

3. Weekly audit to be completed by Admin management team on notes | Ali Cowls Complete
in the office for amalgamation.

4. Review current storage of notes and ensure that notes are stored

securely.

Update on actions

Backlog has been cleared and there are daily walk arounds for the department. The importance of completing paperwork
in a timely way has been communicated to Midwifery teams. Weekly audit now completed. Storage has been reviewed
and lockable notes trolleys are now in place for the Antenatal Clinic area.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

To be reviewed.

MUST DO: Improve the process for document control to ensure policies and procedures are reviewed considering
national guidance, before the time of expiry, and only the most recent version is available to staff.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.10 | 1. Review of all guidelines 6 months prior to expiry. Dr Joanne Page | 31/03/2019
2. Historic and rolling review of version control to be revisited to align

Page 32 of 70



Page 57

with review schedule.

Update on actions

The department is notified when guideline/policy document is within 6 months of expiry date. Audit, Assurance and
Effectiveness team provide monthly update on the status of guidelines.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: Ensure all nurses and midwives delivering care within the high dependency unit have been assessed as
competent to care for the critically ill woman.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.11 | 1. Change the name of the room to 'Escalated Observation Area’
2. Ensure staff are aware that this is NOT an HDU area.

Sheralyn
3. Band 7 coordinators to routinely assess that staff working within area feel N hy
easham
able to undertake and escalate appropriately in the context of enhanced Complete
) Charlotte
observations. .
Wilton

4. Ensure that documentation for patients who are admitted to Enhanced
Observation Area reflects the clinical guidelines for that area.

Update on actions
1. & 2. Room has been re-named on white board and on room door. MMT week also now refers as “Enhanced

Observation Room”. Midwives do not provide care for critically ill women. Communications to all staff via Theme of the
week and inclusion in the Mandatory Multi-disciplinary training sessions.

3. Incorporate the training on the monitor as part of the rotation to CDS. Utilise the ORE/Ward Manager at the start of
rotation to assist in the updating of staff at the start of their rotation. Staff have a check list to sign off that they are
competent to do. There is a plan for introduction of “return to CDS” induction for staff rotating back to the area.

4. Guideline and observation charts updated to reflect the changes.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

To be reviewed.

MUST DO: Ensure Modified Early Obstetric Warning Score (MEOWS) charts are used consistently and escalation occurs
in accordance with policy.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.12 | Audit MEOWS charts of inpatients every 6 months. Sheralyn
Complete
Neasham

Update on actions

Added to the audit routine schedule; first audit completed and presented as part of audit schedule at monthly Clinical
Effectiveness Committee.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

MEOWSs audit now on audit schedule. Plan for addition to Meridian to facilitate ease of recording.

Page 33 of 70



Page 58

MUST DO: Review the process for classifying serious incidents and external reporting to ensure that all incidents
meeting the criteria are reported appropriately. Ensure backlog of actions for serious incidents is completed.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.13 | 1. Implement LMS agreement for Pan-Devon Definition of Serious .
Sue Wilkins

Incidents within Maternity. . 30/11/2018
Helen Harling
2. Backlog to be cleared.

Update on actions

There has been a Pan-Devon agreement on the classification of serious incidents which has resulted in the cooling babies
incidents to now become reportable on STEIS. Rachel Sturley is lead observation for the LMS.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Consider how to make morning multi-disciplinary handover on delivery suite more efficient and if the two
handovers can be merged to maximise a coordinated approach. Consider how actions and information resulting from
these handovers is captured.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.14 | 1. Joint review of handover by Maternity Matron and Service Line Peter Scott

Director. Sheralyn 31/01/2019

2. Electronic or paper capture of handover to be commenced. Neasham

Update on actions

New handover sheet developed to ensure that all high risk patients and outliers are discussed as well as priority of
patients. Matron to compile Survey Monkey re: staff shift start and finish times.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Continue with the plans already initiated for a midwifery-led service to comply with national guidance.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.16 | Continue to raise awareness through the LMS, Board Reporting and
the Risk Register of inequality with the backdrop of the financial Sue Wilkins Ongoing
position.

Update on actions

There have been 11 business cases submitted over the last 7 years for a midwifery-led unit that have been rejected. This
will go through the investment panel again.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 34 of 70



Page 59

SHOULD DO: Expand the use of clinical audit and other improvement tools to proactively measure service delivery.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.17 | 1. Band 6 support Midwife (0.4 wte) to support Audit schedule.
2. Formal allocation of audits. .
. . o . Tim Hookway
3. Reporting of audits and monitoring of schedule through Maternity L Grah Complete
auren Graham
Clinical Effectiveness Committee and in Maternity Governance Report
through Quality Assurance Committee.

Update on actions

1. 0.4wte band 6 Audit Midwife in post and will liaise with Consultant Obstetrician regarding allocation of audit to junior
doctors.
2. Audit schedule in place with rolling presentation to Monthly Maternity Governance Meeting (CEC).

Assurance that actions have been addressed

To be submitted.

SHOULD DO: Evaluate the roster to identify if midwifery staff shortages are disparate across the service and

disproportionally affect one part of the pregnancy.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.18 | Rosters will be reviewed and, if required, staff will be re-allocated to Sheralyn Neasham
] 31/10/2018
balance areas. / Charlotte Wilton

Update on actions

Communication to staff re change to recording on MAPs for daytime escalation of specialist midwives. Added to audit
schedule for Maternity and Obstetrics Governance meeting (CEC).

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: A risk assessment for the safe storage of medical gases should always be available to staff.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.19 | Risk assessment to be completed and shared with staff. Tracey Sargent 31/10/2018

Update on actions

Matron met with Paul Commander from Estates. Cupboard cleared of homebirth equipment and entonox gas cylinders
and has been reassessed. Matron is liaising with the Health and Safety Team regarding moving spare 02 cylinders for
resuscitaires to outside gas storage facility. The Homebirth team lead has drafted a SOP for carriage of entonox to
homebirth.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 35 of 70



Page 60

SHOULD DO: Review the process for ensuring hazardous chemicals are consistently locked away and not accessible to
unauthorised persons.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

4.20 | Review the process for ensuring hazardous chemicals are consistently | Sheralyn c let
omplete
locked away and not accessible to unauthorised persons. Neasham P

Update on actions

COSHH cabinets are now available in all clinical areas.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Consider how to increase information technology in the community, and specifically access by community
midwives to maternity guidance and blood results.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
4.21 | Business case for the solution to be repeated and placed on Risk Ali Cowls c let
omplete
Register if not financially or physically achievable. Charlotte Wilton P

Update on actions

IT access for community staff is on the Risk Register:
Risk Register ID 6296 - Evolution Maternity System — Unsupported software by supplier DXC - Moderate Risk.
Risk Register ID 4033 — Inconsistent access to patient information via ICT systems - Moderate Risk.

Business case has been re-submitted.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Page 36 of 70



Page 61

Outpatients

SHOULD DO: Make sure all staff working in clinical outpatient areas are ‘bare below the elbow’ in line with best
practice and trust policy.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

5.4 | Reiteration to all outpatient areas via daily email.

Completion of Spot Checks.

Department Assurance Assessment Framework (DAAF) to be completed.
Areas/service to produce action plans to improve any deficiencies.

Update on actions

DAAF audits have been completed during November and initial first review indicates that only one area had staff at time
identified as not being bare below elbows. This was actioned at the time of assessment and escalated to the Unit Manager
and Matron. As this is only a yearly audit it is important that we continue with development of monthly outpatient
department audit and this question will form part of that audit. Paper copy sent to Meridian for implementation as a test
audit Monday 3rd December. Once this is on Meridian we will undertake trials/tests in 4-5 areas to ensure that this is fit
for purpose and then the expectation will be that this audit is undertaken a minimum of once per month with results to

Rachael Buller | 31/12/2018

form part of the governance structure at 1-1s.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Take steps to provide sufficient seating and outpatient waiting areas facilities for patients attending
appointments.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

5.5 | Service lines to review their waiting areas and submit plans to provide
. . Rachael Buller 31/12/2018
sufficient seating to OPD Board.

Update on actions

Information has been requested from Service Lines and will be co-ordinated in a document for submission to OPD
Performance and Governance Meeting in January 2019. Care Groups and Service Lines remain in charge of managing the
risk and managing/requesting works.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Make sure patient notes are stored securely when not in use in outpatient clinics.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

5.6 | Reiteration to all outpatient areas through daily email. Rachael Buller 31/12/2018
Completion of Spot Checks.

Department Assurance Assessment Framework (DAAF) to be completed.
Areas/service to produce action plans to improve any deficiencies.

Liaise with Vanessa Bennett in relation to the Health records audits that are

Page 37 of 70



Page 62

undertaken to gain a better understanding of what is audited and what can
be audited in future and increase regularity if possible.

Update on actions

TADAFF and DAFF currently auditing. Yearly audits being undertaken by Health Records and monitored through Health
Records Board. Requested addition to Meridian in monthly outpatient department audit. Email to be sent out via daily
email. Posters have been distributed to all OPD areas.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Ensure that learning from any serious incidents is embedded within the relevant department and the
wider organisation.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

5.7 | Serious incidents are discussed, shared and disseminated through the
Care Group and Service Lines Clinical Governance Structure.
Appropriate learning will be shared across the Trust via the OPD Board.
. . . L . Rachael Buller 31/12/2018
Develop reports for Trustwide review of serious incidents in OPD areas
with the aim for OPD Performance and Governance to understand

trends and themes.

Update on actions

This is already being managed within Service Lines and Care Groups so assurance can be given that issues are being dealt
with but OPD Board want to be able to have oversight. A location review has therefore been requested to be able to pull
information from Datix; this is currently underway.

Request submitted for Dashboard and with Risk Team to undertake; they are currently working on this development.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Agenda item and discussion at OPD Performance and Governance meetings.

SHOULD DO: Keep patients informed of delays in outpatient clinics making sure staff communicate effectively with
patients with disabilities and sensory loss.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
5.8 | Gain understanding of ways to improve communication using different Rachael
achae
types of technology and understanding best practice across Trust at
vp gy & P Buller/Kerry 31/12/2018
OPD Forum. .
Richardson

Implement identified actions across OPD areas.

Update on actions

This is on the agenda for OPD forum on 10th December and also forms part of the Fundamentals of Care audit that all
OPD areas should be completing. Service Lines/Heads of Departments should have awareness of their results and be
putting in place action plans to rectify any deficits.

Communication boxes are in the development stage and will include things such as:

o Hospital communication book

. Hospital Passports and add-ons for example autism, mental health, epilepsy, learning disabilities, carers
. A small portable hearing loop

. Getting to know me book — laminated

Page 38 of 70



Page 63

o Laminated A-Z Makaton signs

o Laminated A-Z BSL Signs

. Dyslexia sheets

. Instructions for SignLive

. Magnifying sheet

. How to guides for staff for access to braile and large print etc

. Details on the red bag scheme

. Accessible information standard

o Checklist for staff

This will be taken to the Derriford User Group, meeting with matrons, ward sisters, outpatient forum etc. with some
sample boxes in early February for comments before we agree the planned roll out.
Not applicable at this stage.

Page 39 of 70



Page 64

Trust Wide

Referral to Treatment

MUST DO: Make significant improvements to meeting the needs of patients in the diagnostic imaging departments in
terms of timeliness of their appointments.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
6.2.1 Ensure achievement of the improvement trajectory as agreed with
Imaging | NHSI.

Update on actions

Graph 1: Shows achievement of DM01 waiting times against agreed NHSI trajectory

Jacqui Beer 31/03/2019
Reduce DMOL1 reportable tests > 6 week waits to 3.4% by March 2019 a 103/

(detailed action plan in place)

30.0%

Diagnostic Performance (%) against plan

25.0%

23.9% 23.9%

20.0%

20.1%

15.0%

16.7%

10.0%

5.0% -

0.0% -

12.3% I
]
_—

Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

N

~

o
12]70_1_275%\

N N ! I

| — - e e e

B PHNT performance  ——Trajectory National standard National performance ‘

Graph 2: Shows achievement of DMO01 for MRI only against trajectory

900

MRI: No. waiting > 6 wks vs trajectory

800

700
600 -
500

400

300

~~

200

100

— \\

Apr 18

May 18
Jun 18
Jul 18

Aug 18
Sep 18
Oct 18

Nowv 18

Dec 18
Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

—4—Actual =—l=—Trajectory

1)

Key actions to increase MRI capacity in 2018/19:
Increase mobile capacity via “Interim” pad — COMPLETE Aug 2018

Page 40 of 70



Page 65

2) Increase scanning at peripheral sites (Care UK & DDRC) — DDRC plan now changed to on site “Oak Tree Pad” —

COMPLETE: start date 8/10/18. Care UK - expected start date 7th Jan 2019.

Graph 3: Shows achievement of DMO1 for CT only against trajectory

CT: No. waiting > 6 wks vs trajectory

900
800
700

A\
o — LN

400
300
200
100

Apr18
May 18
Jun 18
Jul18
Aug 18
Sep 18
Oct 18
Nov 18
Dec 18
Jan 19
Febh 19
Mar 19

== Actual ==k=—Trajectory

Key actions to increase CT capacity in 2018/19:
1) “Lightspeed” refurbishment — COMPLETE Aug 2018
2) Increase mobile capacity via “Interim” pad — COMPLETE Aug 2018

3) Utilise Alliance PET/CT scanner for routine CT outpatient scanning — COMPLETE: start date 7/11/18

Graph 4: Shows achievement of DMO01 for Non Obs Ultrasound only against trajectory

Non Obs U/S: No. waiting > 6 wks vs trajectory
800

S —

500 L ———

e X
N\

200
100

Apr18
May 18
Jun 18
Jul18
Aug 18
Sep 18
Oct 18
Nov 18
Dec 18
Jan 19
Febh 19
Mar 19

=@—=Actual ==h=Trajectory

Key actions to increase Non Obs Ultrasound capacity in 2018/19:
1) Development of new scanning room on Acute Assessment Unit — COMPLETE July 2018

2) Staff 3 additional sessions on SAU in the afternoons — COMPLETE: started Oct 2018

Graph 5: Shows achievement of DMO01 for Endoscopies only against trajectory

Page 41 of 70




Page 66

Endoscopy: No. waiting > 6 wks vs trajectory

700
600
500
400
300
200
100

Apr May Jun18Jul18 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan19 Feb Mar
18 18 18 18 18 18 18 19 19

=4—=Actual —E=Trajectory

Key actions to increase Endoscopy capacity in 2018/19:

1) Recruitment to fill 6 WTE nursing vacancies — position improved down to 2.5wte vacant — nurses being trained —
should be fully operational Feb/Mar 2019.

2) “Insource” additional capacity at weekends — started — extending through to March 2019.

3) Demand & Capacity exercise to be revisited due to increase in 2ww referrals — work is complete and results show
the capacity gap remains through to the financial year end.

4) NEW ACTION: Initial meeting with Four Eyes took place on 11t Dec 2018 — plan is to work with them on
improving productivity within the Endoscopy suite ASAP — timescales TBC.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Graph 1 shows that the DMO01 standard performance is ahead of trajectory [12.5% versus plan of 14.3%] as at Month 8.

MRI - actions progressing well. Graph 2 demonstrates reduction in the number of waiters > 6 weeks is ahead of trajectory
as at November 2018 and more capacity comes online from January 2019.

CT - actions progressing well. Graph 3 demonstrates the number of waiters > 6 weeks as at November 2018 is significantly
(-784) reduced compared to July 2018 and ahead of trajectory by 140.

Non Obs Ultrasound — actions complete. Graph 4 demonstrates reduction in the number of waiters > 6 weeks is
significantly ahead of trajectory as at November 2018.

Endoscopy — despite recruitment progress and confirmation of “in-sourcing” through to March 2019, the capacity gap
remains such that c. 400 6 week breaches are currently forecast for the end of March 2019 position. Consequently, a
dialogue with Four Eyes has commenced to use their expertise to help improve our productivity and thus gain more
capacity internally.

MUST DO: Ensure referral to treatment time for incomplete pathways are improved and improve the cancer waiting
times for the percentage of people waiting less than 62 days from urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment.
MUST DO: Bring the current outpatient referral to treatment time target into line with targets.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

3.1.1 Ensure achievement of the improvement trajectory as agreed with NHSI.

Surgery | Maintain incomplete pathways and reduce 52 week waits by 50%
5.2

oP

L . . . . Jacqui Beer 31/03/2019
compared to March 2018 position in line with national planning guidance

and commissioned levels of activity

Update on actions

Page 42 of 70



Page 67

Graph 1: Shows the number of RTT incomplete pathways against trajectory

Total No. of incomplete pathways against plan

27000 26758

26500

26000 -

25500

25000

24500

24000

23500

23000 T T T T T T
Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

mm TOTAL Incomplete Pathways —m-Trajectory: Incomplete Pathways —+—Trajectory: Incomplete Pathways (adj CUK)

Graph 2: Shows RTT performance (% within 18 weeks) against trajectory

Incomplete Pathways Performance (%) against plan

93.0%

91.0%

89.0%

87.0% - —

85.0%

83.0%

BLO% 79 7% . 3% 79.5% 80.1% 79.5% 79.6% 79.9%

79.0% ¥ 788%

77.0% :I I

75.0% - . ‘ : ‘ : ‘ : ‘ : . :
Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

B PHNT performance  ===PHNT trajectory = ——National standard National performance

Graph 3: Shows the number of RTT 52 week waiters against trajectory

RTT: 52 week waiters

250

200

150
113
100 -
50 \I—*’\\‘;
U ,

Mar-18 Apr-18 May—ls Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

I Actual —4—Trajectory

Page 43 of 70




Page 68

Status of Key projects relating to maintenance of RTT standards

1.

Outpatient Productivity Programme

&)

TME OPPROD
111218 v2.pptx

Theatre Productivity Programme (PERSIST)

2.

The 85% Target continues to be compromised by the non-elective admissions to the hospital which is leading to on

the day cancellations.

Utilisation in Freedom Theatres

i Daata

Liam joined
Freedom

"PERSIST
I Team

Utilisation (%)

I Project

Urology POD
Recavery Trial

Band 7
|Secondment

| Launch

Launch

Ends

Mean

Upper Control

Limit a

= ===~ Upper Control
Limit a
p+20

p+30

= = = = Lower Control

Limit a
p-20

8102/11/02
SI0Z/TT/ET
102/ TT/90
ST0Z/0T/0E
0Z/oT/ET
810Z/01/91

— e — — o— S10Z/0T/60

810z/07/20
810Z/60/52
S102/60/8T
S02/60TT
S10Z/60/v0
810Z/80/82
102/80/12
S10Z/B0bT
S10Z/80/L0
8102/ £0/TE
S102/£0'vE
10T/ 0/ LT
a10Z/£0/0T
S10Z/£0/E0

........................ 8102/90/92

810Z/90/61
810Z/90/21
S102/90/S0
S102/50/62
102/s0/2e
B10Z/S0/ST
8102/50/80
S102/S0/T0
S10Z/pQbT

||||||||| S10Z/b0/LT

8102/b0/0T
0/ bYED
MOT/EWLT
S10z/E0/02
ST0T/EQET
a10z/E0/90
G vl
810Z/20/02
S102/20/ET
9102/20/90
8T0Z/T0/0E

81021020

120%

100%

80%
60%
40%

(%) uonesinn

20%

0%

Lower Control

Limita
y-30

Date

Cancellations.

Surgery - On the day Cancellations

—Sugery

—Linear (Surgery]

>

sa e
20a yuz
a sz
29a puzz
200 yisT
290 w9t
s uier
290wt
2au

saguw

3sa st

on sz
noN preT
on oz
Aon wiot
AT ST
ronma

premn

non T

pous:
pouKT

. vopuz

PO T

pousT
= pourt
vous
nouwe
vost
wos ez
was uiwr

Aeva wist
Aevawist

- Ao e

feviue
Aoy

warew BT

- wsien iz

W Tz
warer it
e s
e iz
e e
W s

s 2t

Ais Tie

Page 44 of 70



Page 69

6.

Freedom Specialties (Area of most Opportunity)

v

-ITheatre Utilisation (Based on Touchtime)
Spedialty -T|Baseline Target Weekly Monthly YTD
ENT 69% 79%  69% WNCYLTE
General Surgery 68%: 79%
Maxillo Facial Surgery 67%
Ophthalmology 93%
Orthodontics 80%
Plastic Surgery 71%, . 80%  73% BWhwis ... 11%
Restorative Dentistry 60%
Urology 67%

Development of new partnership working with Care UK
Project was signed off by the Trust Board at the end of August 2018. The transfer of patients onto UHP’s waiting
list and the new activity schedule commenced in November.

Development of 3" Cath Lab

]

Cath Lab Nov 18
update. pptx

Consultant recruitment in Medical Specialties
Update on planned recruitment:

e 11th respiratory consultant starting September 2018 - STARTED but 10th leaving in November so will be
going out to advert to fill that vacancy. Two further new posts have now been agreed but won’t see benefit
until Summer 2019.

e  Recruitment drive from Spain to allow for additional General Internal Medicine support releasing current
consultants to OP and IP activity - On plan. Two started in November — progressing with induction — expect
benefits will be realised in New Year.

e  Permission being sought for 12th Cardiologist — Agreed (locum currently in post, 7 interviews for substantive
post take place in December).

e Additional acute medical consultants out to advert to help with weekend working (urgent care activity) —
Delays with Royal College but progressing — expect to go out to advert imminently.

e Diabetes consultant post out to advert as an additional post to support community working which has
already shown a reduction in acute demand - Interviews Dec 2018 — appointed.

e Permission sought for 2 Gastroenterology posts which will go to advert in October 18 and allow the specialty
to return to baseline establishment. 2 applicants — interviews January 2019.

e Hepatology - 6th consultant agreed due to drop in hours for health reasons from existing consultant body.
Post recruited to — start date Jan 2019.

e Neurology — new consultant started Sep 18.

e  HCE - new consultant - started beginning of Nov 2018.

e Nephrology have successfully recruited to vacancies securing activity levels — Complete.

Improved administrative functions in specified Service Lines
Work progressing well in Cardiology & Thoracic medicine.

= .- |

G - Cardiology G - Thoracic Medicine
Clinical AdministrationClinical Administration

Page 45 of 70




Page 70

7. Reduction of diagnostic waiting times

Graph below shows how performance against the national diagnostic waiting times standard is improving and ahead
of trajectory as at the end of November 2018.

Diagnostic Performance (%) against plan
30.0%
e 0% 23.9% 23.9%
20.0%
16.7%

0% T12.3%
10.0%

5.0%

"1 =1 [ el ||
0.0% [ [ [ [ — = — —
Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
mmm PHNT performance ——Trajectory National standard National performance

8. Demand management - roll out more Advice & Guidance schemes as per CQUIN
Action plan attached.

j
1l

ARG Action Plan
vOct18.xls

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Graph 1 demonstrates that the number of incomplete pathways is now higher than the trajectory. The main reasons for
the increase include:

e Above planned level of referrals in October and November 2018 (60% of increase are 2 week waits).
e  Ophthalmology: lack of junior doctors in first 6 months of financial year — now recruited.
e Neurosurgery: demand higher than capacity — plan to recruit 1 or 2 new Consultants.

e Neurology: new consultant recruited as per business plan but another leaving has meant no increase in capacity.
Further CNS posts have been approved and are being recruited to.

Graph 1 demonstrates that although the number of patients waiting has increased (Graph1l) the same level of
performance is being achieved in terms of length of wait.

Graph 3 demonstrates that the number of 52 week waiters is close to trajectory. The number of 52 week breaches has
reduced by 73 patients since June 2018.

Update on actions in previous section shows progress to date.

MUST DO: Bring the current cancer wait targets, especially for two-week wait and 62-day pathways into line with
targets.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
3.1.1 To achieve the 62 day standard trajectory as agree with NHSI and Sian Dennison 31/03/2019
Surgery | achieve the 2ww standard. (detailed action plan in place) (62 day)/Jacqui
5.3 Beer (2ww)

Page 46 of 70



Page 71

Update on actions

2 week waits

Detailed action plan for 2 week wait recovery attached:

)

2WW Project Plan
and Task Lists.xlsx

Table 1: Shows 2 week wait performance for last 12 months

Cancer standard IVANCEIAN Dec-17 | Jan-18 | Feb-18 | Mar-18 | Apr-18 | May-18 | Jun-18 | Jul-18 | Aug-18 [ Sep-18 | Oct-18 Nov-18

2 week wait standard 93% 92.6% | 92.6% | 94.3% | 89.5% | 88.5% [ 90.0% | 90.6% | 92.3% | 94.8% | 95.4% | 95.4% 95.4%
2 week wait standard: Breast Symptomatic 93% 21.7% 21.9% 84.8% 80.0% 51.0% 89.1% 84.1% 88.0% 96.9% 92.2% 98.2% 97.5%

The action plan has delivered in terms of improved performance. Table 1 shows that the Trust has achieved the 2 week
wait standard in from August onwards.

The 2 week wait standard for Breast Symptomatic patients has been a challenge over the last 12 months predominantly
due to staffing issues within the specialty but recent performance has improved dramatically; the standard was achieved
in August 2018, marginally missed in September 2018 (there were 7 breaches of the standard all of which were patient
choice delays) and achieved again in October and November 2018. Position is monitored daily to ensure adequate
capacity is available.

62 day standard
62 Day Remedial Cancer Action Plan to improve 62 day performance and reduce backlog and 104 day breaches:

j
i

Cancer Plan
Template November &

Graph 1: Shows 62 day performance for this year to date against trajectory.

Cancer 62 day Performance (%) against plan

90.0%

85.0% f

80.0% £ \

75.0%

~
70.0% I
65.0%

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

5.1%
75.4%

73.5%
73.6%

B UHP performance ——Trajectory National standard National performance

Graph 2: Shows 62 day backlog of incomplete pathways against trajectory.

Page 47 of 70



Page 72

(Note: Position as at 11" Dec 2018)

62 day backlog

160
140
120
100
80
60

40

20

Apr-18  May-18  Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18  Sep-18  Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Actual no. incomplete 62-104 days mmmActual no. incomplete >104 ——Trajectory

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Action plans demonstrate progress of detailed cancer site tasks.
Plans are monitored fortnightly at the Trust Management Executive Meeting.

The backlog of incomplete pathways reduced from August to the end of October (see Graph 2) but started to increase
again in November due to capacity shortfalls and an increase in tertiary referrals. As at the 11t December the position
has improved again but it should be noted that the Trust is approximately 50 patients behind trajectory. Further actions
are being developed to return to the trajectory as soon as possible. Operational pressures and staffing issues remain the
key challenges combined with the continual growth in demand; 2 week wait demand is 17% higher than the previous
year.

MUST DO: Work with stakeholders and commissioners to address the failure to meet almost all the national targets or
standards for patient care. This includes most significantly the cancer standards and the failure of diagnostic standards.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.3 | COO to write to Chair of Western Locality Board to arrange a discussion

TW | on how best to pick these issues up. )
) . Kevin Baber 31/03/2019
Series of UHPNT/CCG Exec to Exec meetings to be arranged to agree

areas of joint work.

Update on actions

CCG have been contacted to discuss the action. There is a renewed focus at system level to support performance and to
find alternative provision to support UHP position where possible.

The Trust attends the monthly Devon wide STP cancer group to address operational and strategic issues to improve
cancer pathways and work with primary care to ensure a unified approach.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Limited assurance at this point as other providers also struggling with constitutional standards.

Page 48 of 70



Page 73

Equipment

MUST DO: Ensure all equipment is serviced as required, and put in place appropriate monitoring systems to provide
oversight of equipment servicing.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.4 | MEMS action: Database goes live Nov
U&E | 1. Implement new medical devices database with service 2018. Accumulated annual
4.3.1 scheduling and accumulate data for reporting. This is linked to the | Jonathan data available Nov 2019.
Mat RFID project (and Scan4Safety), which will enable better tracing of | Applebee RFID project planned to be
medical devices for maintenance. implemented during 2019.
2. Increase capacity in Clinical Engineering’s Technical Inspector Additional Technical
role which carries out routine testing of medical devices. Inspector recruitment
planned for Autumn 2018.

Update on actions

Go live date for e-Quip database has been delayed until January 2019 due to synchronising availability of supplier training
resources, on-site training accommodation and UHP IM&T resources. The RFID project is on schedule for implementation
in the first quarter of 2019.

Additional Technical Inspector recruitment has been delayed pending successful award of contract, date unknown. We
are exploring other funding possibilities.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Sepsis

MUST DO: Ensure patients presenting with possible sepsis are recognised, started on a treatment pathway and
administered antibiotics within 60 minutes.

SHOULD DO: Ensure awareness of the sepsis care bundle is rolled out to all inpatient wards and departments.

SHOULD DO: Undertake sepsis audits on all wards where sepsis might occur.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
1.6 1. Quality Improvement programme agreed with the CCG in place;
U&E concentrating on admission and assessment areas.
221 2. Continuous prospective audit of all cases presenting with severe
Med sepsis in ED with recurrent PDSA of interventions to improve to 31/03/2019
Su‘:’:ery 90%. Paul Quality Improvement
3. Educational programme - Turbo teaching, posters; investigate any | McArdle programme will be
case where severe sepsis has resulted in severe decline or death. ongoing.
4. NEWS2 will go live in MAU areas as of September 2018, and
remaining inpatient areas by December 2018 to increase
likelihood of sepsis identifications

Update on actions

Page 49 of 70



Page 74

1. Sepsis action plan is in place. Sepsis screening tool incorporated into NEWS observation booklet to raise the profile of
sepsis screening.

2. Audits currently taking place using data to drive improvement accepting that this is a new process which requires
embedding across the organisation.

3. Ongoing — Sepsis nursing team is leading education. Report of training uptake for NEWS2 in progress to define areas
requiring support. Training in NEWS 2 for all ward areas publicised and wards submitting training assurance figures.
This will be used to drive assurance process and to achieve standardised implementation and escalation.

4. NEWS2 is live in the Emergency Department and has been rolled out across the whole of MAU; we are in the process
of finishing training for Tamar staff. On plan for December roll out continuing into new year, to align with Sepsis
CQUIN requirements.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

DolS

MUST DO: Be assured that the trust is meeting its obligations to have a legal basis to deprive someone of their liberty.
Ensure that Deprivation of Liberty Safeguard rules applications are fully understood, recognised and created by those
staff who are accountable and responsible for the application.

MUST DO: Ensure Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards are applied for in accordance with legal requirements.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
7.2 | 7. The Medical lead for MCA has recently retired and Executive review is taking
TW | place to ensure that there is medical oversight and liaison within the Trust. This Action 7
2.4 | \ill further strengthen the ability to improve information sharing and liaise Alison O'Neill 01/10/2018
Med with staff at all levels and drive the service forward at Executive level. This is and Angela

secondary to the Trust Safeguarding Nursing service contribution. Hill Action 8

8. Medicine Care Group to develop action once corporate process review and 31/03/2019

surveillance systems are approved and in place by the corporate lead.

Update on actions

e There s still a need to appoint a medical lead for the Trust for MCA. This has been raised with Executive leads via the
Steering Group and placed on the Trust risk register; it is being reviewed.
e Executive review is taking place to ensure that there is medical oversight and liaison within the Trust.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Further time is needed to audit and offer assurance that improvements have been embedded into practice. It is expected
that further audit will be completed by January 2019.

Page 50 of 70



Page 75

Mandatory Training

SHOULD DO (Urgent & Emergency): Ensure all staff are up-to-date with mandatory and safeguarding training.

MUST DO (Medicine): Improve training compliance for medical staff undertaking mental capacity assessment.

SHOULD DO (Medicine): Review the level of child protection training and compliance for staff providing care and
treatment for young adults under the age of 18 years.

SHOULD DO (Medicine): Improve training compliance with Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.
SHOULD DO (Medicine): Improve compliance with mandatory training for medical staff to meet the trust target.
SHOULD DO (Surgery): Improve mandatory and safeguarding training levels so that they achieve the trust’s target.
SHOULD DO (Surgery): Improve mental capacity and deprivation of liberty training levels for medical staff and nursing
staff so they achieve the trust's target.

MUST DO (Maternity): Review the systems and processes for ensuring all staff, including medical staff who do not
attend mandatory training are followed up and training is completed.

MUST DO (Outpatients): Make sure all staff within the outpatient departments have undertaken mandatory training
updates in line with trust policy.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

1.13 | To be defined — please see update below.
2.5
2.8
2.9
2.12
3.2
3.10
4.2
5.1

TBC 31/03/2019

Update on actions

There are nine separate ‘Must Do’ Requirement Notices or ‘Should Do’ recommendations related to mandatory training.
Whilst initial actions had originally been identified, on reflection, a piece of work has now been initiated by the Quality
Managers to develop a unified and pragmatic way forward to address these. This has commenced with identifying the
causes of non attendance at training, their individual repercussions and the controls in place at that point in the chain of
events. A number of further actions have been identified together with a confidence rating which has helped to identify
the likely success this will give against different staff groups. The revised actions are in the process of development and
agreement and will be reflected in future updates on delivery of the action plan.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

Other Trustwide Actions

MUST DO: Address and resolve the remaining issues with staff and staff groups who do not feel valued and supported.
Ensure that action is taken to address behaviour that is inconsistent with the values of the organisation.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.1.2 | Expand and increase profile of the Your Voice methodology as a | Kevin Baber Embedded within
means of enabling staff to speak up. Through all leadership roles, Care group review
within Care Groups. Require Care Groups to report on Your Voice process by
sessions that have taken place and emerging themes to Care Group 30/11/2018.

Page 51 of 70



Page 76

review. Key themes to be reviewed and followed up.

7.1.4 | Explore the introduction of an independent raising concerns .
. ) . Claire Underdown | 30/11/2018
mechanism (Speak in Confidence) for staff concerns.

7.1.5 Introduce a 360 degree appraisal process as part of leadershi
& PP P P P Claire Underdown | 31/03/2019
development.

7.1.6 | promote a top 20% Staff survey response rate. Claire Underdown | 31/12/2018

Update on actions

7.1.2 Email sent to Care Groups w/c 22 October. Performance Review now contains a section asking about staff
engagement activity in Care Groups and the emerging themes. Work continues in Pathology, Imaging and Pharmacy as
specific priority areas. Pulse survey in place in Pharmacy and IM and T as a trial before implementing Trustwide in
January.

7.1.4 Independent concerns mechanism investigated but not being taken forward as not fit for purpose. Alternative route
within Guardian webpage still being explored.

7.1.5 360 constructed based on NHSI 360 process has been tested with changes now taking place. Will be trialled with
Trust Board prior to 31 December 2018.

7.1.6 Staff survey has been promoted widely in the organisation and has now closed.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

7.1.1 All staff email sent on 24/9/18 from Ann James.
7.1.3 Publicised in Vital Signs 19/10/18 and Daily Email 22/10/18.

7.1.6 National reporting data from Picker.

SHOULD DO: Demonstrate in the board papers the open and professional challenge we were told happened.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.8 | Board Secretary to ensure that any challenge at the Board and its
Committees is minuted and the nature of the challenge is accurately
and clearly stated in the minutes. Invitations to Board members to raise
guestions on any item are always minuted, as is any response made.
When no questions arise, this is also minuted to reflect no challenge Gill Hunt Complete
having been made. This approach to minute taking will continue for the
Board and its Committees.

Director of Corporate Business, Chairman and Committee Chairs to
review all Minutes to ensure that challenge is adequately captured.

Update on actions

Invitations to Board members to raise questions on any item are minuted. When no questions arise, this is also minuted
to reflect no challenge having been made. This approach to minute taking will continue for the Board and its Committees.
The Director of Corporate Business is reviewing all minutes to provide a further perspective on ensuring that any
challenges are appropriately recorded.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

e  Trust Board minutes.
e Safety & Quality Committee minutes.
e Audit Committee minutes.

e Finance & Investment Committee minutes.

Page 52 of 70



Page 77

e HR&OD Committee minutes.

SHOULD DO: Maintain the personnel files of the trust’s directors to demonstrate that the evidence to support them
being Fit and Proper Persons can be reviewed and checked.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.9 | 1. Create a checklist for Safe Recruitment and Fit and Proper Persons
test and add it to all Executive Director and Non Executive Director

personnel files. .
. . . Bill Chapman 31/10/2018
2. As checklist is added to files, complete an audit and act as necessary

to ensure compliance.

3.Put in place an annual audit schedule, next due September 19.

Update on actions

Checklist now in place. FPP appointment and recheck template has been updated taking into account the CQC feedback
and to be used going forward including this year’s annual recheck process (checks now underway).

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

MUST DO: When producing the Quality Report or published documents for people who use the service, make sure they
demonstrate whether the organisation has met its objectives to people who use services.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
7.11 | On production of the Quality Account we will ensure that key metrics
are included that demonstrate whether we have met the targeted Steve Mumford | 30/06/2019
objective.

Update on actions

Action not due until 2019.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Address the recognised gap between the care groups in terms of the assurance process and as it flows
upwards to the trust board. Consider, as would be best practice, an external review of governance as a possible way of
addressing this.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
7.12 | We will commission an external review of our governance Lee Bud
ee Budge
arrangements to independently test the robustness of assurance from Greg Di 8 31/12/2018
reg Dix

Care Groups to the Trust Board.

Update on actions

Page 53 of 70



Page 78

Following discussion with NHSI in July 2018, they agreed to undertake a more detailed review of the Trust’s current
recovery action plans and other documents overseeing improvement of performance. This included consideration of our
governance arrangements which led to a number of recommendations for improvement. These have been captured as
part of an overarching action plan for improvement. The work in this area is ongoing.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

e  Monthly Integrated Delivery Meetings (IDMs) with NHS Improvement.
e  NHSI Action Plan.

SHOULD DO: Produce reliable data on the working hours of doctors and dentists in training to be able to gain assurance
that the trust was meeting the requirement for these staff to work safety and undertake their training and
development.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.13 | Reliable data and assurance on the working hours of doctors and
dentists will be gained through the Trust roll out of e-roster for Bill Chapman 31/10/2019
medical staff.

Update on actions

The rollout of doctors rostering is now in phase 1 with sickness and annual leave now complete and many areas now with
full rostering. Full action plan overseen by Rostering Board however, medicine and key carter areas scheduled to be
completed by October 2019 (as per deadline).

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Demonstrate that progress is made on reducing the disproportionate level of violence and aggression
from patients and the public to staff identifying as from a Black and minority ethnic background.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.15 | 1. To incorporate into leadership training (Manager's Passport) the
promotion of a zero tolerance approach to acts of violence, aggression
and harassment from members of the public/patients, towards staff,
and outline management responsibility in supporting staff.

2. Develop posters for display within staff areas across the Trust
outlining zero tolerance to violence, aggression and harassment from

. . . . . Lisa White / Bev
the public/patients and the assistance and support that is available Complete

for staff. Allingham
3. With the recent appointment of a dedicated Physical Interventions
Lead for the Trust, continue to roll out training for staff in conflict de-
escalation, breakaway techniques and physical interventions, with a
targeted approach to offer training for all patient/visitor facing staff

identifying as from a Black and minority ethnic background.

Update on actions

Page 54 of 70



Page 79

1. Leadership training has been updated to specifically outline the experience of BME staff and the Trust’s zero
tolerance stance. Action complete.

2. Leaflets have been produced for staff. These were approved by the Security Strategy Group on 5th December and
have been circulated to relevant staff areas.

3. Training continues to be rolled out to staff in patient / visitor areas. Head of HR Operations and Pl Lead have met to
discuss BME experience so that this can be considered through the training of BME staff. A mechanism has been put
in place for feedback to the Head of HR Operations if negative themes are identified from BME staff during training.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Look again at the work plan for the Equality, Diversity and inclusivity group to ensure its objectives and

achievable and realistic.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.16 | Review EDIWG Work Plan to ensure that objectives are achievable and | Lisa White / Bev

o o . Complete
reporting timeframes realistic. Allingham

Update on actions

The work plan and objectives were reviewed in November’s EDIWG meeting.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

To be submitted.

SHOULD DO: Produce a published Workforce Race Equality submission which is complete and demonstrates the trust is
investing in this area.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline
7.17 | WRES submission will be published on the Trust's website with Lisa White / Bev
. . 30/09/2018
narrative. Allingham

Update on actions

This action was delayed due to WRES data quality issues that were identified and not finalised with NHS England until 24th
September 2018. The completed template with narrative (content consistent with the revised action plan, linked with
action Ref 7.16) will be presented to the HR&OD Committee on 20th December 2018, for approval to publish on the
Trust’s website.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Give assurance that the trust board is reviewing and satisfied with the risks it is responsible for on the
Board Assurance Framework.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.19 | The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is already reviewed at every
public meeting by the Trust Board. We will, however, complete the | Lee Budge Complete
review and refresh of our BAF which began in July 2018.

Page 55 of 70




Page 80

Update on actions

The outcome of a review of our Board Assurance Framework and the role of the Board and Committees in using this
effectively was reported to the Audit Committee on 22" October 2018. Subsequently, the BAF has been updated and was
reported to the Trust Board on 30th November 2018.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

e Presentation to Audit Committee on 22" October 2018.
e Audit Committee minutes.

e  Trust Board agenda and minutes for 30t November 2018.

SHOULD DO: Look to reduce the increasing number of complaints that are reopened, often as they have not satisfied
the person who has complained.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.21 | 1. Review the current classification used to identify reopened
complaints. Report those complaints where the complainant is
dissatisfied with the quality and detail of the response. This will
include the following two reportable categories: Failed to fully answer
questions and / or Remains dissatisfied. .,
. . ) ) . Mark Griffiths Complete
2. Define quality check process including a step by step guide to
ensure the response letter provides an honest and accurate response,
addressing all issues raised. Patient Experience & Engagement Lead to

randomly review a selection of complaint responses each week for

quality.

Update on actions

1. Revised reporting structure that shows the required data fields. This will includes five reporting categories such as the
following two reportable categories: Failed to fully answer questions and / or Remains dissatisfied. All information is
collated in a monthly report. This information is reviewed for quality and causes of reopening. This information is
then shared up and down, starting at the Quality, Governance and Learning meeting; the Quality Managers in
attendance feed back to the relevant service lines for action and learning.

2. The current quality process has been improved to ensure the standard of responses develops. This includes refresher
training in the Complaints Team of expected standards. A plain English user guide for all staff involved in responding
to complaints has been developed to refer to when completing responses. A quality sample of responses are
reviewed by the Patient Engagement Lead; findings are discussed with the Complaints Team for learning and
improvement.

We are in the process of developing the standard of reporting to demonstrate the number of re-opened complaints to the

Board and to Quality Governance and Learning Group.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Meeting minutes or email communications where complaints issues have been escalated are available if required. Copies
of generated reports and associated actions can be made available.

SHOULD DO: Review the risks around electricity supply and car parking capacity, and ensure these are reflected on the
corporate risk register and the Board Assurance Framework if considered appropriate. Ensure the risks around the
estate have longer-term actions described in the Board Assurance Framework.

Planned Action

Page 56 of 70



Page 81

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.22 | The Corporate Risk Review Panel will review any DATIX risks
associated with the electricity supply and car parking capacity as part
of its meeting in October 2018. With regard to the risks associated | Lee Budge Complete
with the Estate, this will be addressed as part of the review and

refresh of our BAF referred to in action 7.19.

Update on actions

The Risk Review Panel reviewed all risks recorded on DATIX which relate to electricity supply and car parking on 10t
December 2018. There are no serious risks recorded on DATIX, however, there are a number of car parking related risks
which have been recorded as ‘moderate’ or ‘low’ for which further assurance is being sought from the Emergency
Planning Officer on the business continuity arrangements should the electricity supply fail in critical areas of the hospital.
At this stage there is no requirement to include this in the BAF but this will be reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

e Corporate Risk Register
e Risk Review Panel Minutes on 25th October, 19th November and 10th December.

SHOULD DO: Add the issue around it being possible to access and incorrectly update the wrong patient medical record
to the risk register for monitoring and improvement.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.25 | Datix Risk recorded - ID: 6323 with Simeon Brundell (Clinical Safety
Officer) and Paul Copleston (Head of IM&T Software Development,
Integration and Clinical Systems Management) as the actioning
officers. ICM has warning notices in 2 places already. Upgrade added a | Paul Copleston Complete
further measure to alert requester to ensure that they have selected
the correct patient. Plan to add a double check to the request form

which will send alerts to the Clinical Safety Officer.

Update on actions

Paul Copleston, Suzanne Stones, Simeon Brundell and Mac Armstrong met on the 28th September and agreed the
following plan:
In Test iCM:
1. Create new field in iCM (RAD — PT Check) — completed.
2. Add tool tip explaining use — adding the PAUSED slide (Radiation Protection patient check info) — completed —
evidence below.
Place at the bottom of the request form, next to the submission button — completed — evidence below.
Block the new data item from reaching CRIS (Integration Team) — completed.
Test — completed.
Create report of exceptions - completed.
. Once report available (01/11/18):
In Live iCM:

Nouv AW

1. Create new field in iCM (RAD — PT Check) — completed.

2. Add tool tip explaining use — adding the PAUSED slide (Radiation Protection patient check info).
3. Place at the bottom of the request form, next to the submission button.

4. Block the new data item from reaching CRIS.

5. Simeon to communicate change to users — completed 07/11/18.

6. Write to any that do not comply.

7. Escalate non-compliance to the Medical Director.

8. Monitor weekly.

9. Review.

Page 57 of 70



10. Add data item to all forms.

P adiclogy - Genenc

Lrm, Sam H

Duce [T

Requathed By | qifacre: Susarrs

Mpsiagns it of inses, i Eoritach s Imangeng Dimparivend on B G dts ponroes. |

[ribedirag irtormation
s

Torglate Nors: |

-
WRMEN [Ty eiene, W P COApReLre B seUEst hoi ihe meckoal eponas, hn_l

i chaty e e lorwsrg Foadhater [(Hedcs E apeous| Regubsbord b

g it i acCrrise sath B solaral cobeia o =l

Tﬂﬂmpwﬂ j
TPAEIR Fieaporaliiens [Tie rpiomm s han 2 dulp o provide sievart ard accudie circadelelr - |
congdesed. skl riboeabon

ity e e Pyl B b whatdeny whwie
s i et By

i e Dirszial Ouanstons i Rt Hieshtey [ oS omber]

o LRI e ey -

W Plarwest, erem WEEK aring [ —=I+]
Heghtfeml [ Wb kgl sy mminm?i—;l
\wdmrangs or Aot [Dined e it e iy O F ollwre) Blin T

Dieal on Haserg Probleon ! Flegnbeed Dissbled? (™ Vinlerd Pabierd Hotlicaion ! [ Bk ol Fali 1

Plegaiessd Wina? [ Claatrophobac Conhused on Devmntia? [ [
Liaerarag Db 11 B Patiend 17 Va2 T

W bt et phee. apestly |

Inpstesd [oparted dunng e acmuzon
Dusgunnt - ROUTINE 5

WWW ar cuifusherd walkin | seek, ™
OHLY

Chatzatant - LIRGENT [oported a1 an cutpatant, unuske 24 weesh)

[ B T U ey p—" g rr—— e —r——

(Duipsteni - WALKIN [ 7 Tien ORLT = - com bt day of clec §

o Infespretien gl (3], .r 1F 1. vl barpsnge? |

*Mmmmf.airu | ot Ol [Romd iz gy 2o 1086 82 rlzren v vl o 2 smandly = e farel ot
W b e feoraier ol il sl 7 g -

CWIEWHWI =

H M, plaass ilite vy |

EW.MFW|

15 Lant Herubal Pevad [LHF) -m.n?[_;|
i By # Tiplegihone Humdes 57753

# PuertCumpon s 7]

I By sl o i bunssrss wrﬂ‘lﬁ

Osbencambobe completet | - -

W vt pleair enten bl LMP e[ - -

Fesasasch Stunty Code [

Tese )
e e —
=-] LT —
WhhREDST e[ 7]

!tﬁ-—-mmdﬁl__-._

Dhss s iy Hecpans FifﬂiT?I—;|

ﬁ*t_h!umn!ﬂhmr;"'

=]

Diagnostic Radiology Referral

Have you “Paused & Checked”?

An IRIME)R Referrers checklist for referring a
patient for a diagnostic imaging examination

Pationt:
Ensure cormect patient (thees point 1D

Anatoimy.
Drsure correct site and Raferalety spacified,

User Checks
Esvsure all

%scm

Ensurn clinical information sufficient for justification {foliow referral criterial

|

Sulicient Cheaial Iehormation;
Entutled
Entithed whdér IRMEW 15 maks soliival,

Dirasw 1 & Clodn;
Ensure ol mandatory fieids complete and doubile check patient details.

For more information, visit bithy/PausedSoR

ACTUAL TIMESCALES :
Report availability to monitor users. 1t November 2018

Communications to Users.
Pilot/Test/Review.
Go Live.

Early November 2018
Early November2018
15th November 2018.

o

Page 58 of 70



Page 83

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Continual monitoring of the implemented solution and Clinical Safety Officer addressing anomalies with individual
referrers.

SHOULD DO: Raise awareness with staff of how patient feedback is used to improve services.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.26 | New ward and department noticeboards to include a section which
. - . . Jayne Glynn 30/10/2018
identifies actions taken to improve.

Update on actions

New noticeboards have now been finalised and agreed with the Heads of Nursing, Deputy Chief Nurse and Chief Nurse.
Costed through Significant Signs for production and installation of 42 boards across the hospital - £7,399.52. Current
proposal is for each ward to fund from individual budgets.

Awaiting exact image specifications from supplier to organise a sample board for review.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not required at this stage.

SHOULD DO: Demonstrate that actions have been taken when learning from patient death and how these actions have
improved practice and reduced the risk of events happening again.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.27 | The Learning from Deaths report will include specific examples where
actions have been taken to improve practice or cross referenced to Steve Mumford | Complete and closed
the appropriate improvement program.

Update on actions

The Quarter 2 Learning from Deaths report which will be submitted to Trust Board in November has been updated to
include specific examples of the actions taken in response to work identified.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

November 2018 Quarter 2 Learning from Death report.

SHOULD DO: Provide consistency in the quality and effectiveness of the mortality and morbidity reviews at service line
or speciality level. Ensure in doing so that any concerns within national indicators are investigated and explained.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

7.28 | The Mortality Review Group will now look at HSMR & SHMI by Service | Steve Mumford | Complete
Line in a run chart format; this is the same data that is available on the
Service Line dashboards.

The Group have agreed a set of principles when reviewing the data
that will require a response from the Care Group / Service Line if:

1. The Service Line Lower Confidence Limits show us as an outlier

compared with similar services. This is consistent with the Service Line

Page 59 of 70



Page 84

dashboards.

2. 5 consecutive data points are showing a negative trend.

3. Mortality alerts received in relation to any patient group.

The Care Groups will be requested to attend the Mortality Review
Group (period to be defined) to update the Group on:

e What we have learned, both good and what needs improvement;
and

¢ What action has been taken.

Update on actions

Service Line HSMR and SHMI data is reviewed at Mortality Review Group. Care Groups receive regular reports on
Mortality from the Service Lines.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Mortality Review Group minutes and Care Group governance meeting minutes.

Page 60 of 70



Page 85

Use of Resources

AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT: Investigating trends and themes of re-admissions at a specialty level in order to reduce re-
admissions where possible is an on-going work stream.

AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT: Reviewing the drivers of non-elective pre-procedure bed days and reducing these where
possible, is an on-going piece of work for the trust.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

8.2 | 1. Increase the prominence of re-admission performance in Service Line

performance dashboards and Care Group performance meetings. .
. o . . Jacqui Beer 31/07/2019
2. Review Service Lines with worst performance and complete specific

action plan in these areas.

Update on actions

Monthly information relating to readmissions and pre-op LOS for both elective and non-elective admissions is included
within the Service Line dashboards however a review will be undertaken to ensure the methodology matches that used in
Model Hospital.

Analysis of worst performing specialties has now been completed.

Pre-op LOS for non-elective admissions

Current performance benchmarked Quarter 2 2018/19 (source: Model Hospital): In Quartile 4.
National median = 0.65

Trust value = 1.05

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

Pre-procedure non-elective bed days, National Distribution = Options

Quartile 1 - Lowest 25% Quartile 2 Quartile 3 Quartile 4 - Highest 25%

e Nﬂ

. My Truse B My Peers I ] Non-Peer Trusts Peers (My NHSI Region) Median (0.54)

dure non-elective bed days (n=133)

Page 61 of 70



Page 86

Specialties selected for deep dive review are as follows:

Geriatric medicine

General medicine

Respiratory medicine

Cardiology

Trauma & orthopaedics

Clinical oncology (previously radiotherapy)

Gastroenterology

Emergency readmissions within 30 days

Current performance benchmarked Quarter 2 2018/19 (source: Model Hospital): In Quartile 3
National median = 7.76%

Trust value = 8.03%

Select chart
University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust elect chart type
Variation Chart K

Emergency Readmission 30 days, National Distribution = Options

20.00%
Quartile 1 - Lowest 25% Quartile 2 Quartile 3 Quartile 4 - Highest 25%

16.00%

14.00%

6.00% | [ . [
2.00% “‘

In order of Emergency Readmission 30 days (n=133)

°

. My Trust . My Peers l. Non-Peer Trusts —— Peers (My NHSI Region) Median (7.57%)

Specialties selected for deep dive review are as follows:

Specialty

Colorectal Surgery

ENT

Nephrology

Plastic Surgery

Neonatology

Paediatrics

Gynaecology

Clinical oncology (previously radiotherapy)

Next step is to organise meetings with relevant service line teams and discuss data to identify remedial actions. We expect
this work to be completed by the end of February 2019.

Page 62 of 70



Page 87

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Attached is an example of a Service Line dashboard which includes metrics for Readmissions within 30 days and Pre-op
LOS (see tabs named “Effective” for Readmissions and “GIRFT & Model Hosp” for Pre-op LOS.

Colorectal
Surgery.xlIsx

AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT: The trust is part of an NHS Improvement deep dive review of its high Medical Costs.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

8.4 | Detailed work plan already completed under the Medical Workforce

Productivity Programme with a number of actions identified.
. - . . ] Peter Rowe 30/04/2019
Additional efficiency programmes detailed below will also improve

Medical Productivity.

Update on actions

The Workstream has a regular update at the Trust Management Executive for Improvement and Productivity. The update
for November is attached.

The update includes the Job Planning Dash Board that monitors progress and gives an update on specific actions being
taken. The Job Plan review chamber has now been established and has had two meetings. Actions coming from this
meeting to review specific additional NHS responsibilities are being taken but so far significant improvement has not yet
been achieved. The overall programme is being reviewed by the Putting People First Programme to see if it can enhance
the delivery of improvements in this area. This is scheduled for December 2018.

= =
Draft TOR Job TME Medical
Planning Chamber Se  Workforce Slides 301!

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Assurance that progress is being monitored only —improvements not yet evidenced.

AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT: The trust in the process of embedding the results of a number of internal and external
reviews of efficiency opportunities.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

8.5 | Detailed programmes already in place for Urgent Care flow | Theatres Utilisation- Jemma Edge
improvement, Outpatients productivity and Theatre | OP Utilisation -Jacqui Beer

Productivity. These are supplemented by the Trust's GIRFT | Urgent Care - Jo Beer 30/04/2019
response and deep dives on outlying areas identified by | GIRFT and Model Hospital - Laura

Model Hospital. Langsford

Update on actions

Progress reports supplied to the TME for productivity and Improvement.

Improvements evidenced in Outpatient Metrics and some progress in Theatres and GIRFT.

Page 63 of 70



Page 88

= = =
18.12.11TME  TME GIRFT Financial TME OPPROD
presentation.pptx Update 11122018.do 111218.pptx

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Further improvement required to meet targets.

AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT: There is scope to review the trust’s medicines cost to establish if the high costs are
warranted by the tertiary level services it provides.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

8.6 | Initial report describing high medicines costs completed. Further
investigation required once immediate improvements to Pharmacy | Laura Langsford | 31/07/2019
services has been completed.

Update on actions

This action has yet to progress as urgent pharmacy action plan is completed. However it has now been agreed that this
item will be picked up on the next Pharmacy Board meeting agenda to start the process of review.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

Not applicable at this stage.

AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT: Opportunities exist to recurrently reduce the trust’s energy costs.

Planned Action

Ref Action Lead Deadline

8.7 | Continue efforts to drive down consumption (kWh / m2) to mitigate the
impact of continuing to add high demand equipment onto the site —
continuing to access SALIX funding to implement invest to save schemes

such as the low energy lighting. 1.31/12/2018
1. Connect the low temperature take-off from the CHP into the Trust . 2.31/03/2019
. . Stuart Windsor
Phase | hot water system to improve efficiency. 3.31/03/2019
2. Deliver the DCHW low energy lighting replacement scheme. 4. TBA - early 2019

3. Deliver the MSCP low energy lighting replacement scheme.
4. Develop the business case for the replacement of lighting throughout
all Outpatient Departments.

Update on actions

1. Works commenced.
2. Works completed ahead of schedule.
3. Business case submitted to SALIX and internal approval complete.

4. Business case sent to NHS Improvement for £1m investment under the £46 m Public Dividend Fund to implement
‘energy-efficient’ LED lighting. Bid submitted on 30 November and Full Business Case approved by the Board. Now
awaiting outcome.

Assurance that actions have been addressed

2. Lighting has been installed and is operational. Terms of SALIX funding completed and loan draw down in progress.

Page 64 of 70



Actions Completed and Closed

Ref

7.27

Core Service

Trustwide

Requirement

Demonstrate that actions have been taken when learning from
patient death and how these actions have improved practice and

reduced the risk of events happening again.

Annex 1

Action Taken

The Quarter 2 Learning from Deaths report which will be submitted to Trust Board in
November has been updated to include specific examples of the actions taken in response
to work identified.

Actions Completed and evidence to be submitted

Ref Core Service Requirement Action Taken
E he kitchen in the clinical decisi _p h
1.14 Urgent and nsure the kitchen in the c.mlca d(.ec.mon unitis secure when Clinical Decision Unit reconfigured to relocate the kitchen.
Emergency unattended to prevent patients gaining access.
Repair or replace the flooring in the clinical decision unit
Urgent and ) . . L
1.15 toilets/shower rooms to enable effective cleaning and minimise Work completed.
Emergency . Rk .
infection control risks.
1.20 Urgent and Make sure clinical waste bins are emptied before becoming over- We are utilising the facilities from CDU and monitoring continues as part of the Matrons
) Emergency full. Audit.
. . . . . Dedicated ward clerk for CDU in place for timely filing and security. Staff reminded of the
Urgent and Review the security arrangements for storing patient records in ) . .
1.23 . . . need for safe placing of medical / nursing documents from Ward Manager / Matron.
Emergency the clinical decision unit. . . .
Lockable notes trolley in use. Spot monthly audit compliance to commence December 2018.
1.27 Urgent and Make sure patients waiting in the department for long periods are | Food is provided by the CDU and the housekeeper discusses who may eat / drink
’ Emergency not left without access to drinks and food, where appropriate. with the Nurse In Charge for breakfast, lunch and dinner.
Urgent and Cothlnue to participate in re ev:.;mt audits to.monlto.r and |_mprove Participation in national and local audit programmes continues and outputs feed via service
1.29 patient outcomes through consistent compliance with national .
Emergency line governance process.
standards.
131 Urgent and Ensure staff working in resuscitation as part of a team wear the Staff have been reminded of the need to wear the correct attire for their role and it is the
) Emergency correct tabards to help with role identification. responsibility of the resus lead to ensure that the team members are correctly identified.
U tand Provide patient iring the toilet with it facilit Patients who are in the corridor are often dressed and therefore are assisted to the
rgent an rovide patients requiring the toilet with appropriate facilities . . . . .
1.34 & . P auinng pprop toilet outside x ray. For those who require assistance the FLIC cubicle or another
Emergency without undue delay. g )
will be used with a commode.
Urgent and . . . . Adopted the Medical Care Group's branded suite of meetings' templates and meetings'
1.39 Improve minutes and action tracking for team meetings. . .
Emergency standard operating procedure (part of governance tool kit).
21 Medical Care Ensure nursing staffing levels meet the nursing establishment on Results of demand and capacity are now available which will drive the volume of

the endoscopy unit to enable planned investigations can be

staff needed and inform business planning.

Page 65 of 70

68 abed



Annex 1

Ref Core Service Requirement Action Taken
carried out and not to hamper service improvement projects.
E-Prescribing will have a VTE risk assessment feature inherent in it to ensure that
Ensure that all patients are assessed for venous thromboembolism | this is completed and the present idea is to trigger a reassessment when a patient
59 Medical Care (VTE) as soon as possible after admission, or by the first consultant | moves ward. In the meantime the VTE team use the daily report on non-
’ review and that this is re-assessed within 24 hours in line with compliance with VTE risk assessment to look at where the worst performing areas
national guidance. are so that they can focus attention on them. There is also monthly monitoring via
the Care Group performance reviews with service lines.
Cardiothoracic Theatres: Monthly monitoring of action plan continues via Theatre
33 Surger Ensure cross infection processes are followed in all ward and Governance meetings for Cardiothoracic Theatres.
' gery theatre areas. Moorgate: Combined Observation of Care feedback completed and found to be
satisfactory.
Review the systems and processes to ensure all equipment has Matrons for inpatients have updated checklist. Maternity Care Assistants are now involved
4.3.2 | Maternity been maintained, checked and cleaned ready for clinical use, in the main handover and separate Matron’s Maternity audit created which is to be
including equipment for use in emergencies. presented at CEC as a standard agenda item.
Band 7 Midwife (CS) leading on PGDs in department. Emails have been sent to all
. midwives with the PGD policy attached. PGD competency can be added to CEC
. Ensure the process for approval to work under Patient Group . . .
45 Maternity o ) ) . ) ) agenda to assure actions are being addressed. Lesson plan to evidence PGD
Directions are consistent with trust policy and national guidance. : X . . . . .
discussion/inclusion during MMT week. PGD E-learning now approved and in place
for completion end December 2018.
. . L . Backlog has been cleared and there are daily walk arounds for the department. The
Ensure patient information is protected in clinical areas and . . . . . I
. . . importance of completing paperwork in a timely way has been communicated to Midwifery
4.7 Maternity records are amalgamated and stored securely following discharge . .
. teams. Weekly audit now completed. Storage has been reviewed and lockable notes trolleys
from the service. . L
are now in place for the Antenatal Clinic area.
Revi , risk t, and perf . . . . .
. eview governance, risk managemen a.n per ormance . Appointed Care Group Quality Manager to ensure that risks are considered outside of Care
4.8 Maternity processes to ensure threats and defects in the service are visible .
. Group Management Team for appropriate check and challenge.
and escalated appropriately.
Room has been re-named on white board and on room door. MMT week also now refers as
Ensure all nurses and midwives delivering care within the high “Enhanced Observation Room”. Communications to all staff via Theme of the week and
4.11 Maternity dependency unit have been assessed as competent to care for the | inclusion in the Mandatory Multi-disciplinary training sessions. Staff have a check list to sign
critically ill woman. off that they are competent to do. Guideline and observation charts updated to reflect the
changes.
4.12 | Maternity Ensure Modified Early Obstetric Warning Score (MEOWS) charts Added to the audit routine schedule; first audit completed and presented as part of

Page 66 of 70

06 abed



Annex 1

Ref Core Service Requirement Action Taken
are used consistently and escalation occurs in accordance with audit schedule at monthly Clinical Effectiveness Committee.
policy.

0.4wte band 6 Audit Midwife in post and will liaise with Consultant Obstetrician regarding
allocation of audit to junior doctors. Audit schedule in place with rolling presentation to
Monthly Maternity Governance Meeting (CEC).

Expand the use of clinical audit and other improvement tools to

4.17 Maternity . . .
proactively measure service delivery.

Review the process for ensuring hazardous chemicals are COSHH cabinets are now available in all clinical areas.
4.20 | Maternity consistently locked away and not accessible to unauthorised
persons.
Consider how to increase information technology in the
4.21 Maternity community, and specifically access by community midwives to IT access for community staff is on the Risk Register: Business case has been re-submitted.

maternity guidance and blood results.

The Service Line has sent email reminders to leads of areas where dates are either out of

The service needs to improve compliance rates for ! e g -ue
date or proactively reminding leads to book in advance. The service line has also created a

5.1 Diagnostic Eznlj:‘;ftr\[:):;?::cri:ZEIat:de:rsoucreess!ss;czfli::; :ztti:niitaenv(;”th specific dashboard to individualise specific matrixes on performance which was shared with ;JU
and Imarin leads week commencing 22/10 18. One to one meetings with leads have an adjusted agenda (@)
6.8 ging themselves safe. to discuss further monthly positions and formulate plans if required. Further reminders have D
Make sure all staff within the outpatient departments have been sent out through November with an additional list for Manual Handling actioned and %e)
undertaken mandatory training updates in line with trust policy. supported by the Trust. This should be more reflected in December’s position. [
Reinstated HR Leadership Meetings, actions to support the development of Senior Leads,
6.4 Diagnostic Support and improve the culture and wellbeing for the diagnostic | implementation of Communication Board, regular senior management Walkabout,
’ Imaging imaging staff. implementation of 'SCORE' in Interventional Radiology and ensured that musculoskeletal
risks are on the risk register and are being adequately managed
Both the Service Line Manager and the Clinical Director have met with the Deputy Head of
6.13 Diagnostic Ensure that targets set in diagnostic imaging are achievable, | Performance to discuss internal professional standards on scan and report timings for
Imaging realistic, and encourage the service to improve. inpatients. Dashboards are being adjusted accordingly and once completed they will be

monitored.

Address and resolve the issue of unrecognised or unaddressed
7.4.1 | Pharmacy risks in the pharmacy teams connected with patient safety, staff | Gap Analysis against Royal Pharmaceutical Society Hospital Pharmacy Standards completed.
pressures, performance, and governance failings.

Address and resolve the issue of unrecognised or unaddressed
7.4.2 | Pharmacy risks in the pharmacy teams connected with patient safety, staff | Risk identification and mitigation is now supported by the RPS Standards.
pressures, performance, and governance failings.

Page 67 of 70



Annex 1

Ref Core Service Requirement Action Taken
Address and resolve the cultural, wellbeing, staffing, resource, and
7.5.5 | Pharmacy workload issues within the pharmacy service and as they affect | Conducted a gap analysis of current establishment.
both the service and the wider trust.
A system to safeguard against discharge without critical medication was developed in
collaboration between pharmacy and nursing personnel. A pilot has been completed over a
two week period to capture patients who were discharged without critical medicines.
Urgently produce standard operating procedures to ensure | Aligned to the daily controlled drug check, a ‘sweep’ of the ward for TTA’s is conducted to
7.6.1 | Pharmacy patients leave the hospital with critical medicines, and attend or | ensure that no medications remain in hospital following discharge. To safety-net Pharmacy
are made aware of any critical follow-up appointments. has a process in place should TTA medicines be returned to pharmacy without the local
check for appropriateness at ward level. The process is currently being rolled out through the
organisation. EPMA is delayed until February 2019; incorporating additional safety measures
here will support safe discharge.
A system to safeguard against discharge without critical medication was developed in
collaboration between pharmacy and nursing personnel. A pilot has been completed over a
two week period to capture patients who were discharged without critical medicines.
Urgently produce standard operating procedures to ensure | Aligned to the daily controlled drug check, a ‘sweep’ of the ward for TTA’s is conducted to
7.6.2 | Pharmacy patients leave the hospital with critical medicines, and attend or | ensure that no medications remain in hospital following discharge. To safety-net Pharmacy
are made aware of any critical follow-up appointments. has a process in place should TTA medicines be returned to pharmacy without the local
check for appropriateness at ward level. The process is currently being rolled out through the
organisation. EPMA is delayed until February 2019; incorporating additional safety measures
here will support safe discharge.
7.7.1 | Pharmacy Ensu-re eff.ect|ve g.overnance Wlthm the pharmacy service to Review of the current pharmacy governance framework completed.
provide a high quality and safe service.
7.7.2 | Pharmacy Ensu-re eff?ctive gpvernance within the pharmacy service to Revised reporting route for MUAC agreed.
provide a high quality and safe service.
. . Invitations to Board members to raise questions on any item are minuted. When no
. Demonstrate in the board papers the open and professional . . - . . .
7.8 Trustwide challenge we were told happened. questions arise, this is also minuted to reflect no challenge having been made. This
approach to minute taking will continue for the Board and its Committees.
Update the policies and procedures relating to criminal record
7.10 | Trustwide checks to ensure they are current and referring to the current | Policies have been updated.
processes.
215 | Trustwide Demonstrate that progress is made on reducing the | Leadership training has been updated to specifically outline the experience of BME

disproportionate level of violence and aggression from

staff and the Trust’s zero tolerance stance. Leaflets have been produced for staff

Page 68 of 70

26 abed



Annex 1

Ref Core Service Requirement Action Taken
patients and the public to staff identifying as from a Black | and have been circulated to relevant staff areas. Training continues to be rolled out
and minority ethnic background. to staff in patient / visitor areas. A mechanism has been put in place for feedback to
the Head of HR Operations if negative themes are identified from BME staff during
training.
Look again at the work plan for the Equality, Diversity and
7.16 | Trustwide inclusivity group to ensure its objectives and achievable and | The work plan and objectives were reviewed in November’s EDIWG meeting.
realistic.
. . I The outcome of a review of our Board Assurance Framework and the role of the
Give assurance that the trust board is reviewing and . . . . . .
. e . . - . Board and Committees in using this effectively was reported to the Audit
7.19 | Trustwide satisfied with the risks it is responsible for on the Board . g
Assurance Framework Committee on 22" October 2018. Subsequently, the BAF has been updated and
’ was reported to the Trust Board on 30th November 2018.
Revised reporting structure implemented. All information is collated in a monthly
report which is reviewed for quality and causes of reopening. This information is
. . . then shared up and down, starting at the Quality, Governance and Learnin
Look to reduce the increasing number of complaints that . P . . & Qo y g. .
. . meeting; the Quality Managers in attendance feed back to the relevant service lines
7.21 | Trustwide are reopened, often as they have not satisfied the person . . . .
. for action and learning. The current quality process has been improved to ensure
who has complained. . .
the standard of responses develops. We are in the process of developing the
standard of reporting to demonstrate the number of re-opened complaints to the
Board and to Quality Governance and Learning Group.
The Risk Review Panel reviewed all risks recorded on DATIX which relate to
Review the risks around electricity supply and car parking | electricity supply and car parking on 10t December 2018. There are no serious
capacity, and ensure these are reflected on the corporate | risks recorded on DATIX, however, there are a number of car parking related risks
222 | Trustwide risk register and the Board Assurance Framework if | which have been recorded as ‘moderate’ or ‘low’ for which further assurance is
' considered appropriate. Ensure the risks around the estate | being sought from the Emergency Planning Officer on the business continuity
have longer-term actions described in the Board Assurance | arrangements should the electricity supply fail in critical areas of the hospital. At
Framework. this stage there is no requirement to include this in the BAF but this will be
reviewed on an ongoing basis.
. . . . ICM has warning notices in two places already. Upgrade added a further measure
Add the issue around it being possible to access and & P V- P8 .
. . ; . to alert requester to ensure that they have selected the correct patient. Added a
7.25 | Trustwide incorrectly update the wrong patient medical record to the

risk register for monitoring and improvement.

double check to the request form which will send alerts to the Clinical Safety
Officer.

Page 69 of 70

£6 abed



Ref

Core Service

Annex 1

Requirement Action Taken

7.28

Trustwide

Provide consistency in the quality and effectiveness of the

mortality and morbidity reviews at service line or speciality | Service Line HSMR and SHMI data is reviewed at Mortality Review Group. Care

level. Ensure in doing so that any concerns within national | Groups receive regular reports on Mortality from the Service Lines.
indicators are investigated and explained.

v6 abed

Page 70 of 70



Page 95 Agenda Item 8

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Missed Hospital Appointments

Commiittee: Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date: 23 January 2019

Cabinet Member: Councillor Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

CMT Member: Carole Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People)

Author: Amanda Nash, Head of Communications

Contact details email: amandanash@nhs.net

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

The purpose of this report is to respond to the Committee’s request for information on outpatient
missed appointments and the cost of this at University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust.

Corporate Plan

The relationship to the Corporate Plan (and Plymouth Plan) — comment must be made including how
it helps to meet the City Vision, values, Objectives and outcomes contained within the plan, for,
Pioneering Plymouth, Growing Plymouth, Caring Plymouth and Confident Plymouth.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

None for Plymouth City Council - This report has been produced by University Hospitals Plymouth
NHS Trust (UHP); any financial and resource implications will be relevant to the Trust rather than to
the Council.

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 96

It is recommended that the Committee takes assurance from the fact UHP is among the best performing
trusts in the country for Did Not Attend (DNA) and the measures it is taking to further reduce these.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Not applicable

Published work / information:

Stating Appointment Costs in SMS Reminders Reduces Missed Hospital Appointments: Findings from
Two Randomised Controlled Trials (2015):
https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.137 | /journal.pone.0 137306

Background papers:

Not applicable

Sign off:

Approved by: Kevin Baber, Chief Operating Officer University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE


https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0137306

2.0

2.1

22

3.0

Page 97

Introduction

The Committee has requested information regarding the number of missed hospital
appointments at University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust, these are commonly referred to
as DNAs — Did Not Attends.

Please note the scope of this report. This covers missed outpatient appointments in clinics run
by University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust. It does not cover community outpatient
appointments in clinics run by Livewell Southwest or missed appointments with GPs.

Encouraging patients to attend
UHP has used a text reminder service since May 2014.

Seven days beforehand, adults or parents/carers of children are contacted by an automated
call and offered the opportunity to either confirm attendance at their appointment or
reschedule. Adults or parents/carers are authenticated prior to appointment confirmation
request.

If this automated call is not responded to, the process is repeated on day six and day five and
two days before the appointment, provided we have a mobile number, everyone receives a
reminder text.

Validating contact details

When patients check-in for appointments, we ensure we validate their contact to confirm we
have the most up-to-date on record.

Performance and Benchmarking

Annex | shows how UHP compares to similar hospitals for the number of occasions when
patients Did Not Attend appointments. This data is taken from Model Hospital, a digital
information service designed to help NHS providers improve their productivity and efficiency.
Hospitals can drill down into data to see where they are performing well and where there are
opportunities to improve.

Performance in Quartile | shows trusts which are among the lowest 25% in the country for
DNA:s. Conversely, performance in Quartile 4 shows those trusts with the highest level of
DNAs.

Annex | shows data for Quarter 2 of 2018/19 (July-September) and is the latest available. It
shows UHP in the best performing quartile for this measure with a ranking of 4.

The overall DNA rate for UHP is 5.6%. This compares to a peer median of 6.15% and a
national median of 7.3%.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE


https://improvement.nhs.uk/resources/model-hospital/

4.0

5.0

5.1

Page 98

The costs of DNAs
In Quarter 2, a DNA rate of 5.6% equated to 7,090 outpatient appointments missed.
The cost of DNAs is twofold:

To the patient
To the organisation and the NHS

The average cost of an outpatient appointment at UHP is £85. This means that the total cost
in Quarter 2 of missed appointments was £602,650. Alternatively, if the loss was measured
in terms of lost income to the trust under a Payment By Results contract, it would equate to
£121 per appointment.

We take measures to mitigate against a high number of missed clinic slots and loss of income
by:

Rebooking appointments with a suitable alternative patient when someone cancels in advance
Several internal processes to review and communicate booked utilisation of clinics in advance
Wherever possible enable clinics to be nonspecific, ensuring different types of patients can be
seen within the specialty

Following up with patients

Any patient who does not attend their agreed appointment (new or follow up) will be

clinically reviewed and discharged if appropriate back to the care of their GP. Both patient and GP
will be notified of this in writing to ensure the referring GP is aware and can action further
management of the patient if necessary.

Exceptions to this are:

e when a clinical decision is taken that discharging the patient is contrary to the patient’s
clinical interests

e clinically very urgent referrals including cancer, or active surveillance for cancer, rapid
access chest pain, and other critical illnesses

e Children of 18 years and under or vulnerable adults. For these patients after the
reason for a DNA has been established, this should be documented in the health
records. A further appointment needs to be offered to the patient and the importance
of attendance needs to be reiterated to the parent / carer. If there are any
safeguarding concerns about a child or young person under the age of 18 years further
guidance should be sought from the relevant Trust policy or safeguarding lead.

When one of the following can be confirmed
e The appointment was sent to the incorrect patient address
e The appointment was not offered with reasonable notice

Where circumstances were beyond the patient’s control, the trust will endeavour to be as flexible as
possible. The patient must first be contacted to ascertain the reasons for DNA and ensure
compliance to attend a rescheduled appointment.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 99

6.0 Further measures

We continue to work with NHS Improvement to look at national initiatives which may help
further reduce DNA rates.

We are working to introduce new wording in text reminders to further encourage
attendance. This is based on evidence from a 2015 trial in Barts which showed that a change
in wording can reduce DNA:s. In the first trial, a change in message including the cost of a
missed appointment to the health system produced a DNA rate of 8.4%, compared to the
control group of 11.1%

The study is available at:
https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.137|/journal.pone.0137306

The precise wording used in the trial builds on a number of psychological principles that are
known to influence behaviour, namely the consistency principle, salient cost linked to
individual action and the ease with which people can rearrange if needed.

As a trust, we are also planning to undertake a survey to understand why patients DNA and
then look to see how best we can address these underlying causes.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE


https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0137306

Annex |

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

Select chart type

Variation Chart ¥

18.00%

Quartile 1 - Lowest 25%

16.00%

14.00%

12.00%

10.00%

B.00%

Did not attand (DNA) rate

6.00%

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE

4.00%
2.00% ‘
0.00%

. My Trust

Did not attend (DNA) rate, National Distribution

Quartile 2

. My Peers

Quartile 3

In order of Did not attend (DMA) rate (n=132)

. Mon-Peer Trusts

= Paers (My NHSI Region) Median (6.60%)

Quartile 4 - Highest 25%

= Options

00T 9bed



Page 101 Agenda Item 9

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Integrated Finance Report Month 7

Commiittee: Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date: 23 January 2019

Cabinet Member: Councillor Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

CMT Member: Carole Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People)

Author: Helen Foote, Finance Business Partner Integrated Finance

Contact details Tel: 01752 305471
email: helen.foote@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part:

Purpose of the report:

This report sets out the projected financial outturn for the Integrated Finance S75 Agreement
Between Plymouth City Council and N.E.W. Devon CCG.

This report sets out the financial performance of the Plymouth Integrated Fund for the period to the
end of October and the forecast for the financial year 2018/19. The report is in several sections.
e The first section details the performance of the Integrated Fund, including the section 75 risk
share arrangements.
e The second identifies the Better Care Fund, which is a subset of the wider Integrated Fund,
but has specific monitoring and outcome expectations.
e The third section details the financial performance of the Western Planning and Delivery Unit
(PDU) of the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).
e Appendix | which shows the Plymouth Integrated Fund performance and risk share.
e Appendix 2 which shows the PDU managed contracts financial performance.
e Appendix 3 which is a glossary of terms used in the report.

Corporate Plan

This report is fundamentally linked to delivering the priorities within the Council’s Corporate Plan.
Allocating limited resources to key priorities will maximise the benefits to the residents of Plymouth.

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 102

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

Robust and accurate financial monitoring underpins the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) and the financial integrity of the Integrated Fund. The Council’s Medium Term Financial
Forecast is updated regularly based on on-going monitoring information, both on a local and national
context, as is the CCG’s financial position.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

The reducing revenue and capital resources across the public sector has been identified as a key risk
within both organisations’ Strategic Risk registers. The ability to deliver spending plans is paramount

to ensuring the Council can achieve its objectives to be a Pioneering, Growing, Caring and Confident
City.

Equality and Diversity
Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No

This report monitors our performance against our approved budget 2018/19. As part of the budget
setting process, EIA were undertaken for all areas.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

The Committee is recommended to note the contents of the report.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Published work / information:

Background papers:

Title Part | | Partll Exemption Paragraph Number

I 2 3 4 5 6 7

Sign off:
Fin | djn.18.1 | Leg Mon HR Assets IT Strat
9.176 Off Proc

Orriginating SMT Member Carole Burgoyne

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report! Yes

OFFICIAL / OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 103

PublicFinance

nHsl 2%

oy
\WINNER

ONE SYSTEM

ONE BUDGET

PLYMOUTH

Northern, Eastern and Western Devon o M
Clinical Commissioning Group

Plymouth Integrated Fund
Finance Report - Month 7 2018/19

Introduction

This report sets out the financial performance of the Plymouth Integrated Fund for
the period to the end of October and the forecast for the financial year 2018/19.

The report is in several sections.

e The first section details the performance of the Integrated Fund, including the
section 75 risk share arrangements.

e The second identifies the Better Care Fund, which is a subset of the wider
Integrated Fund, but has specific monitoring and outcome expectations.

e The third section details the financial performance of the Western Planning
and Delivery Unit (PDU) of the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).

e Appendix 1 which shows the Plymouth Integrated Fund performance and risk
share.

e Appendix 2 which shows the PDU managed contracts financial performance.

e Appendix 3 which is a glossary of terms used in the report.

SECTION 1 - PLYMOUTH INTEGRATED FUND

Integrated Fund - Month 7 Report 2018/19

As highlighted in previous months, the pressures for health are mainly focussed on
the variable use of the independent sector acute contracts. For Plymouth City
Council there are pressures in residential, domiciliary care and children’s packages.

The report highlights a breakeven position against budget for health at this stage in
the year. For the Council, the forecast overspend is reflected at this stage without
assuming further recovery.

The overall fund position is reflected in Appendix 1, and shows an overall forecast
overspend of £4.6m, before corporate contingencies.

Page 1 of 13



Plymouth City Council Integrated Fund

Page 104

Latest Latest Variation .- .
Approved Year at Month Variation | Change in
Service Budget End 7 at Month 6 Month
M7 Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m
Children, Young People & Families 37.142 41.675 4.534 5.699 (1.165)
Strategic Cooperative Commissioning 78.118 78.219 0.101 0.481 (0.380)
Education Participation and Skills 101.106 | 101.106 (0.000) (0.000) 0.000
Community Connections 3.784 3.871 0.087 0.168 (0.081)
Director of People 0.295 0.295 (0.000) (0.000) 0.000
Public Health 16.048 16.048 0.000 0.000 0.000
Sub Total 236.493 | 241.215 4.722 6.348 (1.626)
Support Service Recharges 14.473 14.473 0.000 0.000 0.000
Disabled Facilities Grant (Capital) 2.298 2.298 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total 253.265 | 257.987 4.722 6.349 (1.626)

The integrated fund for Plymouth City Council (PCC) is shown as gross spend and
now also includes the Support Service Recharge costs for the People directorate
and Public Health department along with the capital spend for Disabled Facilities
Grant, which is funded from the Better Care Fund.

Children, Young People and Families

The Children Young People and Families Service are reporting a budget pressure of
£4.534m at month 7, a reduction of (£1.165m) from month 6, as part of the work that
the action plan review group is doing. This will be monitored closely to ensure that it
is on track for year end.

We are experiencing a big rise in the number of vulnerable children needing care,
the cost of the care is particularly high due to the level of support needed to keep
young people safe, such as specialist residential care placements with high levels of
staffing. A number of very costly care packages are the result of Court of Protection
orders that place a duty on the Council to provide specialist care.

This increasing financial demand on Children’s Services is not just a local issue, but
is seen nationally and is a culmination of rising demand, complexity of care, rising
costs and the availability of suitable placements. Robust plans are in place to deliver
£4.655m savings this year, delivering over £3m to date, although the Service has
identified a savings plan £1.647m that will not be achieved this year.

There are a number of assumptions being made in the forecast outturn position
going forward as an outcome of the following actions.

e Tightening of the front door for LAC - Action only HOS Children’s Social work
and Permanence can give consent for anyone to be accommodated and in
her absence Service Director will cover.

e Fortnightly placement review to ensure step down of high cost placements

e Review of staying put arrangements and financial remuneration

Page 2 of 13



Page 105

e Maximize contribution from partners - Health and Education Action Complete
required Health tool for all Residential placements. Review elements of
contracts to ensure Education element is recharged correctly

e Service Director persistently raising matter of budgetary pressures at all staff
meetings to ensure only essential expenditure and actions taken in a timely
manner.

e Local residential placements are maximized to avoid higher out of area
associated costs.

e Director & finance Review all financial assumptions on a monthly basis.

There are risks that continue to require close monitoring and management:

¢ Significant increase in cost and volume of young people’s placements since
budget setting autumn 2018.

e Lack of immediate availability of the right in-house foster care placements
creating overuse of IFA’s.

e There are still a number of individual packages of care at considerably higher
cost due to the complex needs of the young people.

¢ Regional wide commissioning activity did not bring about the anticipated
holding and reduction of placement costs in both the residential and IFA
sectors.

e Residential placements are in line with the budgeted number of 36. However,
there has been a 9% increase in the average weekly cost.

e There are 133 Independent Fostering Agency Placements with budget for
only 119.

e There are 21 Supported Living Placements with budget for 15 we have seen a
55% increase in the average cost due to a small number of young receiving
significant wrap around packages.

e A region wide lack of placements due to an increase in demand for
placements, both national and regionally continues to impact negatively on
sufficiency

e There has been a 6% increase in looked after children since October 2017,
which compares with an 11.3% increase in the South West Region March
2017- March 2018.

The overall number of children in care at the end of September stands at 427 an
increase of 3 in the month.

The number of children placed with independent fostering agencies stands at 133
against a target budget of 119 placements. Residential placements stands at 36
against a target of 36 budgeted placements with a number of these placements
being high cost due to the complex nature of these children’s needs. There is
currently one young person placed in ‘welfare’ secure.

The In-House Foster Care placements have 169 including connected carer’s
placements against a target budget of 186 placements. There are no In House
Parent & Child Assessment Placement, 1 court ordered Independent foster care
placements and no high cost Residential placements. We currently have 21
Supported Living Placements with budget for 15. However, 30% of the placements
are at a substantially high cost due to the complex nature of the placement.

Page 3 of 13



Page 106

Ongoing work continues all placements are reviewed regularly in order to reduce the
pressure on cost and volume where appropriate.

Commissioning arrangements to increase the supply of local placements continues.
The Peninsula residential framework tender has just closed, with 29 bidders. A
contract award report will be presented to Cabinet in December. The Plymouth
Caring in Partnership residential block contract continues to be developed — 3 beds
have been added to the contract since March 2018, with a new solo home currently
being registered. The Peninsula fostering contract began on 1st April 2018 and is
embedding, with a wider group of providers engaged.

Strategic Co-operative Commissioning

The Strategic Commissioning service is forecasting an adverse variation to year end
of £0.101m, a reduction of (£0.380m) from the month 6 forecast. The reduction in
forecast is a result of a drop in the number of clients being forecast to year end,
however there is still a large pressure on residential and monitoring that will continue
to be reviewed during the year.

There will continue to be management actions to reduce the pressure on the care
packages in year, with continued “deep dives” taking place into the areas currently
overheating.

Education, Participation and Skills
The Education, Participation and Skills budget is forecast to balance to budget at
year end.

A plan is being developed to scope all of the education related services within
Education, Participation and Skills and recommend an approach and plan for
transforming, in order to realise further savings.

Community Connections
Community Connections is reporting an overspend of £0.087m at Month 7, a
favourable variation of (£0.081m) from month 6.

Average B & B numbers for April to October have been 55 placements per night with
a reduction in Housing Benefit income due to the change to the claiming through the
universal credit system.

The net cost pressure for further reducing average placements by 5 from the current
55 to 50 per night is £0.087m, which the service is targeting to reduce with use of
alternative properties provided through existing contracts as well as use of additional
contracted staff to target single occupancy stays. The service is dedicating more
resource to encourage clients to complete universal credit claims to increase the
Housing Benefit received. There will also be capitalisation of equipment that will
bring the spend back to budget.

Public Health

Public Health is expected to come in on budget for 2018/19 despite a reduction in
the Public Health grant received in 2018/19 of £0.405m from 2017/18. This will be
contained by a variety of management actions, mainly around the contracts that are

Page 4 of 13



Page 107

held within the department, as well as using approximately £0.500m of grant that
was carried forward from previous years.

Plymouth City Council Delivery Plans

Between People Directorate and Public Health, over £11.5m of savings will need to
be delivered during 2018/19, which includes savings of over £6m of savings brought
forward from 2017/18 which were delivered as one-off savings. It is forecast that all
savings will be achieved - breakdown shown below:

Month 7 - October 2018 Budget | Actual | Variance Budget | Actual | Variance
Adv / Adv /
(Fav) (Fav)
£000's | £000's £000's £000's | £000's £000's
Children, Young People & Families 2,715 | 2,715 - 4,655 | 4,655 -
otrategic Cooperative 2,797 | 2,797 . 4,794 | 4,794 .
Commissioning
Education Participation & Skills 809 809 - 1,386 | 1,386 -
Community Connections 384 384 - 659 659 -
Additional People Savings i i i i i i
(apportioned to depts above)
Public Health 44 44 - 75 75 -
6,749 | 6,749 - 11,569 | 11,569 -
Month 6 - September 2018 Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
Adv / (Fav) Adv / (Fav)
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Children, Young People & Families 2,328 2,328 4,655 4,655
Strategic Cooperative Commissioning 2,397 2,397 4,794 4,794
Education Participation & Skills 693 693 1,386 1,386
Community Connections 330 330 659 659
Additional People Savings (apportioned to depts above)
Public Health 38 38 75 75
5,785 5,785 11,569 11,569

Integrated Fund Summary

Health are reporting a forecast unplanned underspend of £0.2m whilst the Local
Authority are reporting an unplanned overspend of £4.7m. The Health position is
static against the variances reported in month 6 whilst the Local Authority are
reporting an improvement of £1.6m.

Page 5 0of 13




Page 108

No risk share impact has been calculated at this stage.

SECTION 2 - BETTER CARE FUND (BCF)

Better Care Fund (BCF) and Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)

The table below provides a summary of the different types of the BCF, how they are
funded, how the fund was spent in 2017/18 and how the fund is planned to be spent
in 2018/19.

Note that parts of these plans are still under review and subject to change.

NHS Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group
Plymouth City Council
Better Care Fund

2017/18 2018/19

£000's £000's £000's £000's
Source [o[e(c) ASC ccGg ASC
BCF 17,701 2,126 18,044 2,298
iBCF_a 764 5,343
iBCF b 5,800 3,660
Total BCF 17,701 8,690 18,044 11,301
Application CCG ASC CcCcG ASC
Intermediate Care 9,156 5,149 9,443 5,149
Social Care Support 3,396 3,452
DFG 2,126 2,298
Social Care Support (iBCF_a) 764 5,343
Meeting ASC Needs 1,449 2,160
Reducing NHS Pressure 3,351 1,500
Stabilising SC market 1,000

12,507 13,884 10,943 18,402

These funds are being paid to the Local Authority and come with conditions that they
are “to be spent on adult social care and used for the purposes of meeting adult
social care needs, reducing pressures on the NHS - including supporting more
people to be discharged from hospital when they are ready - and stabilising the
social care provider market.”

Page 6 of 13



Page 109

SECTION 3 - WESTERN PDU MANAGED CONTRACTS

Context /| CCG Wide Financial Performance at Month 6

This report sets out the outturn financial performance of the CCG to the end of
month 7 of 2018/19.

The CCG plan for 2018/19 has been produced in conjunction with our main acute
providers within a wider System Transformation Plan (STP) footprint encompassing
South Devon and Torbay CCG (SD&T CCG).

The CCG’s submitted Financial Plans for 2018/19 set out forecast deficits to 31st
March of £20.0m and £5.0m for NEW Devon CCG and South Devon & Torbay CCG
respectively. The challenge is significant both for each of the organisations and for
the STP as a whole. The CCG plans require the delivery of a £78.597m savings
programme in order to meet the respective positions agreed with NHS England.
£70.847m of this challenge relates to NEW Devon CCG and the balance of £7.750m
with South Devon & Torbay CCG.

The CCG is reporting forecast delivery of 92% against this plan at this stage.

Delivery of the required savings plan is the main financial risk and challenge to the
CCGs, however there are other risks emerging in relation to out of area placements
and within the independent sector contracts. These will require further investigation
and continued focus, priority and joint working across the local community and wider
STP foot print to mitigate or reduce the potential impact as a result.

Western PDU Finance Position

Introduction

This report previously described emerging risks within the acute independent sector
contracts and these risks continue. However, an improvement in the Placements
position has offset this cost pressure. The Western PDU are reporting a forecast
breakeven position.

The detailed analysis for the PDU is included at Appendix 2.

Acute Care Commissioned Services

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

The 2018/19 contract plan for University Hospitals Plymouth has been set in
accordance with the principles agreed by the Devon STP. The overarching
agreement is for flat cash contracts, where the 2018/19 contract value is based upon
the 2017/18 contract value with minor adjustments agreed for specific areas. Whilst
growth and inflationary pressures have been identified the system expectation is that

Page 7 of 13



Page 110

these will be dealt with through demand management, efficiencies and cost
reductions.

The 2018/19 contract value has been agreed at £184.5m for NEW Devon and £4.3m
for SD&T CCG. The planned investment to support RTT achievement is not included
at this stage.

Contract Performance

NEW Dewvon CCG Torbay and South Devon CCG
Planned Actual ) Variance = Variance | Planned Actual . Variance = Variance
2018/19 M07 Spend Spend Variance Activity Spend Spend Spend Variance Activity Spend
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Elective 23,088 20,297 - 2,791 -6.2% -12.1% 781 646 - 135 -5.3% -17.3%
Non-Elective 41,774 41,353 - 421 6.0% -1.0% 609 705 96| 30.4% 15.8%
A&E + MIU 7,789 7,941 152 0.8% 2.0% 103 162 59| 82.1% 57.0%
Outpatients 19,730 19,011 - 719 -3.3% -3.6% 516 477 - 39 -3.3% -7.5%
Excluded Senvices 12,903 13,660 757 5.9% 177 125 - 52 -29.4%
Penalties - - 324 - 324 - 14 14
Drugs & Devices 7,831 8,077 246 3.1% 266 232 - 34 -12.6%
CQUIN 2,447 2,548 102 4.1% 55 53 - 2 -2.9%
Contract Adjustments |- 8,445 - 8,445 6 - 6
Total 107,118 112,564 5,446 5.1% 2,513 2,415 - 98 -3.9%

Expenditure on Elective Care is 12.1% behind financial plan for NEW Devon and
17.3% for SD&T, representing a combined underspend of £2.9m to month 7 with
£0.45m of this variance occurring in month. The primary drivers of underperformance
include:

1. Orthopaedics — Underperforming by 16.9% worth £875k
2. Cardiology — Underperforming by 35.3% worth £544k
3. Neurosurgery — Underperforming by 36% worth £349k

Non-Elective activity is 6.3% ahead of plan compared with a 0.8% under
performance in financial terms. This is after the contract was increased to reflect
historical growth trends and includes the activity and spend taking place within the
recently formed Acute Assessment Unit (AAU).

Accident and Emergency, which includes MIU activity which has been varied into the
UHP contract, is ahead of plan by 1.7% or 1,096 attendances which is an
improvement of 606 attendances since month 6, although still contributing towards
an adverse variance of £0.2m or 2.7%. Whilst the Torbay and South Devon
proportion of this part of the contract is small, it should be noted that the activity
variance of 82.1% remains exceptionally high.

Outpatient activity and spend has continued to fall behind plan during month 7.
Activity is 3.3% or £0.7m behind plan for NEW Devon. Outpatient procedures are
ahead of plan by £0.25m whilst new and follow-up attendances are underperforming
by £1.0m. At specialty level there are over performances in Plastic Surgery (£125k or

Page 8 of 13



Page 111

27%), Trauma (£116k or 29%), Paediatrics (£96k or 10%) and Endoscopy (£93k or
26%). However, these are offset by significant underperformances in
Gastroenterology (£135k or 25%), Pain Management (£121k or 26%), Orthopaedics
(113k or 16%) and Ophthalmology A&E (109k or 15%).

Passthrough Drugs and Devices are overspent by 3.1% or £0.25m, which is driven
by passthrough drugs. The position has deteriorated by £0.2m since month 6 which
is due to fluctuations in the homecare charging which is no longer smoothed by
accruals.

The plan has an adjustment for system savings; this number reflects the differences
between the PbR activity plan and the agreed system wide contract value and for
NEW Devon is worth £14.5m. Any activity savings will fall into the reporting at the
points of delivery in which they occur, therefore this line will show as a constant
overspend all year. As at month 7 this shows an overperformance of £8.4m.

Overall, contract reporting illustrates an over performance of £5.4m. However, a
significant contributor to over performance is in respect of the £8.4m STP contract
adjustment. Ignoring these adjustments so that we can consider the contract
variance against the agreed activity plan, contract reporting would indicate an under
performance of £3.0m. Further still, we are in the final stages of agreeing additional
investment into the UHP contract to support improvement in the RTT reporting
standards. The investment value of £5.9m for NEW Devon CCG and £0.4m for
South Devon and Torbay CCG — once this is varied into the contract the reported
overall overperformance will reduce.

South Devon Healthcare Foundation Trust

The 2018/19 South Devon Healthcare Foundation Trust contract has been set in
accordance to the contracting principles agreed within the Devon STP. The fixed
contract value is £5.991m.

Despite having agreed a fixed contract value we will continue to monitor and report
on the variances against the agreed activity plan. As at month 7 the activity data
shows an underperformance of £0.3m. This primarily driven by underperformances
within non elective and passthrough drugs.

Independent Sector & London Trusts

Risks continue to present for a significant overspend at Care UK and Nuffield
Plymouth, which on an activity basis are forecast to overspend by £1.6m and £1.5m
respectively. This overspend is a result of an increase in year on year activity and
slippage in the delivery of savings plans.

We will monitor this closely and continue to align the management of this risk with
our demand management plans.

Page 9 of 13



Page 112

A further risk of £0.3m is presenting within our variable London provider contracts.
Livewell Southwest

The Livewell Southwest (LSW) Contract has been set in accordance to the agreed
STP contracting principles which focus on delivering flat cash contracts.

For LSW this means a fixed contract value of £85.2m for 2018/19.
Discharge to Assess beds

There is pressure in the cost of the Intermediate Care (Discharge to Assess) beds in
the West, however, work focussed on the discharge pathway has significantly
reduced the number of beds in use and the length of stay, such that the system is
planning to move into financial balance in this financial year.

Primary Care Prescribing

Month 7 shows a £101k underspend for the Western area. Overall the CCG is
forecasting that our year to date QIPP target has been achieved but are reflecting
the QIPP yet to be achieved within our risks. This is prudent based on the
information to M05 and will be reconsidered as more data becomes available.

Primary Care Enhanced and Other Services

Whilst the budgets and expenditure are reported in the Western PDU report, this is
to ensure that all lines of expenditure for the CCG are reported in a PDU and there is
integrity to the reports produced. There is, however, a separate governance
structure for Enhanced Services that sits outside and alongside the two PDU
structures to ensure there is segregation of decision making in primary care
investments. The outturn expenditure is in line with budgets.

Conclusion

The overall Integrated Fund is forecasting a year end overspend of £4.6m at this
stage. Within this position the Council is forecast to overspend by £4.7m whilst the
health position is forecast to be £0.2m underspent, but with emerging risks.

Ben Chilcott David Northey
Chief Finance Officer, Western PDU Head of Integrated Finance, PCC

Page 10 of 13



Page 113

APPENDIX 1

PLYMOUTH INTEGRATED FUND AND RISK SHARE

Year to Date Forecast
Month 07 October Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
Adv / (Fav) Adv / (Fav)
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
CCG COMMISSIONED SERVICES
Acute 90,770 91,426 655 155,606 156,658 1,052
Placements 21,711 21,320 -391 35,657 35,055 -601
Community & Non Acute 29,333 29,348 15 50,284 50,318 33
Mental Health Services 21,331 21,347 16 36,567 36,595 28
Other Commissioned Services 9,203 9,173 -30 15,777 15,789 12
Primary Care 27,064 26,351 -213 45,979 45,774 -206
Subtotal 199,412 198,965 53 339,870 340,188 318
Running Costs & Technical/Risk 2,581 2,583 2 6,920 6,448 -472
CCG Net Operating Expenditure 201,993 201,548 54 346,790 346,637 -154
| Risk Share | | - i - |
| CCG Net Operating Expenditure (after Risk Share) | | 201,993 201,548 54 | | 346,790 E 346,637 f -154 |
PCC COMMISSIONED SERVICES
Children, Young People & Families 21,666 24,310 2,644 37,142 41,674 4,533
Strategic Cooperative Commissioning 45,569 45,628 59 78,118 78,219 101
Education, Participation & Skills 58,979 58,979 -0 101,106 101,106 -0
Community Connections 2,208 2,258 51 3,784 3,871 87
Director of people 172 172 -0 295 295 -0
Public Health 9,361 9,361 - 16,048 16,048 -
Subtotal 137,954 140,708 2,754 236,493 241,214 4,721
Support Services costs 8,443 8,443 - 14,473 14,473
Disabled Facilities Grant (Cap Spend) 1,341 1,341 - 2,298 2,298 -
Recovery Plans in Development - - - - - -
PCC Net Operating Expenditure 147,738 150,492 2,754 253,265 257,986 4,721
| Risk Share | | - E - |
| PCC Net Operating Expenditure (after Risk Share) | | 147,738 I 150,492 E 2,754 | | 253,265 E 257,986 ! 4,721 |
| Combined Integrated Fund | | 349,731 I 352,040 E 2,808 | | 600,055 E 604,622 ! 4,567 |

Page 11 of 13



Page 114

APPENDIX 2
WESTERN PDU MANAGED CONTRACTS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Year To Date Current Year Forecast
Month 07 October Budget Actual Variance Budget Forecast Variance
Adv / (Fav) Adv / (Fav)
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
ACUTE CARE
NHS University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust 107,918 107,918 0] 185,002 185,002 -
NHS South Devon Healthcare Foundation Trust 3,569 3,570 0 6,119 6,119 -
NHS London Contracts 997 1,161 165 1,709 2,033 325
Non Contracted Activity (NCA's) 5,456 5,457 1 9,354 9,354 -
Independent Sector 7,832 8,795 964 13,426 16,267 2,841
Referrals Management 1,506 1,506 (o] 2,581 2,581 -
Other Acute 13 3 -10 23 13 -10
Cancer Alliance Funding 730 730 (o] 1,252 1,252 -
Subtotal 128,021 129,141 1,120 219,465 222,621 3,156
COMMUNITY & NON ACUTE
Livewell Southwest 25,756 25,756 0] 44,153 44,153 -
GPwSI's (incl Sentinel, Beacon etc) 973 973 -0 1,668 1,668 -
Community Equipment Plymouth 378 378 0 648 648 -
Peninsula Ultrasound 166 154 -12 285 285 -
Reablement 885 885 0] 1,517 1,517 -
Other Community Services 149 149 -0 256 256 -
Joint Funding_Plymouth CC 5,081 5,081 - 8,711 8,711 -
Better Care Fund_Devon CC - - - - - -
Subtotal 33,388 33,377 -12 57,237 57,237 -
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
Livewell MH Services 19,282 19,282 - 33,059 33,059 -
Mental Health Contracts 15 15 (6] 26 26 -
Other Mental Health 641 641 0 1,097 1,097 -
Subtotal 19,939 19,939 0 34,182 34,182 -
OTHER COMMISSIONED SERVICES
Stroke Association 93 93 0 159 159 -
Hospices 1,563 1,495 -68 2,679 2,635 -44
Discharge to Assess 3,857 3,857 0] 6,613 6,613 -
Patient Transport Services 1,354 1,354 -0 2,321 2,321 -
Wheelchairs Western Locality 1,050 1,100 50 1,800 1,880 80
Commissioning Schemes 111 95 -17 191 159 -32
All Other 721 701 -21 1,236 1,276 40
Subtotal 8,750 8,695 -55 14,999 15,043 44
PRIMARY CARE
Prescribing 32,525 31,609 -916 55,156 55,055 -101
Medicines Optimisation 179 128 -51 307 307 -
Enhanced Services 5,561 5,563 2 9,533 9,533 -
GP IT Revenue 1,488 1,488 -0 2,550 2,550 -
Other Primary Care 2,492 2,492 0] 4,272 4,272 -
Subtotal 42,245 41,279 -966 71,818 71,717 -101
TOTAL COMMISSIONED SERVICES 232,342 232,430 88 397,701 400,800 3,099

Page 12 of 13



Page 115

APPENDIX 3
GLOSSARY OF TERMS

PCC - Plymouth City Council

NEW Devon CCG — Northern, Eastern, Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group

CYPF — Children, Young People & Families
SCC - Strategic Cooperative Commissioning
EPS — Education, Participation & Skills

CC — Community Connections

FNC — Funded Nursing Care

IPP — Individual Patient Placement

CHC — Continuing Health Care

NHSE — National Health Service England
PbR — Payment by Results

QIPP —Quality, Innovation, Productivity & Prevention
CCRT — Care Co-ordination Response Team
RTT — Referral to Treatment

PDU - Planning & Delivery Unit

UHP — University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

Page 13 of 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117 Agenda Item 10

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Integrated Performance Scorecard
Committee: Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: 23 January 2019
Cabinet Member: Councillor lan Tuffin
CMT Member: Carole Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People)
Author: Robert Sowden, Performance Advisor
Contact details Tel: 01752 305407
Email: Robert.sowden@plymouth.gov.uk
Ref:
Key Decision: No
Part: I

Purpose of the report:

Public Sector organisations across the country are facing unprecedented challenges and pressures
due to changes in demography, increasing complexity of need and the requirement to deliver better
services with less public resource. Plymouth and Devon also face a particular financial challenge
because of the local demography, the historic pattern of provision and pockets of deprivation and
entrenched health inequalities.

On the 1% April 2015 Plymouth City Council (PCC) and the Northern, Eastern and Western Devon
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) pooled their wellbeing, health and social care budgets and
formed an integrated commissioning function. Four Integrated Commissioning Strategies were
developed to drive activity across the wellbeing health and social care system.

The primary driver of this is to streamline service delivery and provision with the aim of improving
outcomes both for individuals and value for money. Integrated commissioning must deliver integrated
wellbeing.

The four strategies describe the current picture and the integrated commissioning response across
the health and wellbeing ‘system’ in Plymouth, specifically covering

o Wellbeing

e Children and young people

e Community

o Enhanced and specialist
To monitor progress of the Integrated Commissioning activity an Integrated System Performance
Scorecard has been developed. The scorecard will be updated on a quarterly basis and will capture

and understand the impact of integration across the system, and inform future commissioning
decisions.

Recommendations:

The recommendation is for the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel to:
e To note the contents of the report

Revised June 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119

INTEGRATED
HEALTH &

WELLBEING

SYSTEM PERFORMANCE
SCORECARD

DECEMBER 2018

nHSl 2

PLYMOUTH

Northern, Eastern and Western Devon
Clinical Commissioning Group



Page 120
1. INTRODUCTION

Public Sector organisations across the country are facing unprecedented challenges and
pressures due to changes in demography, increasing complexity of need and the requirement to
deliver better services with less public resource. Plymouth and Devon also face a particular
financial challenge because of the local demography, the historic pattern of provision and pockets
of deprivation and entrenched health inequalities.

On the 1% April 2015 Plymouth City Council (PCC) and the Northern, Eastern and Western Devon
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) pooled their wellbeing, health and social care budgets and
formed an integrated commissioning function. Four Integrated Commissioning Strategies were
developed to drive activity across the wellbeing health and social care system.

The primary driver of this is to streamline service delivery and provision with the aim of improving
outcomes both for individuals and value for money. Integrated commissioning must deliver
integrated wellbeing.

The four strategies describe the current picture and the integrated commissioning response across
the health and wellbeing ‘system’ in Plymouth, specifically covering

e Wellbeing
e Children and young people
e Community

e Enhanced and specialist

To monitor progress of the Integrated Commissioning activity an Integrated System Performance
Scorecard has been developed. The scorecard will be updated on a quarterly basis and will
capture and understand the impact of integration across the system, and inform future
commissioning decisions.

2. COLOUR SCHEME - BENCHMARK COLUMN

For indicators taken from either the Public Health Outcomes Framework or the Children and
Young People’s Health Benchmarking Tool:

e Indicators highlighted green show where Plymouth is significantly better than the England
average

e Indicators highlighted amber show where Plymouth is not significantly different to the
England average

e Indicators highlighted red show where Plymouth is significantly worse than the England
average

¢ Indicators highlighted white show where no significance test was performed, or where no
local data or no national data were available.

For the rest of the indicators:

Indicators highlighted green show where Plymouth 15% better than England’s average
Indicators highlighted amber show where Plymouth within 15% of England’s average
Indicators highlighted red show where Plymouth 15% worse than England’s average
Indicators highlighted white or N/A show where no local data or no national data were
available.



Page 121
3. TREND GRAPHS

Each indicator is accompanied by a trend graph showing where possible the latest six values.
Caution is required when interpreting the graphs as there is no Y axis displayed and as such the
significance or flow of the change is difficult to interpret.

4. COLOUR SCHEME - TREND COLUMN (RAG)

e Indicators highlighted dark green show where there the latest 3 values are improving

¢ Indicators highlighted green show where there the latest 1 or 2 values are improving

e Indicators highlighted amber show where the latest value is between plus and minus 2.5%
of the previous value

e Indicators highlighted red show where there the latest 1 or 2 values are deteriorating

e Indicators highlighted dark red show where there the latest 3 values are deteriorating

¢ Indicators not highlighted have no trend data.

5. PERFORMANCE BY EXCEPTION

WELLBEING
Referral to treatment (RTT) — Percentage seen within 18 weeks

Nationally it has been agreed that RTT position at the end of March 2019 should be no worse than
the March 2018 position and the focus should be on reducing the number of long waiters,
specifically those waiting over 52 weeks. An improvement trajectory has been agreed to reduce
the number of people waiting 52 weeks or more by March 2018.

Estimated diagnosis rates for dementia

In November the dementia diagnosis rate improved to 57.5%, up from 55.8% in October, the NEW
Devon CCGs dementia diagnosis rate does remain below the national target. The CCG has raised
concerns with NHSE with the expected number of people with dementia in our population (this
may affect the calculated diagnosis rate). However, the CCG is also looking to work more closely
with primary care to improve the pathway and achieve the national target of 66.7% by March 2019.

Excess Weight in Adults, 4-5 year olds and 10-11 year olds

The most recent data (2016/17) saw a slight increase in the percentage of children aged 10-11
that are classed as overweight (31.7%), this is however significantly lower than the England
average (34.2%). We continue to worry about the percentage of children aged 4-5 who are classed
as overweight, latest data shows that Plymouth is significantly worse. This is also the case for
Adults classed as overweight, in Plymouth the latest data shows Plymouth has 67% of adults who
are overweight or obese; this compares to the England figure of 61.3%.

We are working to tackle this by giving children the best start in life (e.g. breast feeding, weaning
and parenting advice), making schools health-promoting environments (e.g. Healthy School
Quality Mark), managing the area around schools through fast food planning policy, and working
with partners to raise awareness of the risk factors of unhealthy diets and physical inactivity
(Thrive Plymouth). Since 2006/07 when the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)
began, Plymouth has consistently exceeded the target of taking valid measurements from 85% of
eligible children.



Page 122

COMMUNITY
Health and Social Care System

The Health and Social Care system remains challenged with an increase in the number of older
patients who are more likely to require onward care due to the complexity of their needs.

Accident and Emergency four hour wait

University Hospitals Plymouth is not achieving the four hour wait in Accident & Emergency (A&E)
target. This is due to demand pressures including an increase in A&E attendances.

Provisional data suggests there was an average of 285 attendances per day during December,
this increase on the November figure of 281 and is greater than December 2017 (270). Following a
successful hard reset which resulted in an improvement in performance; a second hard reset was
repeated in October and a number of actions put in place to improve performance including:
dedicated medical leadership; embedding internal professional standards; establishing a full
capacity protocol; establishing a paediatric escalation protocol; implementing Front Loaded Initial
Care Assessments, embedding fit to sit; creating physical capacity by moving minors to fracture
clinics and expanding paediatric space.

Emergency admissions aged 65 and over

Emergency admissions aged 65+ continue to increase. The increase in emergency admissions
over winter 17/18 was especially for older people. This was due to the level of respiratory
admissions linked to the flu and the cold weather. There was also an increase in the Summer
which has been shown to correlate with the hot weather. Whilst admissions fell slightly during
Autumn 2018, numbers have begun to increase although levels in December 2018 were not has
high as the previous year.

Delayed transfers of care from hospital per 100,000 population, whole system (delayed days per
day)

Following the Care Quality Commission (CQC) review of the health and social care system we
have been delivering against a CQC action plan, an outcome of which was to reduce Delayed
Transfers of Care (DTOC). Our progress on delivering this action plan has been shared with the
CQC as part of a monitoring exercise into areas that were the subject of a review.

A number of actions have been in place with a view to improve performance in length of stay and
DTOC. Actions include the establishing of executive lead escalation arrangements across health
and social care systems and the daily review of long stay patients by integrated discharge teams.

Performance for the whole of quarter three is not yet available. Performance has however
improved again in October and November 2018, the average number of delayed days across
these two months is 849, this compares to the monthly averages of 1,081 in quarter two and 1,269
in quarter one. We have continued to reduce the number of delays attributable to adult social care,
improving our national ranking from 142" (of 152) at the end of 2017/18 to 83™ at the end of
October 2018, current performance is better than the national average.



Page 123

Long term admissions to Residential Care and Nursing Care

We continue to have fewer long term admissions than local authorities in our comparator groups,
this despite long term admissions to residential and nursing care for older people (65+) increasing
in 2018/19. Last year (2017/18) there were 261 long term admissions in the whole year, equating
to a rate of 547.3/100,000. Between April and December 2018 there have been 238 long term
admissions for older people meaning we are on a trajectory to have approximately 80 more
admissions this year than last. The Hard resets at Derriford Hospital have contributed to an
increase in people going through the discharge to assess process with an outcome of going into
residential care.

ENHANCED AND SPECIALIST
Percentage of CQC providers with a CQC rating of good or outstanding

At the end of quarter three the percentage of residential and nursing homes that are rated by CQC
as good or outstanding remains steady at 80%. The number of homes that are outstanding rose
from seven to eight (7% to 8%), the number of homes that are good fell from 72 to 70 (74% to
72%). At the end of quarter three there are two care homes with a CQC rating of inadequate, this
was zero at the end of quarter two.

The QAIT (Quality Assurance and Improvement Team) are undertaking a specific project to target
providers requiring improvement in the form of supportive workshops over the next 12 months. If
necessary these workshops will be ongoing with learning shared across the whole care home
sector. The team continue to request and monitor action plans from homes that have been rated
as Requires Improvement and provide support visits and advice and information.



6. WELLBEING

Indicator

Measure

Most Recent

Period

Benchmark

First Value of

Graph

Last Value of

Graph

2.12 - Percentage of adults (aged |18+) classified as overweight or obese Percentage 2016/17 /
66.5 67.0
Child excess weight in 10-11 year olds Percentage 2016/17 344 \/\/ 31.7
Child excess weight in 4-5 year olds Percentage 2016/17 24.0 /J 26.3
2.14 - Smoking Prevalence in adults - current smokers (APS) Percentage 2017 24.1 \ 18.4
CCGOF Referral to Treatment waiting times (patients seen within |8 weeks on incomplete pathway
o Percentage Nov-18 N/A 79.5%
® U
o)
NHSOF Estimated diagnosis rates for Dementia Percentage Nov-18 N/A 58.9% (@)
D
The proportion of people who use services who feel safe Percentage 2017/18 \/‘ l:)
73.4 h
The proportion of people who use services who say that those services make them feel safe and
Percentage 2017/18
secure 93.3 90.0
Overall satisfaction of people who use services, with their care and support Percentage 2017/18 /J
65.6 73.0




7. COMMUNITY

Last Value of
Graph

. Most Recent First Value of
Indicator Measure . Benchmark Graph
Period Graph

2.15i - Successful completion of drug treatment - opiate users Percentage 2017 7.0 /\/
2.15ii - Successful completion of drug treatment - non-opiate users Percentage 2017 30.8 \/\
P ti f people still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into reablement/ rehabilitation
roportion ot peop 4 & P Percentage 2018/19 - Q3 82.0 /_\/\
services
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
proving © reyeholog! P Percentage Nov-18 1.50
Monthly Access rate
| ing A to Psychological Th i
mproving Access to Psychological Therapies Percentage Nov.18 roa /_\/
Recovery rate rate
A&E four hour wait Percentage Dec-18 84.30% \/ 84.20%
Emergency Admissions to hospital (over 65s) Count Dec-18 1,313 \/
Rate of Delayed transfers of care per day, per 100,000 population Rate per 100,000 (2018/19 - Q3 26.0 \/\
Rate of Delayed transfers of care per day, per 100,000 population, attributable to Adult Social Care  |Rate per 100,000 |2018/19 - Q3 11.9 \
Long-term support needs met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000
) Rate per 100,000 |2018/19 - Q3 138.0
population (aged 65+)
Long-term support needs met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000
) Rate per 100,000 |2018/19 - Q3 2.4
population (aged 18-64)
Proportion of people who use services who have control over their daily life Percentage 2017/18 83.4 \/\/\

G¢T abed



8. ENHANCED AND SPECIALIST

. Most Recent First Value of Last Value of
Indicator Measure ) Benchmark
Period Graph Graph
In hospital Falls with harm Percentage Nov-18 0.24 /M 0.48
Percentage of CQC providers with a CQC rating of good or outstanding Percentage 2018/19 - Q3 79.0 \/\/\ 80.0

o¢T abed



Page 127

Agenda Item 11

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE
OVERVIEW SCRUTINY COMMITTE

Work Programme 2018 - 19

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at

short notice.

For general enquiries relating to the Council’s Scrutiny function, including this committee’s work
programme, please contact Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer, on 01752 304570.

Date of Agenda item Prioritisation Reason for consideration Responsible
meeting Score Cabinet Member
| Officer
Health Landscape To give the committee a better IT, CB, CM, RH
understanding of the current health
landscape for Plymouth.
13 Integrated Commissioning Standing Item — Written briefing
June . .
2018 Scorecard only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Integrated Finance Standing Item — Written briefing
Monitoring Report only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Emergency Department To receive an update on waiting Kevin Baber
times.
Healthwatch Annual Annual Report and overview of :
Karen Marcellino
Report 2017 -18
CQC Action Plan Update Craig McArdle
Standing Item — Written briefing
25 July | Integrated Commissioning only. Members to advise the Chair
2018 Action Plans / if matters arising require presence | -
Performance Scorecard of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Standing Item — Written briefing
| only. Members to advise the Chair
ntegrated Fund . - .
monitoring Report if matters arising require presence | -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
CQC Reports for
Derriford
Update on Never Events
(Plymouth Herald report
26 Sept on |3 August 2018) ' '
2018 Western System -Winter To include the plans from the NHS
Plan as well as looking at flu vaccinations | NHS, CCG
for staff.
Flu Jabs for Front Line staff
— how this is promoted
and uptake




Page 128

STP Mental Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Livewell SW CQC Report

UHP Progress Update on
two warning notices

Director of Public Health
Annual Report

25 Oct | Planned Care Programme
2018 Update
Integrated Finance
Monitoring Report
Integrated Commissioning
Score Card
Dental Access
Workforce Development
Strategy to include UHP
CQC Action Plan
Integrated Finance Standing Item — Written briefing
21 Nov Monitoring Report only. Members to advise the Chair
2018 if matters arising require presence -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Integrated Commissioning Standing ltem — Written briefing
Score Card only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Update from the Chair of Update and Annual Report.
the Plymouth Safeguarding
Adults Board
Update on STP, ICS and
Fair Share
Monitoring of missed
hospital appointments
UHP Progress Update on
23 CQC Action Plan
Jan . . . .
2019 Integrated Finance Standing Item — Written briefing
Monitoring Report only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Integrated Commissioning Standing Item — Written briefing
Score Card only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence -
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.
Care Need Assessments Craig McArdle
Flu Vaccinations Uptake
27 par | 74 s o ks
2019

Planned Care Update

CQC Action Plan




Page 129

Workforce Development
Strategy Update

Electronic Prescriptions

Integrated Finance
Monitoring Report

Standing Item — Written briefing
only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.

Integrated Commissioning
Score Card

Standing Item — Written briefing
only. Members to advise the Chair
if matters arising require presence
of an officer / or addition to work
programme.

Items to be scheduled

NHS 111 Update

Loneliness

Select Committee Reviews

End of Life Care

Member request

Urgent Care

Cross scrutiny items

2019

Joint Mental Health Select
Committee

Joint Select Committee with
Education and Children’s Social
Care




This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minute No.

Resolution

Target Date, Officer

Responsible and Progress

2|1 November
2018

Dental Access
- Minute 43

The Committee agreed -
l. To explore whether Plymouth City Council can support recruitment campaigns to
attract Dentists to the area.

2. That all Councillors attend training to become Dental Champions.

3. To be updated on progress of the potential set-up of a new practice in the city centre
to ease pressure within the system.

4. To explore and discuss with Health Education England the potential for the Peninsula
Dental School to increase the number of students.

5. That a link to the Plymouth on Line Directory is sent to Committee Members.

Date: Jann 2019
Officer: Amelia Boulter
Progress: | to 4 to be
progressed. 5 - email

circulated to Members on
28.11.18.

21 November
2018

The Committee noted the current progress on the CQC Local System Review
Action Plan and to receive a further update in March 2019.

Date: Jan 2019
Officer: Amelia Boulter

CQC - Local Progress: Complete —
System added to the work
Review programme.

Action Plan

and Update

— Minute 44

21 November | The Committee agreed to - Date: Jan 2019

2018 l. Note the progress in developing the workforce plan for Plymouth and support the Officer: Amelia Boulter
Workforce content and approach described within the plan. Progress:
Development | 2. Further update in March 2019. 2 and 3 added to the work
Strategy — 3. Receive an update on STP and ICS at the January meeting. programme.

Minute 45 4. Encourage Councillors on this Committee to become Proud to Care Ambassadors. 4 to be progressed.

Tracking Decisions — January 2019

Official

TET abed

ZT wal| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Report from Independent Chair, Plymouth Safeguarding Adults Board (PSAB)
	6 Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and Integrated Care System (ICS) Update
	7 Progress Update on CQC Action Plan
	Annex 2 CQC Performance Monitoring Report Dec 18

	8 Missed Hospital Appointments
	9 Integrated Finance Monitoring Report
	Finance Report Western M7 FINAL

	10 Integrated Performance Scorecard
	Integrated Commissioning Scorecard 201819 Qtr 3v2

	11 Work Programme
	12 Tracking Resolutions

